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R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. is the parent company of RJ. Reynolds Tobacco
Company and Santa Fe Natural Tobacco Company, inc. RJ. Reynolds Tobacco Company
is the second-largest tobacco company in the United States, manufacturing about one of

every four cigarettes sold in the United States. Reynolds Tobacco's product line includes

four of the nation’s 70 best-selling cigarette brands: Camel, Winston, Salem and Doral.

Reynolds Tobacco has been recognized by FORTUNE Magazine as one of the “100 Best

Companies to Work For” Santa Fe Natural Tobacco Company, Inc. manufactures and

markets Natural American Spirit cigarettes and other tobacco products both nationally

and internationally.

R.]. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc.
Financial Highlights

(Dollars in millions ~ except per-share amounts)

For the Years Ended Dec. 31

2001 2000

Results of operations - Ongoing™
Netsales ... ... . $ 8,585 S 8,058
Costof products sold .. ... 3,560 3,436
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses..............cooiviiiviiieii i, 3,745 3342
Operating company contribution® ....... ... $ 1,280 $ 1,280
Net income, ONOING ... $ 444 S 404
Cash netincome®™ ... ... ... .. ... i $ E $i
Diluted income per share,ongoing ................................... $ _4.49 $_397
Diluted weighted average shares, in thousands ..., 98,986 107,857
Balance sheet highlights
Cash and short-term inVeStMENES .. ... .o $ 2,227 § 25543
Dt 1,674 1,747
Shareholders” @qUITY .. ...ttt 8,026 8,436
Return to shareholders
Dividends Daid ... $ 320 $ 322

Annualized dividend pershare .................. $ 3.50 $ 310
SHAre rePUICNASES ...\ e e $ 494 S 231

Shares repurchased (in millions) ... ... 8.7 85

() 2000 ongoing results exclude $1.4 billion of certain adjustments, primarily the $1.475 billion gain from the NGH acquisition.

) Operating company contribution — ongoing operating income before amortization of trademarks and goodwill, impairment charge
and initial up-front tobacco-settlement charges, and exclusive of certain other adjustments.

) Cash net income - ongoing net income plus amortization of trademarks and goodwill, net of tax.

These financial highlights should be read in conjunction with the full financial statements presented in the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K.




Dear fellow shareholders,

| am pleased to report that 2001 was a successful year
for RJR. We delivered results against our focus of building
strong brands and making money for our shareholders.

For the year, ongoing profits were up 10 percent and
earnings per share rose 13 percent. The quarterly cash dividend
increased 13 percent. We repurchased 8.7 million shares of our
stock. The combined market share of the four key brands —
Camel, Winston, Salem and Doral - remained stable. In
January 2002, we acquired a growing and profitable business,
Santa Fe Natural Tobacco Company, Inc. And, we finished
2001 with a very strong balance sheet, highlighted by $2.2
billion in cash and short-term investments.

In 2007, we once again proved our commitment to
returning value to our shareholders. Since becoming

o
f

e

a publicly traded company in June 1999, RIR
has returned $1.5 billion to shareholders
through a combination of cash dividends gl
and share repurchases. / i

In July 2007, RJR increased its dividend /xé
by 13 percent to $3.50 per share on an /"
annualized basis. On December 31, 2001,
this represented a yield of 6.2 percent. RIR |
remains committed to maintaining an
attractive dividend.

RJR also accelerated its share repurchase program in
2001. During the year, we repurchased $494 million of out-
standing shares, more than twice the $231 million of stock
repurchased in 2000. Since the program's inception in
November 1999, the company has repurchased 18 percent
of the prior shares outstanding. In February 2002, the board
of directors authorized an additional $1 billion share repur-
chase program, which we expect to complete over the next
WO years.

Building strong brands is essential to the long-term
growth of the company. In the past year, Reynolds Tobacco

continued to strengthen its brand portfolio. The company’s
strategy to stabilize, then grow, the key brands is two-fold:
enhance brand equity while maintaining a competitive price.

Two sections of this report, Innovation and Connec-
tions, highlight the innovative products and packaging
Reynolds Tobacco has introduced as well as the marketing
programs that allow RJRT to connect one-on-one with

adult smaokers.

1

Santa Fe Natural Tobacco
Acquisition
RIR further strengthened its
ability to deliver earnings growth with
the January 2002 acquisition of Santa Fe
Natural Tobacco Company for $340
million in cash. In the first year, we project
that Santa Fe will contribute approximately
3 percent to RJR’'s ongoing net earnings.
Santa Fe's brand, Natural American
Spirit, is highly differentiated and has strong
brand loyalty. The brand’s net sales have tripled over the
last five years, driven by its core equity. Our strategy Is to
enhance the equity in Natural American Spirit by sharing,
where appropriate, marketing and manufacturing expertise.
To maintain the equity of the company and the brand,
Santa Fe continues to operate as a separate entity from
its headquarters in Santa Fe, New Mexico, and Natural
American Spirit is being made at its plant in Oxford,
North Carolina.
About 25 percent of Santa Fe's volume is sold inter-
nationally. While small, we believe there is opportunity for
growth from its existing base in several countries, including

Japan, Germany, Switzerland, the Netherlands and Australia.




In 2001, we once again proved our commitment to returning
value to our shareholders, Since becoming a publicly traded
company in june 1999, RIR has returned $1.5 billion to share-
holders through a combination of cash dividends and

share repurchases.

In January 2002, Reynolds Tobacco was recognized for
a second consecutive year by FORTUNE Magazine as one
of the “100 Best Companies to Work For” This honor is
a testament to the ingenuity, diligence and focus of the 8216
RIRT employees. In addition, the company’s benefits pro-
grams were ranked as being among the top 75 in the nation
by Money Magazine. This independent recognition of
Reynolds Tobacco's programs and people is extremely
gratifying to our employees, who work hard every day to
make RIRT a creative, innovative, rewarding place to work.

In closing, ! want to thank our employees, the board of
directors, our loyal customers and supportive shareholders

for helping to make 2007 a successful year.

@m/-ﬂén%

Andrew ). Schindler
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Carmel Turkisbt Jade, a sophristicated,
rtellow rriernnthrol linne exterisiorr, was
irnttrodiuced durirtg thie surmirrier of
2007. Carrnel Turkish1 Jade preserits
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Camel built on its reputation as a leader in market
innovation by offering adult smokers new and exciting products
in 2001. Camel’s new styles reinforce the brand’s exotic, flavorful,
fun image.

Camel Turkish Jade, a scphisticated, mellow menthol line
extension, was introduced during the summer of 2001, Modeled
after the exotic, highly differentiated Camel Turkish Gold line
extension a year earlier, Camel Turkish Jade presents an oppor-
tunity to grow share in the menthol category while continuing
to build interest in the Camel brand line.

In March 2002, Camel will begin offering the Exoric Blend
line in 17 western states. These special blends — {zmir Stinger, Crema,
Twist, Dark Mint, Mandarin Mint, Rare, and Rare Menthol -
complement the signacure Camel blend with flavors and spices
from around the world,

The Exortic Blends will be marketed in stylish tin packs with
graphics that reflect the exotic feel and premium quality and taste
of Camel. Within each tin pack, inserts describe the flavor of the
blends, the heritage of Camel and what makes the unique styles
a "Pleasure to Burn.”

These exciting new products, when combined with consis-
tent growth of the brand’s Lights Box styles, add up to make
Camel one of the fastest growing full-price cigarette brands in
the United States.

Camel’s marketplace strength is the result of the brand’s
strong “Pleasure to Burn” positioning, its long-popular blend of
Turkish and domestic tobaccos, and its authenticity and heritage

as an American icon brand since 1913.

The success of both
Camel Turkish Gold
and Camel Turkish
Jade are helping to
make Camel one of
the fastest growing
full-price cigarette

brands in the country.
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Camel Exotic Blends, available

in graphically striking tin packs,
complement the signature Camel
tobacco blend with flavors and

spices from around the world.
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THre Evo Flask linne is available irnn twvwo
evolved premiiurrt blerntds — a light bBlertd

; artd a rich1 blend. The light pack builds

OFrt WirIStort’s riew sigriatcture sifver ook
arnd the rich1 blentd iritcroduces a bold

rnew black package.




S2 combines a nevv‘,”'Smoot‘:h blend with a bold metalllc

of the Winsto

silver pack. S2 maintaihs_,th’emess‘enrce'

egraphics, whiile infrb—-

ducing an ultra—rr_loclefn,

embossed silver look
never before seen in

cigarette packaging.




Winston further defined its "No
Boundaries, No Bull” image with the june
2001 introduction of S2, a distinctive line

extension that combines a new, smooth blend
with a bold metallic silver pack.

Maintaining the essence of the brand’s packaging
image, including its signature wrap-around graphics,
S2 introduced an ultra-modern, embossed silver fook that
has never before been seen in cigarette packaging,

S2 offers adult smokers a smoother, light style of its
proprietary 100% First-Cut™, no-additive tobacco blend. It features
a distinctive white-tipped cigarette that delivers "quantum”
smooth tobacco taste.

Timed to coincide with S2's introduction, packaging for the
entire Winston base-brand family was updated, adding silver
highlights for a bold and modern brand image.

The new S2 gives Winston an even more distinct point-
of-difference and builds on previous product innovations.

fn 2002, Winston will introduce two new products under
the Evo Flask name. They combine a completely redesigned
pack with two ‘evolved” blends of Winston's 100% First-Cut™
premiurn tobacco. Evo Flask, available in both light and rich

blends, will be introduced in mid-year 2002.

: G Tigarae
B GERERALS WHARNIN R
S aimon Maraiee

The 2002 introduction of the Evo Flask
pack marks the first significant redesign
of the cigarette box in three decades.
The Flask pack, made of recyclable
plastic, is water-resistant, crush-proof
and designed to fit comfortably inside

pant or shirt pockets.
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Continuing to deliver on its promise of “Imagine Getting
More," in January 2002, Doral launched a comprehensive
brand upgrade.

The revitalized Doral features an enhanced tobacco biend
on key styles, contemporary new packaging and impactful
new advertising.

The improved blend incorporates higher-quality tobaccos
blended in a special double-blending process. The result is a
smoother, more flavorful and premium-tasting Doral.

New packaging that reinforces the high-quality product
inside is also being introduced. Boldly blended colors designate
full-flavor, lights, ultralights and menthol styles, all within a
modern, geometric design. Doral’s icon, the crown, is modern-
ized with two blended Ds.

Doral’s new advertising campaign illustrates the brand’s
new Splendidly Blended™ product while maintaining a fun and
friendly image. It features both strong graphic word messages,
such as "New Better Blended” and “You Gotta Taste This,” with
Splendidly Blended™ image ads.

By upgrading its product, packaging and image, Doral
is strengthening its position as the No. 1 savings brand in the
country. The upgrade reflects the brand’s promise to give adult

smokers more for their money - a premium

taste at a popular price.

Doral’s new advertising illustrates

the brand's new Splendidly Blended™
product while maintaining a fun and

Sriendly image.

11
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Scilesrrr’s ORB-e cormpetitior: provided
CrPFIErIirg aArtists aridd perforrrrers wWwitéz
caccess to leaders it thie fields of rriusic,
Fasbriorz, corredy caridcd art. Adul/t srrrokers
cowld order pririts of thie artwork thbrat
wor thhe ORB-& art cormmipetitiosz,, "Red
Bar” artd “Blue Barn” (above) thhrowugtz

a specical offer irisicde art-tirt packs.




Adult menthol smokers know that there’s more to Salem
than meets the eye.

While the brand’s unigue Slide Box™ packs and eye-
catching artist-designed tin packs attract adult smokers’
attention, it’s the smooth flavor of Salem’s menthol blends
that invites consumers to take “One Step Beyond”

The Slide Box™ products are available in Salem’s emphasis
markets. The Slide Box™ package was the industry’s first box-style
innovation in decades. The product inside includes a single
green-tipped cigarette, and offers a bolder tobacco taste than
the traditional Salem blend.

Also during 2001, Salem introduced four colorful, artist-
designed tin packs — collectively known as the Emerging Artist
Series ~ at select retail outlets in the brand’s emphasis markets.

This packaging promotion highlights original artwork
submitted during the brand’s 2000 ORB-e competition, which
provided emerging artists with access to leaders in the fields
of music, fashion, comedy and art.

The artist-designed tin packs were supported by retail
point-of-sale materials using Salem’s vibrant green-and-black
color scheme. Each display featured one or more of the color-
ful art-tin packages along with
the title of each design, and
a comment from the artist.

The art-tin packs support
Salem’s marketing strategy of
encouraging adult smokers to

take "One Step Beyond.’
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Reynolds Tobacco connects with adult
smokers through event sponsorships
that match smokers’ lifestyle interests
and activities, and through one-on-one

interaction in popular adult social venues.




The Camel brand inter-
acts with adult smokers through
its “Seven Pleasures of the Exotic”
events. The program features 700 parties in 70 cities, culmin-
ating in 350 contestants and their guests being invited to the
Ultimate Pleasure Party in New Orleans. In addition to the
700 Camel-sponsored parties, adult smokers receive game
pieces through the mail. These game pieces provide instant-
win opportunities for 70,000 adult smokers.
Camel also connects with adult smokers through
its nationwide Camel club program, where the brand rein-
forces loyalty among its customers and generates awareness
and trial among those who smoke competitive brands.
Camel regularly communicates with adult smokers
through CML — a combination magazine and catalog,

CML reinforces the brand's positioning, features

engaging articles, exclusive merchandise and brand

promotional offers.

Winston connects with adult smokers through
its NASCAR Winston Cup Series sponsorship.
Nothing is more exciting to a race fan
than watching the final lap of a
Winston Cup event as dozens of
drivers speed toward the checkered

flag at up to 200 miles per hour.
There’s no stronger partnership
in all of racing than Winston
and NASCAR. For more than
30 years, the Winston brand has
sponsored NASCAR's premier
racing series — the NASCAR Winston
Cup Series. Through this long-
term sponsorship, Winston
has achieved more than
a 25 percent at-event
share of adult smokers.
Winston has brought
the sport and its fans a signif-

icant number of innovative




and exciting programs,
including the Winston
Cup Championship purse,
B the points-leader bonus,
& .y The Winston Million,

y

> The Winston “No Bull 5"
’ driver-fan promotion, and
The Winston — the sport’s
all-star race.

During 2001, Winston connected with more than 550,000
adult smokers through its one-on-one marketing initiatives at
Winston Cup events.

In addition to the NASCAR Winston Cup Series, the
brand will connect with adult smokers through the next level
of its “No Boundaries, No Bull” promotion in 2002. By entering
the promotion, adult smokers will have the opportunity to
break the bounds of gravity, speed and centrifugal force by

winning a chance to attend a stock car, power-boat, or motor-

cycle racing school or experience a trip to the edge of space at
Mach 3 in a fighter plane.

Camel’s "Seven Pleasures
of the Exotic” program will
Sfeature 700 parties in 70
cities, culminating in the
Ultimate Pleasure Party

in New Orleans.

Winston connects with adult smokers at NASCAR Winston Cup

Series events and through its popular "No Boundaries, No Bull”

experfence-of-a-lifetime national sweepstakes.

17




Winning contestants in Salem’s

N L

2000 ORB-e competition were 9 e
“as yenn®

given the opportunity to connect
with leaders in the entertainment, art,

fashion and music fields throughout 2001.

Salem, Reynolds Tobacco's
popular premium menthol brand,
connected with adult smokers
during 2001 through its successful
“Slide Qver Challenge,” a personal-
selling program in retail outlets in the
brand’s emphasis markets.
Personal selling, with direct-mail follow-up, gave the
brand an opportunity to clearly communicate the unique
Slide Box™ product’s richer blend point-of-difference and
gain reconsideration of Salem from adult smokers of
competitive menthol brands.

For more than eight years, Doral has developed
a true community of the brand and its adult smokers
through relationship marketing. The brand maintains
ongoing communication with the Doral community
through the mail, in person and online. Doral exceeds
adult smoker expectations with product reward programs,
trips, contests and a wide array of articles featuring Doral
smokers and their lifestyles.

Each year, Doral hosts one of the country’s largest
customer-appreciation parties, the Doral Celebration. The
2007 all-day extravaganza, held in Nashville, Tennessee, and
attended by 2,500 Doral adult smokers and their guests from
more than 20 states, featured fun, food and festivities.

In 2001, Doral revitalized the tradition of collectible
cigarette cards with its Celebrate America Collector Cards.
The 50 States Series featured well-known landmarks and
facts from all 50 states. The Snapshots of the Century Series
depicted cultural and historical highlights of the 20th century
in America. Adult smokers received collector cards when

purchasing select Doral packs throughout the year.




In October 2001, Doral launched its own Internet

website, www.SmokersWelcome.com, as an extension of its

relationship marketing efforts. The site provides age-verified
smokers age 21 and older with an “online community”
created for and with smokers that is jam-packed with
information, tips and special offers.

Just as Reynolds Tobacco is dedicated to being the
leader in product and packaging innovation, the company
places a premium on connecting with adult smokers.

Doral has developed a true community
of the brand and its adult smokers
through relationship marketing. The
brand maintains ongoing communication
with adult smokers through the mall,

in person and online.
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RETURN TO SHAREHOLDERS

RJR is committed to making money for its shareholders.
[n 2007, the company increased its cash dividend by 13 percent;
more than doubled share repurchases; and announced the
acquisition of Santa Fe Natural Tobacco Company, inc.

On July 18, 2001, the RJR board of directors declared
an increase in the quarterly cash dividend on the company’s
common stock, raising the dividend from $3.10 to $3.50 on an
annualized basis. At the same time, the board voted to continue
the company’s share repurchase program, authorizing an
additional repurchase of up to $300 million of RJR's outstanding
common stock.

in 2001, RIR returned $814 million to shareholders through
cash dividends of $320 million and through the repurchase of
8.7 million shares for $494 million.

Since becoming a publicly traded company in June 1999,
RIR has returned a total of $1.5 billion to shareholders through
cash dividends and share repurchases, including the repurchase
of 20 million shares, 18 percent of prior shares outstanding,
for $780 million. RJR is committed to share repurchase as a
means of providing shareholder value, and in February 2002,
the board of directors authorized an additional $1 billion in
share repurchases.

On January 16, 2002, RjR completed its acquisition of
Santa Fe Natural Tobacco Company, Inc. for $340 million in cash.
Santa Fe manufactures and markets the successful Natural
American Spirit cigarette brand and other tobacco products.

Santa Fe is a company with a history of growth led by
a strong brand with a unique consumer appeal based on its
differentiated position in the market. This approach of building
brand equity is consistent with Reynoids Tobacco's strategy
for its four key brands.

RIR's decision to purchase Santa Fe Natural Tobacco was
based both on the company’s ability to further enhance RJR’s
earnings, as well as the strength and equity of the company and

its well-positioned Natural American Spirit brand.

TOTAL RETURN TO SHAREHOLDERS

Since June 1999, RIR has returned a total of $1.507
billion to shareholders, $780 million in share repurchases
and 5727 million in cash dividends.

SHARE REPURCHASE

$ millions

Q4-99 Q1-00 Q2-00 Q3-00 Q4-00 Q1-01 Q2-01 Q3-01 Q4-01
54.9 7041 45.0 55.0 612 482 1901 1304 1250

Since November 1999 RfR has repurchased 20 million
shares, or 18 percent of prior shares outstanding, for
$780 million.

STRONG BALANCE SHEET

$ billions

$9

C cash
O debt

c equity

: A
) e |} ’}
af= 0 I
?E 4 3 /
0 : il M%me e /
1999 2000 2001

At year-end 2007, RJR had $2.2 billion of cash and
short-term jnvestments; debt of $1.7 billion; and equity
of $8.0 billion.
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COMPANY PERFORMANCE
ONGOING EARNINGS PER SHARE

$4.50
4.00
3.50
3.00
2.50
2.00
1.50
1.00

.50

1999 2000 2001

RIR’s annual ongoing diluted earnings per share have
grown steadily since 1999, ending 2007 at $4.49, up
13 percent from 2000.

ONGOING NET INCOME

$ millions

$ 450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100

50

- 1999 2000 2001
Ongoing net income was $444 million in 2001,
compared with $404 million at year-end 2000 and
$369 million in 1999.

KEY BRANDS’ SHARE OF MARKET

21

Qg0 Q2-00 Q3-00 Q400 Qt-01 Q2-01 Q3-01  Q4-01
18.98 18.62 19.23 1943 19.21 19.03 18.99 18.76

The combined market share of Reynolds Tobacco’s
four key brands has remained stable at approximately
19 percent since 1999.
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Artyear-end 2007, RIR had $2.2 billion of cash and short-term
investments; debt of $1.7 billion; and equity of $8.0 billion. The
company's strong balance sheet — highlighted by a particularly
favorable cash position and a low debt-to-equity ratio — enhances
its ability to deliver an attractive return to shareholders.

Contributing to RJR’s financial strength was its December
2000 acquisition of Nabisco Group Holdings Corp. (NGH) for
approximately $9.8 billion. After payment to NGH shareholders
and other related costs, proceeds to RJR were $1.5 billion.

RIR's top priority for the use of its cash is to maximize
shareholder value. The company intends to continue to provide
an attractive dividend; continue to repurchase shares; and
pursie possible joint ventures, partnerships and acquisitions
where RJR has expertise, can add value and contribute to both
short- and long-term earnings.

RIR's ongoing annual net income and diluted earnings per
share have grown steadily since 1999. Ongoing net income for
2001 was $444 million, up 10 percent from 2000. That growth,
in combination with the effect of fewer shares outstanding due
to share repurchases, resulted in ongoing diluted earnings per
share of $4.49, a 13 percent increase over 2000.

In the marketplace, RJR Tobacco's goal s to stabilize, then
grow, share of market of its four key brands — Camel, Winston,
Salem and Doral. Since 1999, the brands’ combined share has
remained stable at approximately 19 percent.

As mentioned in the Innovation and Connections sec-
tions of this report, each of the four key RIRT brands has a
unigue image in the US. cigarette market. RJRT enhances brand
performance with innovative products and packaging as well as
marketing programs that allow Reynolds Tobacco to connect
one-on-one with adult smokers.

The creation of shareholder value, the ability to grow
earnings and cash flow, and the building of brand equity in the
marketplace all add up to a strong and vibrant RJR - positioned
to compete successfully in the years ahead.




\ ]

PEOPLE MAKE IT POSSIBLE

While innovation, connections and results are important milestones
on the road to success, it's the 8216 people of RIR and its subsidiaries who
are the driving force.

Named for a second time by FORTUNE Magazine as one of the
“100 Best Companies to Work For,” RJ. Reynolds Tobacco Company
has the right blend of people, products and performance to be counted
among America’s best employers. During 2001, the people of RJR and
its subsidiaries were recognized by numerous professional, academic,
governmental and civic organizations for their leadership roles.

John E. Hudson, a Reynolds Tobacco division sales manager in
Columbus, Ohio, and an officer in the US. Naval Reserve, was among the
RIRT employees called to active duty in 2001. In recognition of the critical
role servicemen and women play in our nation’s defense, Reynolds Tobacco
provides benefits to its military reserve employees well beyond those
required by law. This policy has gained the company recognition from the
National Committee for Employer Support of the Guard and Reserve.

Reynolds Tobacco's benefit plans helped secure the company a place
among the top 75 US. companies in Money Magazine's annual survey
of “Corporate America’s Best Benefits” Kathy Cissna, retirement plans
manager, says that Reynolds Tobacco's policy of offering employees both
a defined-benefit pension plan and a 401(k) plan helps to attract and retain
top talent.

For the 19th consecutive year, Reynolds Tobacco's research and devel-
opment department received the Qurtstanding Safety Achievement Award
from the N.C. Department of Labor. Al Gonzalez, a flavor chemist, credits his
co-workers' commitment to making safety a daily priority for that division’s
record of 4 million employee hours worked without a lost-time accident.

The Professional Engineers of North Carolina honored Reynolds
Tobacco during 2001 with its "Outstanding Employer of the Year” award.
Thien Phan, a principal engineer in tobacco processing, was one of 68
engineers offered mare than 3,000 hours of continuing education
conducted by the company specifically for engineering personnel.

Janet Wheeler, vice president of product chemistry and information
sciences, and Brenda Hodge, director of brand development, were honored
during the year with awards at the sixth annual Women of Color
Technology Awards Conference. Both were presented with certificates

of merit as "Women Who Make a Difference in Science and Technology.”

Special people. Special company. One of the best.

1) John Hudson,
2) Kathy Cissna, 3) Al Gonzalez,
4) Thien Phan, 5) Janet Wheeler and Brenda Hodge
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Board of

Andrew]. Sck

Mary K. Bush
President,

Chicago Stock Exchange

Denise Ilitch

President,

llitch Holdings, inc.

Vice Chairwoman,

Little Caesar Enterprises,-Inc.

John G. Medlin )r.
Chairman Emeritus,
Wachovia Corporation

Nana Mensah
Chairman and Chief Exi
‘Xports; Inc.

Shareholder Information

—

Form 10-K

Copies of the Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 37,
2001, are available, without charge, upon
request through the http//wwwrjrt.com

website or by written request to the office
of the Corporate Secretary, R). Reynolds
Tobacco Holdings, Inc, PO. Box 2866,
Winston-Salem, NC 27102-2866.

Exchange information

The company’s Common Stock is traded
on the New York Stock Exchange under
the symbol "RJR”

Annual Meeting of Shareholders
The annual meeting will be held in the
RIR Plaza Building Auditorium at RJR's
corporate offices, 401 North Main Street,
Winston-Salem, N.C, on April 24, 2002.
A notice of the annual meeting, together
with a form of proxy and a proxy state-
ment, will be sent to shareholders on
or about March 15, 2002, at which time
proxies will be solicited by the board
of directors.

Corporate Offices

R.J). Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc.

401 North Main Street

PO. Box 2866

Winston-Salem, NC 27102-2866

Phone (336) 741-5500, Fax (336) 741-5511
hetp://wwwirjrecom

Stock Transfer Agent/Registrar
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regarding RIR's future performance and financial results include risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results

to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements. These risks include the substantial and increasing

regulation and taxation of the cigarette industry; various legal actions, proceedings and claims arising out of the tobacco

business and the claimed health effects of cigarettes that are pending or may be instituted against the company and

its subsidiaries; the substantial payment obligations and limitations on the advertising and marketing of cigarettes under

various litigation settlement agreements; the continuing decline in volume in the domestic cigarette industry, competi-

tion from other cigarette manufacturers; the success of new product innovations and acquisitions; the effect of market

conditions on the performance of pension assets and the return on corporate cast; and the ratings of RIR securities.
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Item 1. Business

R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. was incorporated as a holding company in 1970, and is listed on
the NYSE as RJR. RJR’s wholly owned subsidiaries include its operating subsidiaries, R. J. Reynolds
Tobacco Company, referred to as RJR Tobacco, and Santa Fe Natural Tobacco Company, Inc. RJR also
wholly owns RJR Acquisition Corp.

RIJR has one reportable operating segment, RJIR Tobacco, which is the second largest cigarette
manufacturer in the United States. RJR Tobacco’s largest selling cigarette brands, CAMEL, WINSTON,
SALEM and DORAL, were four of the top ten best-selling brands of cigarettes in the United States in 2001.
Those brands, and its other brands, including VANTAGE, MORE, NOW, MONARCH and BEST VALUE,
are manufactured in a variety of styles and marketed in the United States to meet a range of adult smoker
preferences.

During 1999, RJR and Nabisco Group Holdings Corp., referred to as NGH, completed a series of
transactions to reorganize their businesses and capital structures. In May 1999, RJR and RJR Tobacco sold
the international tobacco business to Japan Tobacco Inc. As a result of this sale, RJR Tobacco’s business
consists exclusively of the manufacture and sale of cigarettes in the United States and its territories,
commonwealths, protectorates and possessions. A portion of the proceeds from the sale of the international
tobacco business was used by RJR to repurchase $4 billion of its debt. Additionally, RJR transferred $1.6
billion in cash proceeds, together with its 80.5% interest in Nabisco Holdings Corp., referred to as Nabisco, to
NGH through a merger transaction. In June 1999, NGH distributed all of the outstanding shares of RJR
common stock to NGH common stockholders of record as of May 27, 1999. Shares of RJR began trading
separately on June 15, 1999.

On December 11, 2000, RJR acquired its former parent, NGH, a non-operating public shell company
with no material assets or liabilities other than $11.8 billion in cash. RJR Acquisition Corp. paid $30 for each
outstanding share of NGH, or $9.8 billion in the aggregate, and was merged into NGH, with NGH being the
surviving corporation. After the merger, NGH changed its name to RJR Acquisition Corp. Net cash proceeds
to RJR Acquisition Corp. were $1.5 billion, after transaction costs and payments to NGH stockholders.

On January 16, 2002, RJR acquired 100% of the voting stock of privately held Santa Fe for $340 million
in cash, subject to post-closing adjustments. Fiesta Acquisition Corp., a wholly owned subsidiary of RJIR,
merged with and into Santa Fe, and Santa Fe, being the surviving corporation, became a wholly owned
operating subsidiary of RJR.

Santa Fe manufactures cigarettes, under the NATURAL AMERICAN SPIRIT brand, and other
tobacco products in the United States and currently markets its products primarily in the United States. The
financial condition and results of operations of Santa Fe do not meet the criteria as a reportable operating
segment. As a result, information related to Santa Fe is not disclosed separately in this document.

Industry Overview

U.S. cigarette shipments decreased at a compound annual rate of 1.6% from 1987 through 1997. After
declining 4.6% in 1998 and 9% in 1999, shipments remained relatively stable in 2000 and declined 3.2%, to
406.4 billion units in 2001. From December 1999 to December 2001, wholesale cigarette prices of the major
manufacturers increased $.52 per pack overall.

Competition

RIJR’s operating subsidiaries primarily conduct business in the highly competitive U.S. market with
several large participants. Based on data collected by Information Resources Inc./Capstone, during 2001,
2000 and 1999, Philip Morris Incorporated had an overall retail share of market of 50.45%, 50.37% and
49.58%, respectively. During these same years, RJR Tobacco had an overall share of 23.42%, 23.58% and
23.92%, respectively, and the remaining participants held lesser shares.
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Competition is primarily based on a brand’s products, positioning, consumer loyalty, retail display and
promotion and price. Substantial marketing support, merchandising display and competitive pricing generally
are required to maintain or improve a brand’s market position or to introduce a new brand. Increased selling
prices and higher cigarette taxes have resulted in increased competitive discounting and the proliferation of
deep-discount brands. The cost structures of manufacturers of these brands are less impacted by the Master
Settlement Agreement and other states settlement agreements than larger manufacturers.

Anti-smoking groups have attempted to restrict cigarette sales, cigarette advertising and the testing and
introduction of new cigarette products. The MSA, signed in late 1998, contains provisions restricting the
marketing of cigarettes. See “—Litigation Affecting the Cigarette Industry” for more discussion of the MSA.

Established cigarette brands usually have a competitive advantage in the United States because of
significant cigarette marketing restrictions. RJR Tobacco has repositioned or introduced brands designed to
appeal to adult smokers of competing brands in the United States, but there can be no assurance that such
efforts will be successful. See “—Marketing” for more discussion of RJR Tobacco’s marketing efforts.

Strategy
RIJIR’s goals are to:
o stabilize, then grow earnings and cash flow;
o deliver an attractive return to stockholders; and

o stabilize, then grow share of market for RJR Tobacco’s four key brands: CAMEL, WINSTON,
SALEM and DORAL.

Marketing

RIR’s operating subsidiaries are committed to providing unique products and increased value to adult
smokers. RJR Tobacco’s marketing programs are designed to strengthen each brand’s image, build brand
awareness and loyalty and attract adult smokers of competing brands, primarily in an effort to stabilize, then
grow share of market on RJR Tobacco’s four key brands. These brands’ retail share of market on a combined
basis has been relatively stable since 1999. RJR Tobacco utilizes a two-fold approach to market its key brands:
build strong brand equity while maintaining a competitive price. [n 2001, RJR Tobacco introduced many new
programs and products to build each brand’s equity and attract adult smokers of competitive brands.

CAMEL, RJR Tobacco’s largest brand, continued to deliver strong retail share of market growth in 2001.
The brand’s “Pleasure to Burn” positioning and new equity programs like the “Seven Pleasures of the Exotic”
continued to appeal to competitive adult smokers. New products also enhanced CAMEL’s performance in
2001. Following the successful launch of Turkish Gold in 2000, the brand introduced Turkish Jade, a menthol
line extension, in the third quarter of 2001.

WINSTON'’s share performance in 2001 benefited from the launch of new programs and products to
modernize the brand’s positioning. Contributing to WINSTON’s share increase was the introduction of the
“No Boundaries, No Bull” promotion offering adult smokers the chance to win a unique adventure. Beginning
in the second quarter, WINSTON introduced two new styles, S2 and S200’s, that feature a new blend and
high impact silver packaging. Silver highlights were added touthe packaging on the brand’s other styles,
extending the modernization of WINSTON’s image.

SALEM’s marketing efforts have been concentrated in its emphasis markets. In these markets, SALEM
offers unique programs and products like the Slide Box styles, which are blended to offer a richer tobacco taste
than other SALEM products. Although the results in the ten emphasis markets have been better than in the
balance of the country, the brand is evaluating opportunities to strengthen its performance.

DORAL’s marketing program continues to focus on exceeding adult smokers’ expectations with its
“Imagine Getting More” positioning. DORAL, the largest savings brand in the country, offers savings-
conscious adult smokers added value at a competitive price. Due to pricing pressure and the growth of deep-
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discount brands, DORAL’s share started to decline in the second quarter of 2001 after holding steady for
several quarters. To improve its performance, DORAL has recently launched a comprehensive upgrade of its
products and packaging with unique advertising to communicate the improvements.

In addition to its marketing programs discussed above, RJR Tobacco utilizes a defensive retail pricing
strategy, including discounting at retail, to defend its brands’ share of market against competitive pricing
pressure. RJR Tobacco continued to enhance its retail strategy during 2001, gaining increased promotional
coverage, broader retail presence and more competitive pricing.

On a combined basis, RJR Tobacco’s four key brands represent over 80% of its volume and share of
market. Additional RJR Tobacco full-price and savings products are offered to meet the diverse preferences of
aduit smokers. Other full-price brands include VANTAGE, MORE and NOW. In the savings category,
MONARCH, BEST VALUE and various private label brands are available for cost-conscious adult smokers.

RIJR Tobacco also is committed to finding ways to develop and market consumer-acceptable cigarettes
that may present less risk associated with smoking. In April 2000, RJR Tobacco launched a new test market
of ECLIPSE in the Dallas/Fort Worth area through direct mail and Internet sales to age-verified, adult
smokers. The Dallas/Fort Worth test market was expanded to include retail sales in January 2001. ECLIPSE
is a cigarette that primarily heats rather than burns tobacco. Although RJR Tobacco does not claim that
ECLIPSE presents smokers with less risk of cardiovascular disease or complications with pregnancy,
ECLIPSE may present less risk of cancer, chronic bronchitis and possibly emphysema when compared with
tobacco-burning cigarettes.

RIJR Tobacco continues to use advertisements in magazines read primarily by adults, direct mailings to
age-verified adult smokers and other means to market its brands and enhance their appeal among adult
smokers. RJR Tobacco continues to advertise and promote at retail cigarette locations and in other adult
venues where permitted. As a result of the MSA and other federal, state and local legislative and regulatory
restrictions, RJR Tobacco does not utilize television, radio or billboard advertising or certain other marketing
and promotional tools for cigarettes.

Manufacturing and Distribution

RJR Tobacco owns both of its cigarette manufacturing facilities, which are located in the Winston-
Salem, North Carolina area: Tobaccoville, a two-million-square-foot facility constructed in 1985; and the
Whitaker Park complex, which includes a one-and-one-half-million-square-foot plant, RJR Tobacco’s Central
Distribution Center and a pilot plant for trial manufacturing of new products. RJR Tobacco has a combined
production capacity of approximately 150 billion cigarettes per year, and believes its cigarette manufacturing
facilities are among the most technologically advanced in the United States.

RIR Tobacco sells its cigarettes primarily to distributors and wholesalers and to certain large retail stores,
which buy on a spot basis. RJR Tobacco distributes its cigarettes primarily to public warehouses located
throughout the United States that serve as local distribution centers for its customers. No significant backlog
of orders existed at December 31, 2001 or 2000.

During 2001, 2000 and 1999, sales made by RJR Tobacco to McLane Company, Inc. and its affiliate,
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., comprised 20%, 19% and 17%, respectively, of RJR’s consolidated revenue. No other
customer accounted for 10% or more of RJR’s revenue during those years.

Raw Materials

In its production of cigarettes, RJR Tobacco uses domestic burley and flue-cured leaf tobaccos, as well as
oriental tobaccos grown primarily in Turkey and Greece, and certain other non-domestic tobaccos. RJR
Tobacco believes there is a sufficient supply in the worldwide tobacco market to satisfy its current and
anticipated production requirements.




During 2001, RJR Tobacco primarily contracted directly with U.S. tobacco growers to purchase flue-
cured and burley leaf. The cost of tobacco purchased by contract from growers has not differed materially
from that purchased through the auction process.

RJR Tobacco has developed a simple, practical way to reduce tobacco-specific nitrosamines, or TSNAs,
by approximately 90% in flue-cured tobacco, and is converting to the use of low-TSNA flue-cured tobacco in
its cigarette blends.

Tobacco leaf is an agricultural product subject in the United States to government production controls
and price supports that can affect market prices substantially. The tobacco leaf price support program is
subject to congressional review and may be changed at any time. In December 1994, Congress enacted the
Uruguay Round Agreements Act to replace a domestic content requirement with a tariff rate quota system
that bases tariffs on import volumes. The tariff rate quotas have been established by the United States with
overseas tobacco producers and became effective on September 13, 1995.

Research and Development

RJR Tobacco’s research and development activities are located in its technologically advanced Bowman
Gray Technical Center in Whitaker Park. Scientists and engineers continue to create more efficient methods
of preparing tobacco blends and new products, as well as develop product enhancements and packaging that
differentiate CAMEL, WINSTON, SALEM, DORAL and other RJR Tobacco brands from competitive
brands. A major focus for research and development activity is the development of products that may present
less risk associated with smoking. RJR Tobacco’s research and development expense for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $64 million, $58 million and $59 million, respectively.

Intellectual Property

RJR’s operating subsidiaries own numerous trademarks, including the brand names of their cigarettes
and the distinctive elements of their packaging and displays. RJR’s operating subsidiaries’ material trademarks
are registered with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. Rights in these trademarks in the United States will
last as long as they continue to use the trademarks. The operating subsidiaries consider the blends and recipes
used to make each of their brands distinctive to be trade secrets. These trade secrets are not patented.

RIJR Tobacco sold most of its trademarks and patents outside the United States in connection with the
sale of the international tobacco business to Japan Tobacco Inc.

Legisiation and Other Matters Affecting the Cigarette Industry

The tobacco industry is subject to a wide range of laws and regulations regarding the advertising, sale,
taxation and use of tobacco products imposed by local, state, federal and foreign governments. Various state
governments have adopted or are considering, among other things, legislation and regulations increasing their
excise taxes on cigarettes, restricting displays and advertising of tobacco products, establishing fire safety
standards for cigarettes, raising the minimum age to possess or purchase tobacco products, requiring the
disclosure of ingredients used in the manufacture of tobacco products, imposing restrictions on public smoking
and restricting the sale of tobacco products directly to consumers or other unlicensed recipients or over the
Internet. In addition, in 2002, the U.S. Congress may consider legislation regarding further increases in the
federal excise tax, regulation of cigarette manufacturing and sale by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration,
implementation of a national standard for ‘“fire-safe” cigarettes and changes to the tobacco price support
program. Together with manufacturers’ price increases in recent years and substantial increases in state and
federal excise taxes on cigarettes, these developments have had and will likely continue to have an adverse
effect on cigarette sales. For further discussion of the regulatory and legislative environment applicable to the
cigarette business, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Governmental Activity” in Item 7.




Litigation Affecting the Cigarette Industry

Overview. Various tobacco-related legal actions and proceedings are pending or may be instituted
against RJR or its affiliates, including RJR Tobacco, or indemnitees. These actions and proceedings raise a
variety of claims, including product liability, health-care cost recovery, consumer protection, smuggling,
RICO, tax, antitrust and trade regulation claims. During 2001, 129 new tobacco-related actions were served
against RJR Tobacco and/or its affiliates or indemnitees, and 154 actions were dismissed or otherwise resolved
in favor of RJR Tobacco and/or its affiliates or indemnitees without trial. On December 31, 2001, there were
1,639 active cases pending, including approximately 1,237 individual smoker cases pending in West Virginia
state court as a consolidated action, as compared with 1,664 on December 31, 2000, and 541 on December 31,
1999. As of February 7, 2002, 1,657 active cases were pending against RJR Tobacco and/or its affiliates or
indemnitees: 1,652 in the United States; two in Puerto Rico and one in each of Canada, Israel and the
Marshall Islands. The U.S. case number does not include the 2,852 Broin II cases pending as of February 7,
2002, discussed below.

The U.S. cases, exclusive of the Broin II cases, are pending in 35 states and the District of Columbia. The
breakdown is as follows: 1,237 in West Virginia; 77 in New York; 58 in Florida; 52 in California; 29 in
Maryland; 28 in the District of Columbia; 27 in Louisiana; 23 in Mississippi; 12 in Iowa; 11 in Massachusetts;
10 in each of Missouri and New Jersey; 9 in Alabama; 8 in Texas; 7 in Georgia; 6 in each of Illinois and
Tennessee; 4 in each of New Hampshire, Nevada and Pennsylvania; 3 in each of Arizona, Connecticut,
Michigan, New Mexico and Ohio; 2 in each of Kansas, North Carolina, North Dakota and South Dakota; and
1 in each of Indiana, Maine, Minnesota, Oklahoma, Utah, Washington and Wisconsin. Of the 1,652 active
U.S. cases, 130 are pending in federal court, 1,518 in state court and 4 in tribal court. Most of these cases were
brought by individual plaintiffs, but many of these cases seek recovery on behalf of third parties or large
classes of claimants.

Theories of Recovery. The plaintiffs seek recovery on a variety of legal theories, including strict liability
in tort, design defect, negligence, special duty, voluntary undertaking, breach of warranty, failure to warn,
fraud, misrepresentation, unfair trade practices, conspiracy, aiding and abetting, unjust enrichment, indemnity,
medical monitoring, public nuisance and violations of state and federal antitrust and RICO laws. Punitive
damages, often in amounts ranging into the hundreds of millions or even billions of dollars, are specifically
pleaded in a number of cases, in addition to compensatory and other damages. Of the 1,652 active cases in the
United States, eight cases, plus the 2,852 Broin II cases, involve alleged nonsmokers claiming injuries resulting
from exposure to environmental tobacco smoke. Twenty-nine cases purport to be class actions on behalf of
thousands of individuals. Purported classes include individuals claiming to be addicted to cigarettes,
individuals and their estates claiming illness and death from cigarette smoking, persons making claims based
on alleged exposure to environmental tobacco smoke, African-American smokers claiming their civil rights
have been violated by the sale of menthol cigarettes, current smokers who have no tobacco-related disease but
are seeking to recover the costs of medical monitoring, purchasers of “light” and “ultra light” cigarettes
claiming to have been defrauded and seeking to recover the costs of their cigarette purchases, and Blue Cross
and Blue Shield subscribers seeking reimbursement for premiums paid. Approximately 59 cases seek recovery
of the cost of Medicaid/Medicare payments or other health-related costs paid for treatment of individuals
suffering from diseases or conditions allegedly related to tobacco use. Eleven cases, brought by entities
administering asbestos liability, seek contribution for the costs of settlements and judgments.

Defenses. The defenses raised by RJR Tobacco and/or its affiliates, including RJR, inclﬁde, where
applicable, preemption by the Federal Cigarette Labeling and Advertising Act of some or all such claims
arising after 1969, the lack of any defect in the product, assumption of the risk, contributory or comparative
fault, lack of proximate cause and statutes of limitations or repose. RJR has asserted additional defenses,
including jurisdictional defenses, in many of the cases in which it is named.

Industry Trial Results in Individual Smoker Cases. The tobacco industry in general, and RJR Tobacco
in particular, continue to win most individual smoking and health cases. In Anderson v. Fortune Brands, Inc., a
Brooklyn, New York jury found in favor of the industry, including RJR Tobacco, on June 27, 2000. The
plaintiff failed to perfect his appeal by submitting his brief and record by June 22, 2001. The Appellate
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Division dismissed the appeal on September 18, 2001. In Nunnally v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., a
Mississippi state court jury found RJR Tobacco not liable on July 12, 2000. Plaintiff’s motion for judgment
notwithstanding the verdict, or in the alternative, for a new trial, was denied, and plaintiff’s appeal to the
Mississippi Supreme Court is pending. On January 16, 2001, a Brooklyn, New York state court jury returned a
verdict in favor of RJR Tobacco and other cigarette manufacturers in Apostolou v. American Tobacco Co. On
September 7, 2001, the plaintiff appealed the final judgment to the Appellate Division of the New York
Supreme Court. In Little v. Brown & Williamson Tobacco Corp., a South Carolina federal district court judge
granted a directed verdict in favor of RJR Tobacco on January 30, 2001. The jury rendered a verdict in favor
of the remaining defendant, Brown & Williamson, on February 6, 2001. The plaintiff voluntarily dismissed her
appeal to the United States Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit on April 19, 2001. On March 7, 2001, in
Grinnell v. Brown & Williamson Tobacco Corp., a Texas state court jury returned a verdict in favor of Brown
& Williamson. On May 16, 2001, a state court jury in New Jersey returned a verdict in favor of RJR Tobacco
and Philip Morris in Mehiman v. Philip Morris, Inc. On October 5, 2001, an Ohio federal court jury returned a
unanimous verdict in favor of Philip Morris, Brown & Williamson and Lorillard in Tompkin v. American
Tobacco Co. On October 23, 2001, plaintiff filed a motion for a new trial. The judge in this case referred the
parties to mediation in order to avoid the transaction costs associated with an appeal. The mediation failed and
the case was returned to the presiding judge who then denied plaintiff’s motion for a new trial. Finally, on
November 13, 2001, a state court judge in Connecticut granted Brown & Williamson’s motion for a directed
verdict in DuJack v. Brown & Williamson Tobacco Co.

RJR Tobacco has prevailed in virtually all individual smoker cases that have gone to trial. However, in
Whiteley v. Raybestos-Manhattan, Inc., a tobacco-asbestos synergy case brought in San Francisco Superior
Court, the jury found against RJR Tobacco and Philip Morris on March 20, 2000, and awarded $1.7 million in
compensatory damages. On March 27, 2000, the same jury awarded $20 million in punitive damages, $10
million against RJR Tobacco and $10 million against Philip Morris. RJR Tobacco and Philip Morris have
appealed. In Jones v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., a wrongful death case, a Tampa state court jury found
against RJR Tobacco on October 12, 2000. Although the jury found that RJR Tobacco was negligent and
liable, it refused to find that RJR Tobacco was part of a conspiracy to defraud. The jury awarded
approximately $200,000 in compensatory damages; however, the jury refused to award punitive damages. On
December 28, 2000, the trial judge granted RJR Tobacco’s motion for a new trial. The ptaintiff has appealed
the new trial ruling to the Florida Second District Court of Appeal. Most recently, in Kenyon v. R. J. Reynolds
Tobacco Co., on December 12, 2001, a Tampa jury determined that Floyd Kenyon had been adequately
warned about the risks of smoking and that RJR Tobacco was not negligent in designing its products. The jury
did find that some of RJR Tobacco’s products were defective and awarded the plaintiff $165,000 in
compensatory damages. RJR Tobacco believes that the jury’s findings were not supported by the evidence in
the case. Accordingly, on December 26, 2001, RJR Tobacco asked the court to set aside the verdict or to grant
a new trial. A hearing on RJR Tobacco’s motion has been scheduled for February 27, 2002.

Juries have found for plaintiffs in six smoking and health cases in which RJR Tobacco was not a
defendant. Two of the verdicts were overturned on appeal and have been dismissed; three others are on appeal;
and damages have been paid in one case. In February 1999, in Henley v. Philip Morris, Inc., a San Francisco
state court jury awarded an individual smoker $1.5 million in compensatory damages and $50 million in
punitive damages. In April 1999, the trial judge reduced the punitive damages award to $25 million, but
otherwise denied Philip Morris” post-trial motions challenging the verdict. Cn November 7, 2001, a California
appellate court upheld the jury’s 1999 verdict against Philip Morris. Philip Morris has appealed that decision
to the California Supreme Court, which accepted the appeal on a “grant and hold” basis (another appeal has
to be decided prior to ruling on the Henley petition). In Williams v. Philip Morris, Inc., an Oregon state court
jury awarded the plaintiff $800,000 in actual damages, $21,500 in medical expenses and $79 million in
punitive damages. The judge reduced the punitive damages to $32 million. Philip Morris’ appeal is pending.
On June 6, 2001, in Boeken v. Philip Morris, Inc., a California state court jury found in favor of the plaintiff
and awarded approximately $5.5 million in compensatory damages and $3 billion in punitive damages. Philip
Morris filed motions to reduce the damages, for judgment notwithstanding the verdict or for a new trial. On
August 9, 2001, plaintiff agreed to the court’s recommendation that the $3 billion punitive damages award be
reduced to $100 million. On September 7, 2001, Philip Morris filed its notice of appeal to the California Court
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of Appeals. In Carter v. American Tobacco Co., the Florida Supreme Court, on November 22, 2000,
reinstated the jury verdict against Brown & Williamson. According to press reports, Brown & Williamson paid
approximately $1.09 million to the plaintiff on February 8, 2001. On June 29, 2001, the U.S. Supreme Court
declined to review the case, thus leaving the jury verdict intact.

Broin II Cases. As of February 7, 2002, approximately 2,852 lawsuits brought by individual flight
attendants for personal injury as a result of illness allegedly caused by exposure to secondhand tobacco smoke
in airplane cabins, referred to as the Broin II cases, are pending in Florida. In these lawsuits, filed pursuant to
the terms of the settlement of the Broin v. Philip Morris, Inc. class action, discussed below, each individual
flight attendant will be required to prove that he or she has a disease caused by exposure to secondhand smoke
in airplane cabins.

On October 5, 2000, Judge Robert Kaye entered an order applicable to all Broin II cases that the terms of
the Broin settlement agreement do not require the individual Broin II plaintiffs to prove the elements of strict
liability, breach of warranty or negligence. Under this order, there is a rebuttable presumption in plaintiffs’
favor on those elements, and plaintiffs bear the burden of proving that their alleged adverse health effects
actually were caused by exposure to environmental tobacco smoke. Although defendants still may prevail on
causation and other theories, RJR Tobacco does not believe that the order is correct under Florida law or that
it accurately reflects the intent of the Broin settlement agreement. Accordingly, defendants appealed Judge
Kaye’s ruling to the Third District Court of Appeal on November 3, 2000. Plaintiffs moved to dismiss the
appeal on November 28, 2000. On January 12, 2001, the Third District Court of Appeal denied plaintiffs’
motion and ordered oral argument. On October 10, 2001, a different panel of the Third District Court of
Appeal dismissed the appeal, finding that Judge Kaye’s order is not an appealable order at this time, but noted
that the ruling is without prejudice to the defendants’ ability to appeal the issue at the appropriate time. On
January 16, 2002, defendants filed a writ to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of the Florida Supreme Court.

On April 5, 2001, in the first Broin IT flight attendant case to go to trial, Fontana v. Philip Morris, Inc., a
Florida state court jury returned a verdict in favor of the defendants, including RJR Tobacco. On April 16,
2001, plaintiff filed motions for a mistrial, judgment notwithstanding the verdict, or for a new trial. On
October 1, 2001, the trial judge denied plaintiff’s post-trial motions. Plaintiff appealed to the Florida Third
District Court of Appeal. Defendants cross-appealed on November 8, 2001.

Class Action Suits. In May 1996, in Castano v. American Tobacco Co., the Fifth Circuit Court of
Appeals overturned the certification of a nationwide class of persons whose claims related to alleged addiction
to tobacco. Since this ruling by the Fifth Circuit, most class-action suits have sought certification of statewide,
rather than nationwide, classes.

Class action suits based on claims similar to those asserted in Casfano have been brought against RJR
Tobacco, and in some cases RJR, in state or federal courts in Alabama, Arkansas, California, the District of
Columbia, Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Kansas, Louisiana, Maryland, Massachusetts,
Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, Nevada, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, Ohio,
Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Virginia, West Virginia and Wisconsin. In
addition, a class action filed in Tennessee seeks reimbursement of Blue Cross and Blue Shield premiums paid
by subscribers throughout the United States and class-action suits in Illinois, Missouri and New Jersey claim
that the marketing of “light” and “ultralight” cigarettes is deceptive. Plaintiffs have made similar claims in
other lawsuits elsewhere. Other types of class-action suits also have been filed in additional jurisdictions. Most
of these suits assert claims on behalf of classes of individuals who claim to be addicted, injured or at greater
risk of injury by the use of tobacco or exposure to environmental tobacco smoke, or the legal survivors of such
persons. A number of unions and other third-party payors have filed health-care cost recovery actions in the
form of class actions. These cases are discussed separately below. Class certification motions are pending in
several state and federal courts.

Few smoker class-action complaints have been certified or, if certified, have survived on appeal. All 16
federal courts that have considered the issue, including two courts of appeals, have rejected class certification
in smoker cases. On March 19, 2001, in Guillory v. American Tobacco Co., Inc., the United States District
Court for the Northern District of Illinois refused to certify a class defined as “all Illinois residents who smoke
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or smoked cigarettes manufactured by defendants, who started smoking while a minor, who purchase or
purchased cigarettes in Illinois and who desire to participate in a program designed to assist them in the
cessation of smoking and/or monitor their medical condition to promote early detection of disease caused by,
contributed, or exacerbated by cigarette smoking.” On May 17, 2001, in Brown v. Philip Morris, Inc., the
United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit affirmed the trial court’s dismissal of a proposed class
action alleging the violation of civil rights by the targeting of “African-American smokers.” On June 29, 2001,
the United States District Court for the District of Nevada denied plaintiffs’ motions for class certification in
three cases involving casino workers exposed to environmental tobacco smoke and one case involving smokers
with injuries allegedly caused by smoking. These four cases, which were consolidated for class certification
purposes, are: (1) Badillo v. American Tobacco Co., Inc.; (2) Christensen v. Philip Morris Cos., Inc.; (3)
Dienno v. Liggett Group, Inc.; and (4) Selcer v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co. Most recently, two cases,
Mahoney v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co. and Davis v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., were denied class
certification by the United States District Court for the Southern District of [owa.

Similarly, most state courts have refused to certify smoker class actions. On December 8, 2000, in Geiger
v. American Tobacco Co., the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of New York, Second Judicial
Department, affirmed the trial court’s denial of class action status to a purported class defined as all New York
residents, including their heirs, representatives and estates, who contracted lung and/or throat cancer as a
result of smoking cigarettes. Plaintiffs filed a motion for leave to appeal the order denying certification to the
New York Court of Appeals, the highest court in the state. The New York Court of Appeals dismissed
plaintiffs’ appeal on February 13, 2001.

Classes have been certified thus far in several state court class-action cases in which RJR Tobacco is a
defendant. On November 5, 1998, in Scott v. American Tobacco Co., a Louisiana state appeals court affirmed
the certification of a medical monitoring and/or smoking cessation class of Louisiana residents who were
smokers on or before May 24, 1996. On February 26, 1999, the Louisiana Supreme Court denied the
defendants’ petition for writ of certiorari and/or review. Jury selection began on June 18, 2001. Defendants
appealed the jury selection process to the Louisiana Fourth Circuit Court of Appeal on July 18, 2001. On
September 4, 2001, the Court of Appeal dismissed two jurors because of bias, but declined to dismiss jurors
with immediate family members who were members of the class. On September 5, 2001, defendants sought
review by the Louisiana State Supreme Court. On September 25, 2001, the Louisiana State Supreme Court
dismissed seven additional jurors because they have immediate family members who are members of the class
and the seven jurors expressed a desire that those family members receive medical monitoring or smoking
cessation assistance. On QOctober 9, 2001, the defendants asked the Louisiana Supreme Court to declare a
mistrial because of the irregularities in the jury selection process. This petition was denied on October 15,
2001. Jury selection resumed again on October 22, 2001, and a full complement of 12 jurors and 10 alternates
was selected. On December 26, 2001, defendants’ filed an application for supervisory writ to the Fourth
District of the Louisiana Court of Appeals challenging certain aspects of the second round of jury selection.
Opening statements will not occur until that writ is decided.

Trial began on January 4, 2001, in Blankenship v. Philip Morris, Inc., a West Virginia state court medical
monitoring class action. The trial of this case ended on January 25, 2001, when the judge declared a mistrial.
Argument on decertification of the class, among other things, was held on February 19, 2001. On March 23,
2001, the judge denied the defendants’ motion to decertify the class. The retrial of this case began on
September 5, 2001, and ended on November 14, 2001, when the jury returned a verdict in favor of RJR
Tobacco and other cigarette manufacturers.

On November 30, 2000, in Daniels v. Philip Morris Cos., Inc., a San Diego Superior Court judge reversed
a prior ruling and, based on a California unfair business practices statute, certified a class consisting of all
persons who, as California resident minors, smoked one or more cigarettes in California between April 2, 1994
and December 1, 1999. Trial has been scheduled for July 1, 2002.

On April 11, 2001, in Brown v. American Tobacco Co., Inc., the same judge granted in part plaintiffs’
motion for class certification. The class is composed of adult residents of California who smoked at least one of
defendants’ cigarettes “during the applicable time period,” and who were exposed to defendants’ marketing
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and advertising activities in California. Certification was granted as to plaintiffs’ claims that defendants
violated §17200 of the California Business and Professions Code. The court, however, refused to certify the
class under the California Legal Remedies Act. Class certification on plaintiffs’ common law claims was
denied on April 10, 2000. Defendants petitioned the California Supreme Court to review the trial court’s class
certification ruling, but the Supreme Court denied the petition on January 16, 2002. The trial has been
scheduled for October 11, 2002.

Most recently, on November 14, 2001, in Turner v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., an Illinois state court
judge certified a class defined as “[a]ll persons who purchased defendants’ Doral Lights, Winston Lights,
Salem Lights and Camel Lights, in Illinois, for personal consumption, between the first date that defendants
sold Doral Lights, Winston Lights, Salem Lights and Camel Lights through the date the court certifies this
suit as a class action . . . .” Trial is scheduled for March 17, 2003. This case currently includes both RJR and
RIJR Tobacco as defendants.

Defendants, inciuding RJR Tobacco, settled one class-action suit, Broin v. Philip Morris, Inc., in October
1997. The Florida Court of Appeal denied challenges to this settlement on March 24, 1999, and subsequently
denied motions to reconsider. On September 7, 1999, the Florida Supreme Court dismissed all proceedings,
and the settlement and judgment became final. The Broin II cases, discussed above, arose out of the
settlement of this case.

Trial began in July 1998 in Florida state court in Engle v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., in which a class
consisting of Florida residents, or their survivors on their behalf, claim to have diseases or medical conditions
caused by their alleged “addiction” to cigarettes. On July 7, 1999, the jury found against RJR Tobacco and
the other cigarette manufacturer defendants in the initial phase, which included common issues related to
certain elements of liability, general causation and a potential award of or entitlement to punitive damages.

The second phase of the trial, which consisted of the claims of three of the named class representatives,
began on November 1, 1999. Gn April 7, 2000, the jury returned a verdict against all defendants. They
awarded plaintiff Mary Farnan $2.85 million, the estate of plaintiff Angie Della Vecchia $4.023 million and
plaintiff Frank Amodeo $5.831 million. The jury also found, however, that Frank Amodeo knew or should
have known of his claim prior to May 5, 1990. The legal effect of that finding should be to bar his claim based
on the applicable statute of limitations.

The trial court also ordered the jury in the second phase of the trial to determine punitive damages, if any,
on a class-wide basis. On July 14, 2000, the jury returned a punitive damages verdict in favor of the “Florida
class” of approximately $145 billion against all the defendants, with approximately $36.3 billion being assigned
to RJR Tobacco.

On July 24, 2000, the defendants, including RJR Tobacco, filed numerous post-verdict motions, including
motions for a new trial and to reduce the amount of the punitive damages verdict. On November 6, 2000, the
trial judge denied the post-trial motions and entered judgment. On November 7, 2000, RJR Tobacco posted
an appeal bond in the amount of $100 million, pursuant to a Florida statute enacted on May 9, 2000, and
intended to apply to the Engle case, and initiated the appeals process. The opening appellate brief of certain
defendants, including RJR Tobacco, was filed on November 26, 2001. RJR Tobacco believes it has numerous
bases for a successful appeal, although it capnot predict the outcome of the appellate process.

On May 7, 2001, three of the defendants entered into agreements with the Engle class to deposit an
additional $1.86 billion into separate escrow accounts to ensure that the stay of execution that is in effect
pursuant.to the Florida bond statute will remain in effect as to these three defendants throughout the appellate
process, regardless of the results of a challenge, if any, to the Florida bond statute. Approximately $700 million
of the total amount deposited by these three defendants is non-refundable and will go to the trial court to be
distributed, regardless of the result of the appeal. RJIR Tobacco has not entered into a similar agreement with
the Engle class. Although RJR Tobacco cannot predict the outcome of any possible challenges to the Florida
bond statute, RJR Tobacco remains confident of the applicability and validity of the statute in the Engle case.
In addition, nine other states, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Nevada, North Carolina, Oklahoma, South
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Carolina, Virginia and West‘Virginia, have enacted legislation similar to the Florida bond statute. The
Mississippi Supreme Court also has placed limits on appeal bonds by court rule.

Governmental Health-Care Cost Recovery Cases. In June 1994, the Mississippi attorney general
brought an action, Moore v. American Tobacco Co., against various industry members, including RJR
Tobacco. This case was brought on behalf of the state to recover state funds paid for health care and medical
and other assistance to state citizens suffering from diseases and conditions allegedly related to tobacco use.
By making the state the plaintiff in the case and basing its claims on economic loss rather than personal injury,
the state sought to avoid the defenses otherwise available against an individual plaintiff. Most other states,
through their attorneys general or other state agencies, sued RJR Tobacco and other U.S. cigarette
manufacturers based on similar theories. The cigarette manufacturer defendants, including RJR Tobacco,
settled the first four of these cases scheduled to come to trial, those of Mississippi, Florida, Texas and
Minnesota, by separate agreements between each state and those manufacturers in each case.

On November 23, 1998, the major U.S, cigarette manufacturers, including RJR Tobacco, entered into
the Master Settlement Agreement with attorneys general representing the remaining 46 states, the District of
Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin Islands, American Samoa and the Northern Marianas. The MSA
became effective on November 12, 1999, when final approval of the settlement was achieved in 80% of the
settling jurisdictions. As of October 17, 2000, final approval had been achieved in all settling jurisdictions. The
MSA settled all the health-care cost recovery actions brought by, or on behalf of, the settling jurisdictions and
contains releases of various additional present and future claims.

In the settling jurisdictions, the MSA released RJR Tobacco, indemnitees and RJR from: (1) all claims
of the settling states and their respective political subdivisions and other recipients of state health-care funds,
relating to past conduct arising out of the use, sale, distribution, manufacture, development, advertising,
marketing or health effects of, the exposure to, or research, statements or warnings about, tobacco products
and (2) all monetary claims relating to future conduct arising out of the use of, or exposure to, tobacco
products that have been manufactured in the ordinary course of business.

o ‘Monetary Liabilities. In addition to payments already made, the MSA calls for additional initial
industry payments of approximately $2.6 billion and $2.7 billion in 2002 and 2003, respectively. A
substantial portion of the payment due in 2002 was prepaid in 2001 to obtain the tax benefit of the carly
payment. The MSA also requires perpetual annual industry payments, which started in 2000. The
unadjusted annual payment currently is $6.5 billion and increases to $8 billion in 2004, to $8.14 billion in
2008 and finally to $9 billion in 2018 and thereafter. Ten additional payments of $861 million are due
annually beginning in April 2008. All payments are to be allocated among the companies on the basis of
relative market share and most are subject to adjustments for changes in sales volume, inflation and other
factors. RJR Tobacco records its allocation of charges in cost of goods sold as products are shipped.

The tobacco companies also agreed to (1) make a one-time payment of $50 million on March 31,
1999, to establish a fund for enforcement of the MSA and laws relating to tobacco products and (2) fund
activities of the National Association of Attorneys General relating to the MSA at the cost of $150,000
per year for ten years.

In addition, the MSA calls for the creation of a national foundation to support the study of, and
programs to reduce, youth tobacco product usage and youth substance abuse, and the study of
educational programs to prevent diseases associated with tobacco product use. The tobacco companies
agreed to fund the foundation with (1) ten annual payments of $25 million, which began on March 31,
1999, (2) further payments of $250 million, which began on March 31, 1999, and $300 million annually
thereafter for four years, and (3) additional annual payments of $300 million beginning in 2004 if, during
the year preceding the year when payment is due, participating manufacturers collectively accounted for
at least 99.05% of the cigarette market. Each of these payments is to be allocated among the companies
on the basis of relative market share. Other than the $25 million annual payments and the $250 million
payment made on March 31, 1999, the payments for the foundation are subject to adjustments for
changes in sales volume, inflation and other factors.
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The manufacturers also agreed to pay the litigation costs, including government attorneys’ fees,. of
the offices of the attorneys general relating to the settled cases and, subject to certain quarterly and
annual payment caps, the costs and fees of outside counsel to the jurisdictions. Outside counsel fees have
been determined either by arbitration or in accordance with a negotiated fee procedure. Awards
determined by arbitration will be paid subject to an aggregate annual cap on arbitrated attorneys’ fees for
all these and certain other settled cases of $500 million. Fees set by the negotiated fee procedure are
subject to an annual cap of $250 million, and will not exceed a total of $1.25 billion. As of February 7,
2002, publicly announced awards determined by arbitration totaled approximately $11.7 billion, and
awards determined in accordance with a negotiated fee procedure totaled approximately $626 million.
Reimbursement of costs is capped at $150 million for litigation costs, including government attorneys’
fees, of the attorneys’ general offices and at $75 million annually for outside counsels’ costs. Payments for
attorneys’ fees and costs are to be allocated on a relative market share basis.

o Growers’ Trust. As part of the MSA, the tobacco companies agreed to work with U.S. tobacco
growers to address the possible adverse economic impact of the MSA on growers. As a result, RIR
Tobacco and the three other major manufacturers agreed to participate in funding a $5.2 billion trust fund
to be administered by a trustee, in conjunction with a certification entity from each of the tobacco
growing states. The trust agreement provides for a schedule of aggregate annual payments, subject to
various adjustments, that are payable in quarterly instaliments each year from 1999 through 2010. The
aggregate annual payment by all participating manufacturers is adjusted each year for inflation and any
change in the total domestic cigarette volume of all participating manufacturers. In general, the annual
payment by each participating manufacturer, including RJR Tobacco, is based on each manufacturer’s
relative market share of total domestic cigarette shipments during the preceding calendar year. Each
manufacturer’s annual payment is also subject to a tax offset adjustment.

o Other MSA Obligations. The MSA also contains provisions restricting the marketing of
cigarettes. Among these are restrictions or prohibitions on the use of cartoon characters, brand name
sponsorships, brand name non-tobacco products, outdoor and transit brand advertising, payments for
product placement, free sampling and lobbying. The MSA also required the dissolution of three industry-
sponsored research and advocacy organizations.

RJR Tobacco’s settlement expenses under these agreements were $2.6 billion, $2.3 billion and $2.2
billien in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The cash payments made by RJR Tobacco under the MSA and
other existing settlement agreements were $2.4 billion, $2.2 billion and $1.6 billion in 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. RJR Tobacco estimates these payments to be $2.4 billion in 2002 and to exceed $2 billion per
year thereafter. However, these payments will be subject to adjustments based upon, among other things, the
volume of cigarettes sold by RJR Tobacco, RJR Tobacco’s market share and inflation.

Certain litigation has arisen challenging the validity of the MSA, including cases with claims that the
MSA violates antitrust laws. On January 5, 2001, the United States District Court for the Northern District of
California dismissed one of those cases, Forces Action Project v. California. On August 15, 2001, the United
States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit remanded the antitrust claim, but affirmed the district court’s
dismissal of the remaining claims. On January 135, 2002, the United States District Court judge denied
plaintiffs’ motion to amend the complaint which effectively dismissed the case.

Six actions are pending against RJR Tobacco alleging various violations of the MSA. RJR Tobacco
believes it has meritorious defenses to each of these actions.

Arizona, California, New York and Washington have alleged that the posting of signage advertising RJR
Tobacco’s brand name sponsorships violates a provision of the MSA governing the times during which such
signs may be posted. On November 16, 2001, in the Arizona signage action, the trial court granted summary
judgment in favor of the state. On November 27, 2001, the trial court ruled similarly in the California signage
matter. However, on February 1, 2002, a New York trial court upheld RJR Tobacco’s position. Appeals of all
of these decisions are pending or anticipated. Trial in the Washington matter is scheduled for August 5, 2002.
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The State of Ohio has alleged that RJR Tobacco’s purchase of advertising space on matchbooks
distributed by an independent third party violates a provision of the MSA governing brand name merchandise.
In November 2001, the trial court heard arguments on the parties’ cross-motions for summary judgment and
took the motions under advisement.

Finally, the State of California has alleged that the publications in which RJR Tobacco places advertising
evidences direct or indirect targeting of youth which is prohibited by the MSA. Pretrial discovery is
proceeding, and the trial is scheduled for April 19, 2002.

On June 8, 2001, the Attorney General of the State of California filed a lawsuit against RJR Tobacco in
California state court alleging that RJR Tobacco violated California state law by distributing free cigarettes
and free coupons for discounts on cigarettes on “public grounds,” even though the promotions occurred in an
“adult-only facility” at a race track. RJR Tobacco answered the complaint on July 19, 2001, asserting that its
promotions complied with all laws, including California state law. The trial is scheduled for April 30, 2002.

On April 20, 1999, the Canadian Province of British Columbia brought a case in British Columbia
Provincial Court, similar to the U.S. attorneys’ general cases discussed above, against RJR Tobacco and
certain other Canadian and U.S. tobacco companies and their parent companies, including RJR. This lawsuit
relied heavily upon special legislation enacted in British Columbia that was separately challenged by various
Canadian tobacco companies. An agreement was reached with the government in British Columbia to litigate
the separate constitutional challenges prior to the health-care cost recovery action. On February 21, 2000, the
British Columbia Supreme Court declared the Cost Recovery Act unconstitutional and dismissed the action.
This decision was not appealed by the government. On January 24, 2001, the Canadian Province of British
Columbia brought a second action in British Columbia Provincial Court. A trial is likely to occur in October
2002.

On September 22, 1999, the U.S. Department of Justice brought an action in the United States District
Court for the District of Columbia against various industry members, including RJR Tobacco. The
government sought to recover federal funds expended in providing health care to smokers who have developed
diseases and injuries alleged to be smoking-related, and, in addition, seeks, pursuant to the federal RICO
statute, disgorgement of profits the government contends were earned as a consequence of a RICO
racketeering “enterprise.” On December 27, 1999, defendants filed a motion to dismiss challenging all counts
included in the action brought by the DOJ. On June 6, 2000, the trial court heard oral argument on the
motion. On September 28, 2000, federal court Judge Gladys Kessler of the United States District Court for
the District of Columbia granted the non-Liggett defendants’ motion to dismiss the following counts of
plaintiff’s complaint: (1) Medical Care Recovery Act claim, and (2) Medicare Secondary Payer claim. The
court, however, denied the motion with respect to the RICO claims. On October 13, 2000, the United States
filed a motion to limit Judge Kessler's September 28, 2000 order to claims for payments under Medicare and
the Federal Employee Health Benefits Act.

Discovery in the DOJ lawsuit is ongoing, and trial has been scheduled for July 15, 2003. RJR Tobacco
believes it has meritorious factual and legal defenses to that lawsuit. In June 2001, the United States Attorney
General assembled a team of three DOJ lawyers to work on a possible settlement of the federal lawsuit. The
DO1J lawyers met with representatives of the tobacco industry, including RJR Tobacco, on July 18, 2001. No
settlement was reached and no further meetings are planned.

Union Cases. Although the MSA settled some of the most potentially burdensome health-care cost
recovery actions, many other such cases have been brought by other types of plaintiffs. As of February 7, 2002,
approximately 14 lawsuits by union trust funds against cigarette manufacturers and others are pending. The
funds seek recovery of payments made by them for medical expenses of their participant union members and
their dependents allegedly injured by cigarettes. The claims in these cases are almost identical, and several of
these cases purport to be class actions on behalf of alt union trust funds in a particular state.

The defendants in these actions argue, among other things, that one who pays an injured person’s medical
expenses is legally too remote to maintain an action against the person allegedly responsible for the injury. In
addition, they argue that the traditional subrogation remedy cannot be supplanted by a direct right of action
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for the trust fund that strips defendants of the defenses they would ordinarily have against the allegedly injured
individual. '

On March 29, 1999, in the first of these cases to be considered by a federal court of appeals, Steamfitters
Local Union 420 v. Philip Morris, Inc., the United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit affirmed a
district court ruling dismissing the case on remoteness grounds. Since then, the U.S. Courts of Appeals for the
Second, Third, Fifth, Seventh, Eighth, Ninth and Eleventh Circuits have all ruled in favor of the industry in
similar union cases. On January 10, 2000, the United States Supreme Court denied petitions for certiorari filed
in cases from the Second, Third and Ninth Circuits.

Numerous trial court judges also have dismissed union trust fund cases on remoteness grounds.
Nonetheless, some union, or other third-party payor, cases have survived motions to dismiss and have
proceeded or may proceed to trial. On August 2, 1999, a federal district court in New York denied defendants’
motions to dismiss in two separate cases heard together, National Asbestos Workers Medical Fund v. Philip
Morris, Inc. and Blue Cross and Blue Shield of New Jersey, Inc. v. Philip Morris, Inc., discussed below, On
December 21, 1999, the federal district court in the District of Columbia denied defendants’ motions to
dismiss in three cases consolidated for pretrial purposes: Service Employees International Union Health and
Welfare Fund v. Philip Morris, Inc., S.ELU. Local 74 Welfare Fund v. Philip Morris, Inc. and Holland v.
Philip Morris, Inc. On May 22, 2001, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia
reversed the federal district court’s ruling that denied in part defendants’ motion to dismiss, and affirmed the
portion of the ruling that dismissed the bulk of plaintiffs’ claims in these cases. In the same opinion, the court
reversed the district court’s ruling that denied defendants’ motion to dismiss the RICO and fraud claims in
Sheet Metal Workers Trust Fund v. Philip Morris, Inc., which had been consolidated with the first three cases
for purposes of pretrial discovery. The result of the D.C. Circuit’s ruling is that all claims in these four cases,
as well as several additional union trust fund cases that had also been consolidated for purposes of the appeal,
were dismissed. On June 21, 2001, plaintiffs filed a petition for rehearing before the entire D.C. circuit with
respect to these cases, which was denied on July 13, 2001. On August 20, 2001, plaintiffs filed a petition for
writ of certiorari with the U.S. Supreme Court, which was denied on October 29, 2001.

On March 3, 2000, a New York state court granted motions to dismiss ten union cases, Eastern States
Health & Welfare Fund v. Philip Morris, Inc., brought by 14 union trust funds seeking to recover money paid
for medical bills incurred by their participants and beneficiaries who suffer from alleged tobacco-caused
diseases. This group of cases is on appeal to the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of New York. On
September 26, 2000, in Steamfitters Local Union No. 614 Health and Welfare Fund v. Philip Morris, Inc., the
Tennessee Court of Appeals affirmed a trial court’s dismissal of an antitrust claim and found that the
remaining claims in the plaintiffs’ complaint were too remote to permit recovery. On March 21, 2001, a federal
district court in Connecticut granted defendants’ motion to dismiss in Connecticut Pipe Trades Health Fund v.
Philip Morris, Inc. Most recently, on January 25, 2002, in Motion Picture Industry Health Plan v. Philip
Morris, Inc., the California Supreme Court granted plaintiffs’ petition for review and deferred further action
pending consideration and disposition of a related issue in Naegele v. Raybestos-Manhaittan, Inc. (pending in
San Francisco County Superior Court), or pending further order of the court. On October 25, 2001, the
California Court of Appeals affirmed the April 10, 2000, order granting voluntary dismissal of the case with
prejudice as to all defendants.

The first and only union case to go to trial to date was fron Workers Local No. 17 v. Philip Morris, Inc.,
which was tried in federal court in Ohio. On March 18, 1999, the jury returned a unanimous verdict for the
defendants, including RJR Tobacco. The plaintiffs dismissed their appeal of the verdict.

Other Health-Care Cost Recovery and Aggregated Claims Plaintiffs. Groups of health-care insurers, as
well as a private entity that purported to self-insure its employee health-care programs, have also advanced
claims similar to those found in the union health-care cost recovery actions.

Two “insurer” cases, Williams & Drake v. American Tobacco Co. and Regence Blueshield v. Philip
Morris, Inc., were dismissed in their entirety on remoteness grounds by federal district courts in Pennsylvania
and Washington. These rulings were then upheld on appeal to the Third and Ninth Circuits, respectively.
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In Group Health Plan, Inc. v. Philip Morris, Inc. and Medica v. Philip Morris, Inc., two cases consolidated
for opinion, a federal district judge in Minnesota dismissed all claims, except a state antitrust claim and a state
conspiracy claim. The federal court certified to the Minnesota Supreme Court the question of whether these
two claims could be pursued under Minnesota law by Group Health Plan. On January 11, 2001, the Minnesota
Supreme Court ruled that the plaintiff could pursue these claims. Certain defendants, including RJR Tobacco,
filed motions for summary judgment based on (1) the statutes of limitation on June 15, 2001; and
(2) causation, injury and damages on June 20, 2001. On January 31, 2002, summary judgment was granted in
favor of certain defendants, including RJR Tobacco, on all causes of action. Plaintiffs have not yet filed an
appeal.

On June 6, 2001, in Blue Cross and Blue Shield of New Jersey, Inc. v. Philip Morris, Inc., a federal court
jury in Brooklyn returned a verdict in favor of RJR Tobacco and other tobacco defendants on common law
fraud and civil RICO claims, but found for the plaintiff, Empire Blue Cross and Blue Shield, on a claim under
a New York state deceptive business practices statute. Empire pursued its claims against the defendants on
behalf of itself directly, as well as on the behalf of its insureds, under a theory of subrogation. The jury verdict
on the direct claim was approximately $17.8 million, and the verdict on the subrogated claim was
approximately $11.8 million. RJR Tobacco’s portion of these amounts is $6.6 million and $4.4 million,
respectively. Empire is not entitled to recover under both direct and subrogated claims; thus, Empire must
elect one claim, and thus one jury verdict. The New York statute under which Empire recovered does not
provide for punitive damages, but does allow for recovery of reasonable attorneys’ fees. Plaintiff filed a motion
for attorneys’ fees. On October 4, 2001, the court denied defendants’ post-trial motions, entered final judgment
in favor of Empire, yet retained jurisdiction to decide the attorneys’ fees issue. RJR Tobacco and the other
tobacco defendants appealed the final judgment to the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit.
All remaining claims of Blue Cross Blue Shield plans pending before the court are stayed pending the appeal.

Cn August 8, 2001, in County of Cook v. Philip Morris, Inc., the Circuit Court of Cook County granted
defendants’ motion for judgment on the pleadings based on remoteness grounds and dismissed plaintiffs’
complaint in its entirety. Plaintiffs appealed the dismissal to the Illinois Appellate Court, First District, on
September 5, 2001. Defendants noticed a cross-appeal to the appellate court on September 17, 2001, from the
trial court’s prior adverse rulings on defendants’ motions to dismiss on the grounds of MSA release and lack of
standing. The appellate court has not yet ruled.

Native American tribes have filed similar health-care cost recovery cases. On December 8, 2000, in Uty
Utu Gwaitu Paiute Tribe v. Philip Morris, Inc., the San Diego Superior Court denied plaintiffs’ motion for
class certification. On January 10, 2001, the plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed the action. On November 12,
1999, in Table Bluff Reservation v. Philip Morris, Inc., a California federal district court dismissed plaintiffs’
lawsuit. On July 16, 2001, the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit affirmed the federal
district court’s dismissal. On July 30, 2001, in Acoma Pueblo v. American Tobacco Co., a federal district court
in New Mexico granted defendants’ motion to dismiss plaintiffs’ complaint for failure to state a claim. The
ruling was based on a number of grounds, including remoteness. On September 17, 2001, plaintiff filed a
motion for reconsideration which was denied on November 1, 2001. The dismissal was modified to a dismissal
with prejudice in order to facilitate plaintiffs’ appeal. On August 31, 2001, in Alabama Coushatta Tribe of
Texas v. American Tobacco Co., the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas (Beaumont
Division) dismissed plaintiffs’ complaint. Plaintiffs appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the
Fifth Circuit on October 1, 2001. Most recently, on January 25, 2002, in the Navajo Nation v. Philip Morris,
Inc., the District Court of Navajo Nation granted in part defendants’ motion to dismiss the complaint with
respect to the conspiracy, deceptive acts and restraints of trade claims. The court refused to dismiss plaintiff’s
product liability claim. Four such cases remain pending, all before tribal courts.

Other cost recovery suits have been brought by local governmental jurisdictions, taxpayers on behalf of a
government jurisdiction, a university and hospitals. On December 14, 1999, a federal district court in
Washington dismissed one such case, Association of Washington Public Hospital Districts v. Philip Morris,
Inc. Plaintiffs appealed this ruling to the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, which affirmed
the dismissal by the trial court on February 22, 2001. Plaintiffs filed a petition to the U.S. Supreme Court
asking it to review the case on July 16, 2001, but the court declined plaintiffs’ petition October 1, 2001. On
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May 30, 2000, in 4.0. Fox Memorial Hospital v. American Tobacco Co., Inc., pending in state court in Nassau
County, New York, a group of approximately 175 hospitals filed suit against the tobacco industry seeking
repayment from cigarette companies for costs expended to treat smoking-related illnesses. Plaintiffs seek at
least $3.6 billion in damages. Defendants’ filed a motion to dismiss which was granted on December 14, 2001.
On January 17, 2002, plaintiffs appealed the dismissal to the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court,
Second Judicial Department.

A number of foreign countries have filed suit in state and federal courts in the United States against RJR
Tobacco and other tobacco industry defendants to recover funds for health care, medical and other assistance
paid by those foreign governments to their citizens. Of the 33 cases currently pending, 6 are pending in state
court and 27 are pending in federal court. Eleven of these cases have been transferred to, and are still pending
before, the Judicial Panel on Multi-District Litigation in the United States District Court for the District of
Columbia. Other foreign governments and entities have stated that they are considering filing such actions in
the United States. In addition, in the Marshall Islands v. American Tobacco Co., the Republic of the Marshall
Islands brought a health-care cost recovery lawsuit in the Marshall Islands against RJR Tobacco and other
cigarette manufacturers. On February 22, 2001, the High Court of the Marshall Islands granted defendants’
motions for summary judgment on all counts except the Consumer Protection Act. The parties stipulated to a
dismissal of the remaining claim on May 18, 2001. Final judgment was entered on June 4, 2001. Thereafter,
on June 27, 2001, plaintiff noticed an appeal to the Supreme Court of the Republic of the Marshall Islands.
On July 3, 2001, defendants filed a notice of cross appeal. Oral argument on the appeal is scheduled for
April 17-19, 2002.

On August 7, 2000, a federal district court in Washington, D.C. dismissed an international health-care
cost recovery action entitled Ontario v. Imperial Tobacco, Ltd. Plaintiffs appealed to the United States Court
of Appeals for the District of Columbia. However, on November 29, 2001, the D.C. Court of Appeals granted
plaintiff’'s motion for a voluntary dismissal of the appeal, thereby dismissing the case. In Obra Social de
Empleados de la Marina Mercante v. American Tobacco Co., Inc., the Superior Court in Washington, D.C.
granted defendants’ motion to dismiss on January 13, 2001. Plaintiffs appealed the dismissal to the D.C. Court
of Appeals; however, the parties agreed to dismiss the appeal on October 22, 2001. Additionally, plaintiffs filed
a separate action in the same court on March 23, 2001; that case was voluntarily dismissed on August 30,
2001. On May 22, 2001, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia affirmed the federal
district court’s dismissal in the following three matters: (1) Guatemala v. Tobacco Institute, Inc. (a non-RJR
Tobacco action); (2) Nicaragua v. Liggett Group, Inc. (another non-RJR Tobacco case); and (3) Ukraine v.
American Brands, Inc. (a case involving RJR Tobacco). Plaintiffs in each of these cases filed a petition for
writ of certiorari to the U.S. Supreme Court on August 20, 2001. The Supreme Court, on October 29, 2001,
denied the petitions. Most recently, on November 20, 2001, in Venezuela v. Philip Morris Cos., Inc. and
Espirito Santo, Brazil v. Brooke Group Ltd., a Florida state court judge granted defendants’ motions to dismiss
these matters because the claims were too remote, indirect and derivative to survive. Plaintiff appealed each
case to the Third District Court of Appeal of Florida on December 19, 2001.

Pursuant to the terms of the 1999 sale of RJR’s international tobacco business, Japan Tobacco Inc.
assumed RJR Tobacco’s liability, if any, in the health-care cost recovery cases brought by foreign countries.

Finally, 11 lawsuits are pending against RJR Tobacco in which asbestos companies and/or asbestos-
related trust funds allege that they “overpaid” claims brought against them to the extent that tobacco use, not
asbestos exposure, was the cause of the alleged personal injuries for which they paid compensation. Cne of
these lawsuits, Falise v. American Tobacco Co., was dismissed by the United States District Court for the
Eastern District of New York (Weinstein, J.) on November 2, 1999, due to a lack of subject matter
jurisdiction. This case was refiled on November 11, 1999. Trial began on November 27, 2000. On January 22,
2001, the judge declared a mistrial. The case was dismissed with prejudice on June 29, 2001 after the plaintiff
announced that it would not retry the case. On May 24, 2001, a Mississippi state court judge dismissed all
claims by Owens-Corning in a lawsuit similar to Falise. Owens-Corning appealed the dismissal to the
Mississippi Supreme Court on August 15, 2001. A similar case, H. K. Porter Co., Inc. v. American Tobacco
Co., is pending in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York (Weinstein, J.). In
Fibreboard Corp. v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., a case pending in state court in California, Owens-Corning
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and Fibreboard asserted the same claims as those asserted in the Mississippi case. Motions to dismiss those
claims have been held in abeyance pending the final determination of the Mississippi case.

Antitrust Cases. A number of tobacco wholesalers, or indirect purchasers, have sued United States
cigarette manufacturers, including RIR Tobacco, and its parent company, RJR, alleging that cigarette
manufacturers combined and conspired to set the price of cigarettes, in violation of antitrust statutes and
various state unfair business practices statutes, as a result of which plaintiffs suffered economic injury. Of the
39 cases currently pending, 30 are pending in state court and 9 are pending in federal court. Plaintiffs are
asking the court to certify the lawsuits as class actions and to allow the respective plaintiffs to pursue the
lawsuits as representatives of other persons in individual states or throughout the United States that purchased
cigarettes directly from one or more of the defendants. The federal cases have been consolidated and sent by
the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation for pretrial proceedings in the United States District Court for
the Northern District of Georgia. On November 30, 2000, the court dismissed plaintiffs’ claims of fraudulent
concealment, claims concerning conduct outside the United States and allegations relating to non-price
conduct. A class of direct purchasers was certified by the court on January 27, 2001, On February 22, 2001,
plaintiffs repleaded their fraudulent concealment allegations. These allegations were dismissed on June 19,
2001. State court cases on behalf of indirect purchasers have been dismissed in Arizona, currently on appeal,
and New York. A Minnesota court denied class certification on November 21, 2001. A Kansas court granted
class certification on November 15, 2001.

On March 2, 2000, Liggett Group Inc. filed an antitrust action against RJR Tobacco in the U.S. District
Court for the District of New Jersey. Subsequently, the court granted RJR Tobacco’s motion to transfer this
action to the United States District Court for the Middle District of North Carolina. On May 3, 2001, the
case, which alleged that RJR Tobacco’s Every-Day-Low-Price merchandising program is a violation of the
Sherman Antitrust Act and New Jersey antitrust laws, was voluntarily dismissed.

In A.D. Bedell Wholesale Co. v. Philip Morris, Inc., filed on April 13, 1999, in the United States District
Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania, a cigarette wholesaler alleged that the MSA restricts cigarette
output and otherwise restrains trade in violation of the Sherman Act. On March 22, 2000, the district court
entered an order granting defendants’ motion to dismiss counts I and II of the complaint, denying defendants’
motion to dismiss count III, and denying as moot plaintiffs’ motion for partial summary judgment. On
April 11, 2000, the plaintiffs and defendant Philip Morris, the only defendant to which count I1II applied, filed
a consent order dismissing count III of the amended complaint. On April 18, 2000, plaintiffs appealed the
dismissal of counts I and II to the United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit. On June 19, 2001, the
Third Circuit affirmed the district court’s dismissal of counts I and II, ruling that tobacco companies that
entered into the MSA, including RJR Tobacco, were immune from potential antitrust liability that was
alleged to arise out of the MSA. The finding of antitrust immunity is consistent with that of all other federal
courts that have considered antitrust challenges to the MSA. The plaintiffs filed a petition for rehearing and
suggestion for rehearing before the entire Third Circuit on July 2, 2001. This petition was denied on July 24,
2001. On October 19, 2001, the plaintiffs filed a petition for a writ of certiorari with the U.S. Supreme Court,
which denied the petition on January 7, 2002.

Cn July 30, 1999, Cigarettes Cheaper!, a retailer, filed an antitrust counterclaim against RJIR Tobacco in
a gray market trademark suit originally brought by RJR Tobacco in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Illinois. Cigarettes Cheaper! alleges that it was denied promotional resources in violation
of the Robinson-Patman Act. The district court declined to dismiss the counterclaim. On January 23, 2001,
the court granted Cigarettes Cheaper!’s motion to amend its counterclaim to include a violation of the
Sherman Act §1, claiming that RJR Tobacco conspired with other retailers to deny promotions to Cigarettes
Cheaper!, an allegation that RJR Tobacco denies. On March 21, 2001, RJR Tobacco’s motion to add a
trademark dilution claim against Cigarettes Cheaper! was granted. On June 28, 2001, the court granted RJR
Tobacco’s motion to strike with prejudice several of Cigarettes Cheaper!’s affirmative defenses. These
defenses related to: (1) alleged misrepresentations caused by the packaging of cigarettes manufactured by
RJR Tobacco for export; (2) RJR Tobacco’s “No Bull” advertising campaign for its WINSTON cigarettes;
(3) antitrust trademark misuse; (4) nominative fair use; and (5) the first sale doctrine. Fact discovery closed
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on October 18, 2001. Expert discovery is presently underway and dispositive motions likely will be filed this
spring or summer. No trial date is yet set.

On May 10, 2000, the Customer Company, a retailer affiliated with Cigarettes Cheaper!, filed a similar
antitrust claim against RJR Tobacco in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
California. This case has now been settled. The settlement terms are confidential; however, the settlement is
not material to RJR Tobacco.

Tobacco Growers’ Case.  On February 16, 2000, a class action complaint, Deloach v. Philip Morris Cos.,
Inc., was brought against RJR Tobacco, other cigarette manufacturers and others, in the United States
District Court for the District of Columbia on behalf of a putative class of all tobacco growers and tobacco
allotment holders, some 5,930 of which are actually named in the first amended complaint. Plaintiffs’ current
theory, as reflected in their second amended complaint, which was filed on September 2, 2000, is that the
defendants, Philip Morris, Inc., RJR Tobacco, Brown & Williamson Tobacco Corp. and Lorillard Tobacco
Co., engaged in bid-rigging of American burley and flue-cured tobacco auctions beginning at least by 1996 and
continuing to present. Defendants’ actions are alleged to have held the auction prices of tobacco at artificially
low prices resulting in damage to tobacco growers and allotment holders. In addition, plaintiffs allege that
defendants have engaged in a conspiracy to force the elimination or destruction of the federal government’s
tobacco quota and price support program through an alleged illegal group boycott. On October 9, 2000,
defendants filed a motion to dismiss the second amended complaint and a motion to transfer venue to the
United States District Court for the Middle District of North Carolina. On November 30, 2000, the court
granted the motion to transfer the case. On December 20, 2000, plaintiffs moved to amend the complaint to
add leaf-buying companies as defendants. Plaintiffs’ motion to certify the class remains pending.

Scheduled Trials. As of February 7, 2002, RJR Tobacco is a defendant in two cases currently being
tried: Burton v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., an individual case being tried in federal court in Kansas, and Scott
v. American Tobacco Co., a medical monitoring class action. Jury selection began in the Scott case on June 18,
2001. After the jury was impaneled, various rulings required the dismissal of several members of the original
jury (nine jurors and/or alternates). Jury selection began again on Cctober 22, 2001. On December 26, 2001,
defendants’ filed an application for supervisory writ to the Fourth District of the Louisiana Court of Appeals
challenging certain aspects of the second round of jury selection. Opening statements will not occur until that
application is decided.

Although trial schedules are subject to change and many cases are dismissed before trial, it is likely that
there will be an increased number of tobacco cases, some involving claims for possibly billions of dollars,
against RJR and RJR Tobacco, coming to trial during 2002. As of February 7, 2002, there are 18 cases
scheduled for trial. Fourteen Broin II cases also are scheduled to be tried in 2002.

Other Developments. RJR Tobacco is aware of a grand jury investigation being conducted in North
Carolina that relates to the cigarette business of certain of its former affiliates. In connection with this
investigation, RJR Tobacco responded to document subpoenas dated July 7, 1999 and June 1, 2000,
respectively.

On December 22, 1998, Northern Brands International, Inc. entered into a plea agreement with the
United States Attorney for the Northern District of New York. Northern Brands is a now-inactive tobacco
subsidiary that was part of the business of R. J. Reynolds International B.V., a former Netherlands subsidiary
of RJR Tobacco which was managed by a former affiliate, RJR-MacDonald, Inc. On May 12, 1999, RJR-
MacDonald, Inc. was sold to Japan Tobacco Inc. and subsequently changed its name to JT-MacDonald, Inc.
Northern Brands was charged with aiding and abetting certain customers who brought merchandise into the
United States “by means of false and fraudulent practices . . . .” It is understood that JT-MacDonald, Inc.,
Japan Tobacco’s international operating company in Canada, is cooperating with an investigation now being
conducted by the Royal Canadian Mounted Police relating to the same events that gave rise to the Northern
Brands investigation.

On December 21, 1999, the government of Canada filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for
the Northern District of New York against RJR Tobacco, RJR, several currently and formerly related

19




companies, including Northern Brands, and the Canadian Tobacco Manufacturers Council. The lawsuit
alleges that, beginning in 1991, the defendants conspired with known distributors and smugglers to illegally
import into Canada tobacco products originally earmarked for export from Canada, in a fashion that avoided
the imposition of certain excise and retail taxes and duty payments. On June 30, 2000, this case was dismissed
by the United States District Court for the Northern District of New York. Plaintiff appealed the dismissal to
the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit, which, on October 12, 2001, affirmed the district
court’s dismissal. On December 12, 2001, the Court of Appeals denied Canada’s petition for rehearing.
Although the international tobacco business was sold, RJR Tobacco retained certain liabilities relating to the
events disclosed above.

Similar lawsuits have been filed against RJR Tobacco and its affiliates, along with other cigarette
manufacturers, by the European Community and ten of its member states (Belgium, Finland, France, Greece,
Germany, Italy, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Portugal and Spain), Ecuador, Belize and Honduras. These
suits contend that RJR Tobacco and other tobacco companies in the United States may be held responsible
for damages caused by cigarette smugglers under common law and under the federal RICQO statute. Each of
these actions seeks compensatory, punitive and treble damages. On July 17, 2001, the action brought by the
European Community was dismissed by the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New
York. However, the European Community and its member states filed a similar complaint in the same
jurisdiction on August 6, 2001. On October 25, 2001, the court denied the European Community’s request of
August 10, 2001, to reinstate its original complaint. On November 9, 2001, the European Community and the
ten member states amended their complaint filed on August 6, 2001, to change the name of defendant
Nabisco Group Holdings Corp. to RJR Acquisition, Inc. RJR Tobacco and the other defendants filed motions
to dismiss that complaint on November 14, 2001, and the court heard oral argument on those motions on
January 11, 2002. As of February 7, 2002, a decision is still pending. RJR Tobacco and other defendants filed
in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida motions to dismiss the actions brought
by Ecuador, Belize and Honduras. These motions have been briefed and argued, and have been taken under
advisement. '

On May 23, 2001, Star Scientific, Inc. filed a patent infringement action against RJR Tobacco in the
United States District Court for the District of Maryland. The suit alleges infringement of U.S. Patent
No. 6,202,649 entitled “Method of Treating Tobacco to Reduce Nitrosamine Content, and Products Produced
Thereby.” RIR Tobacco denies that it has infringed any valid claim of the Star patent. On June 13, 2001, RJR
Tobacco filed a declaratory judgment action against Star Scientific in the United States District Court for the
Middle District of North Carolina, seeking a declaration that the patent is invalid and not infringed by RJR
Tobacco. On October 3, 2001, the North Carolina federal court granted Star Scientific’s motion to stay, but
denied its motions to dismiss or transfer the case.

On or about October 30, 1998, a boat manufacturer, American Marine Holdings, Inc., filed suit against
RJR Tobacco claiming that one of its boats was not properly identified in RJR Tobacco cigarette advertising.
The plaintiff claimed, among other things, violations of the Lanham Act and breach of an alleged oral
contract. On April 12, 2001, the parties reached an agreement to settle the matter. The related provision for
settlement is included in the accompanying consolidated financial statemenfs.

For further discussion of litigation and legal proceedings pending against RJR, its affiliates, including
RJR Tobacco, or indemnitees, see “— Environmental Matters” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Governmental Activity” in [tem 7. For more detailed
information about the class action and other aggregated claims suits pending against RJR, its affiliates,
including RJR Tobacco, or indemnitees, see Exhibit 99.1 to this report.

Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and it is possible that some of the tobacco-related legal
actions, proceedings or claims could be decided against RJR Tobacco or its affiliates, including RJR, or
indemnitees. Determinations of liability or adverse rulings against other cigarette manufacturers that are
defendants in similar actions, even if such rulings are not final, could adversely affect the litigation against
RJR Tobacco or its affiliates or indemnitees and could encourage an increase in the number of such claims. A
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number of political, legislative, regulatory and other developments relating to the tobacco industry and
cigarette smoking have received wide media attention. These developments may negatively affect the
outcomes of tobacco-related legal actions and encourage the commencement of additional similar litigation.

Although it is impossible to predict the outcome of such events on pending litigation and the rate at
which new lawsuits are filed against RJR Tobacco and RJR, a significant increase in litigation and/or in
adverse outcomes for tobacco defendants could have an adverse effect on either or both of these entities. RIR
Tobacco and RJR each believe that they have a number of valid defenses to any of those actions and intend to
defend those actions vigorously. '

RJR believes that, notwithstanding the quality of defenses available to it and RJR Tobacco in litigation
matters, it is possible that the results of operations or cash flows of RJR in particular quarterly or annual
periods or RJR’s financial condition could be materially affected by the ultimate outcome of certain pending
litigation matters, including bonding and litigation costs. RJR’s management is unable to predict the outcome
of the litigation or to derive a meaningful estimate of the amount or range of any possible 1oss in any particular
quarterly or annual period or in the aggregate. Accordingly, no liability for tobacco-related litigation is
currently recorded in the consolidated financial statements,

Environmental Matters

RJR and its subsidiaries are subject to federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations
concerning the discharge, storage, handling and disposal of hazardous or toxic substances. Such laws and
regulations provide for significant fines, penalties and liabilities, sometimes without regard to whether the
owner or operator of the property knew of, or was responsible for, the release or presence of hazardous or toxic
substances. In addition, third parties may make claims against owners or operators of properties for personal
injuries and property damage associated with releases of hazardous or toxic substances. In the past, RJR
Tobacco has been named a potentially responsible party with third parties under the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act with respect to several superfund sites. Regulations
promulgated by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and other governmental agencies under various
statutes have resulted in, and likely will continue to result in, substantial expenditures for pollution control,
waste treatment, plant modification and similar activities. RJR and its subsidiaries monitor their environmen-
tal matters and, dependent upon the probability of occurrence and reasonable estimation of cost, accrue or
disclose any material liability.

RJR was named in an insurance coverage suit filed August 13, 1997, by another company named as a
potentially responsible party under CERCLA with respect to a superfund site in Hawaii at which a former
subsidiary of RJR had operations. In this lawsuit, Del Monte Fresh Produce v. Fireman's Fund Insurance, filed
in the First Circuit Court of the State of Hawaii, the plaintiff sought a declaratory judgment that it is entitled
to insurance coverage for the site or, in the alternative, that RJR is obligated to indemnify the plaintiff under
the terms of the agreement by which RJR sold that company in 1989. Cn June 26, 200!, the plaintiff filed for
dismissal without prejudice as to all claims against RJR. A motion for summary judgment filed by Fireman’s
Fund Insurance Company was denied by the court on August 6, 2001,

Del Monte Corporation has been named a defendant in two lawsuits related to the same Hawaii
superfund site, Board of Water Supply of the City and County of Honolulu v. Shell Oil Company and Akee v.
The Dow Chemical Co., filed in the First Circuit Court of the State of Hawaii on September 27, 1999, and
October 7, 1999, respectively. Also, Del Monte Corporation has received a demand for indemnity from an
entity that was a chemical supplier to Del Monte Corporation and is named a defendant in one of these
lawsuits. Del Monte Corporation has sought indemnity from RJR under the terms of the agreement by which
RJIR sold Del Monte Corporation in 1989. RJR, in turn, has provided notice of these claims to the buyers of
the Del Monte fresh fruit business, asserting the right to be indemnified by the buyers for any liability arising
out of such claims under the terms of the agreement by which RJR sold the Del Monte fresh fruit business in
1989. .

Pursuant to an agreement dated June 12, 2001, among RJR, the buyers of the Del Monte fresh fruit
business, Del Monte Corporation and others, the buyers of the Del Monte fresh fruit business agreed, from the
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date of the agreement forward, to indemnify RJR for any liabilities imposed in either Board of Water Supply
or Akee and with respect to the environmental investigation and remediation of the superfund site in Hawaii
currently being required by the EPA. RJR and the buyers of the Del Monte fresh fruit business also agreed to
engage in good faith negotiations regarding RJR’s asserted right to be indemnified with respect to any liability,
cost or expense related to such matters that was incurred prior to the date of the agreement. Based on an
agreement reached between RJR and the buyers of the Del Monte fresh fruit business on December 3, 2001,
the buyers have reimbursed RJR for the amount of legal expenses claimed by RIR in defending the Board of
Water Supply and Akee cases prior to the parties’ agreement of June 12, 2001. Additionally, pursuant to a
settlement agreement executed in December 2001, among the plaintiff and certain defendants, including the
buyers of the Del Monte fresh fruit business, the Board of Water Supply case, including all pending claims and
cross-claims, has been dismissed with prejudice. In accordance with the terms of the settlement agreement,
the plaintiff released the buyers of the Del Monte fresh fruit business and all of their predecessors, including
RIR, from all claims asserted in Board of Water Supply.

On June 1, 2001, RJR received notice from Del Monte Corporation of a claim made against it by a
Hawaii landowner who has been sued by a lessee of its land, claiming injuries due to pesticide contamination
of the soil, allegedly caused by Del Monte Corporation as a prior lessee of the land. The landowner-defendant
has tendered the claim to Del Monte Corporation for defense and indemnity. Del Monte Corporation has in
turn tendered the claim to RJR for defense and indemnity, claiming it is entitled to be indemnified under the
terms of the agreement by which RJR sold Del Monte Corporation. Based on the plaintiff’s failure to provide
any factual information in support of its claim that Del Monte Corporation was a prior lessee of the subject
land, Del Monte Corporation has agreed to extend indefinitely the period during which RJR must respond to
the Del Monte Corporation’s tender of the claim to RJR for defense and indemnity, subject to the right to
terminate the indefinite extension on fifteen days notice to RJR.

RJR Tobacco was notified by the EPA on June 11, 2000 of its potential liability under CERCLA for a
superfund site in Greer, South Carolina. The notice and demand for reimbursement of costs incurred by the
EPA were sent to a group of companies previously involved as potentially responsible parties in another
superfund site, which includes RJR Tobacco. The EPA alleges that some waste from the cleanup of the other
site was transported to the site in question. RJR Tobacco has executed a tolling agreement with the EPA. This
tolling agreement provides for entry into good faith negotiations with the EPA, and is not an admission of fact
or liability. The tolling agreement also should have no impact on any defense RJR Tobacco may assert, other
than a defense based on the running of the statute of limitations. Information is still being gathered from other
potentially responsible parties recently notified by the EPA.

RIJR and its subsidiaries have been engaged in a continuing program to assure compliance with federal,
state and local environmental laws and regulations. Although it is difficult to identify precisely the portion of
capital expenditures or other costs attributable to compliance with environmental laws and regulations and to
estimate the cost of resolving these CERCLA matters, RIR does not expect such expenditures or other costs
to have a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations or financial condition of RJR or its
subsidiaries.

Employees

At December 31, 2001, RJR and its subsidiaries had approximately 8,200 employees and 1,100 part-time
employees. None of these employees is unionized. Employee relations are believed to be good. In January
2001 and 2002, RJR Tobacco was included in FORTUNE Magazine’s annual list of the “100 Best Companies
to Work For.”
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Item 2. Properties

RJR’s executive offices are located in two buildings in downtown Winston-Salem, North Carolina, which
are owned by RJR Tobacco. For information about RJR Tobacco’s operating facilities see “Business —
Manufacturing” and “Business — Research and Development” in Item 1.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Various legal actions, proceedings and claims, including legal actions claiming that [ung cancer and other
diseases, as well as addiction, have resulted from the use of, or exposure to, RJR’s operating subsidiaries’
products, are pending or may be instituted against RJR or its affiliates, including RJR Tobacco, or
indemnitees. For a further discussion of litigation and legal proceedings pending against RJR or its affiliates or
indemnitees, see “Business — Litigation Affecting the Cigarette Industry” and “Business — Environmental
Matters” in Item 1; “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Critical Accounting Policies and Recent Accounting Developments” and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Governmental Activity” in
Item 7; note 14 to the consolidated financial statements; and Exhibit 99.1 to this report. You may request a
copy of Exhibit 99.1, free of charge, by writing to the Corporate Secretary, R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings,
Inc., P.O. Box 2866, 401 N. Main Street, Winston-Salem, NC 27402-2866, or by phoning 336-741-5162,

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

Executive Officers and Certain Significant Employees of the Registrant
The executive officers and certain significant employees are:

Andrew J. Schindler. Mr. Schindler, 57, has served as Chief Executive Officer of RJR Tobacco since
1995 and as President and Chief Executive Officer of RJR since June 1999. Mr. Schindler has served as
Director of RJR Tobacco since 1989, and as Chairman of the Board of RJR and RJR Tobacco since July
1999. Mr. Schindler joined RJR in 1974. He became Senior Vice President — Operations of RJR Tobacco in
1989 and was elected Executive Vice President — Operations of RJR Tobacco in 1991. Mr. Schindler served
as Chief Operating Officer of RJR Tobacco from 1994 until 1995 and as its President from 1994 until January
2002. He is a member of the North Carolina School of the Arts Foundation Board, the Wake Forest
University Baptist Medical Center Board of Visitors, and the boards of directors of the R. J. Reynolds
Foundation, Winston-Salem Business, Inc. and !dealliance (formerly the North Carolina Emerging Technol-
ogy Alliance). Mr. Schindler is Chairman of the Winston-Salem Alliance.

Thomas R. Adams. Mr. Adams, 51, has been Senior Vice President and Controller of RJR and RJR
Tobacco since June 1999. From 1985 until 1999, he was Partner at the accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche
LLP. Mr. Adams is 2 member of the board of directors of Technology Concepts & Design, Inc., an affiliate of
RJR.

Lynn J. Beasley. In January 2002, Ms. Beasley, 44, was promoted to President and Chief Operating
Officer of RJR Tobacco, after serving as Executive Vice President — Marketing since 1997, and has been
Director of RIR Tobacco since March 2000. Ms. Beasley joined RJR Tobacco in 1982 as a marketing
assistant. After holding a number of positions at RJR Tobacco, she became Senior Vice President of the
Winston/Camel business unit in 1993. From 1995 until 1997, she was Senior Vice President of brand
marketing for WINSTON, CAMEL and SALEM. Ms. Beasley is a member of the Senior Services Board
and the Tanglewood Park Foundation Board.

Charles A. Blixt. Mr. Blixt, 50, has been Executive Vice President and General Counsel of RJR
Tobacco since 1995 and Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of RJR since
June 1999. Mr. Blixt served as Director of RJR Tobacco from 1995 until March 2000. He joined RJR
Tobacco as Associate Counsel — Litigation in 1985. Mr. Blixt is a member of the board of directors of
Technology Concepts & Design, Inc. and Targacept, Inc., both of which are affiliates of RJR. He also serves
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on the board of trustees of Salem College and Academy and the Board of Visitors of Wake Forest University
School of Law.

Frances V. Creighton. In January 2002, Ms. Creighton, 50, was promoted to Senior Vice President —
Marketing of RJR Tobacco, after serving as Vice President of RJR Tobacco’s Camel business unit since 1997.
She joined RJR Tobacco in 1981 as a marketing research analyst. Through a series of promotions, she became
senior marketing manager in 1990 and marketing director in 1994. Ms. Creighton serves as Secretary of the
board of directors of the American Red Cross and is a member of the board of directors for the United Way of
Forsyth County.

McDara P. Folawn, III. Mr. Folan, 43, joined RJR in June 1999 as Vice President, Deputy General
Counsel and Secretary. He also was Vice President, Deputy General Counsel and Secretary of RJR Tobacco
from June 1999 to March 2000, and currently serves as Assistant Secretary of RJR Tobacco. From 1992 until
1999, Mr. Folan served as Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel for Allen Telecom Inc., a
manufacturer and distributor of wireless communications equipment, in Cleveland, Chio.

Ann A. Johnston. In January 2002, Ms. Johnston, 48, was promoted to Executive Vice President —
Human Resources of RJR and of RJR Tobacco after serving as Vice President — Human Resources of RJR
Tobacco since 1998. She joined RJR Tobacco in 1988 as a compensation manager, was promoted to personnel
manager in 1989, and to director of compensation/benefits/ HRIS in 1993. Ms. Johnston also serves as
Chairman of the board of directors for Allegacy Federal Credit Union and is a member of the Alumni Council
for the Babcock Graduate School of Management of Wake Forest University and the board of directors of the
American Benefits Council.

Lynn L. Lane. In June 1999, Ms. Lane, 50, rejoined RJR as Senior Vice President and Treasurer and
was named Senior Vice President and Treasurer of RJR Tobacco. She joined RJR in 1973 and was promoted
to Vice President and Assistant Treasurer of RJR in 1991. In 1995, she was named Vice President and
Treasurer of R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Worldwide. From 1996 until 1999, Ms. Lane was Vice President —
Treasurer and Investor Relations of Burlington Industries, a manufacturer and distributor of fabrics and other
textile products. She also serves on the board of directors of the R. J. Reynolds Foundation, the board of
trustees of Greensboro College, the East Carolina University Board of Visitors and is Chair-Elect of the East
Carolina University Foundation Board.

Kenneth J. Lapiejko. Mr. Lapiejko, 53, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of RJR Tobacco and of RJR since June 1999. He served as Director of RJR Tobacco from 1996 until
March 2000. From 1995 until 1999, he served as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
of RJR Tobacco. Mr. Lapiejko joined R.J. Reynolds Tobacco International as a senior financial analyst in
1977. After holding a number of positions with RJR Tobacco, in 1991 he was promoted to Vice President of
Finance and Accounting. Mr. Lapiejko is a member of the board of directors of Targacept, Inc., an affiliate of
RIR.

James V. Maguire. In July 1999, Mr. Maguire, 50, was promoted to Executive Vice President — Sales
of RIR Tobacco, after serving as Senior Vice President — Sales of RJR Tobacco since 1994, and has been
Director of RJR Tobacco since March 2000. He joined RJR Tobacco in 1973 as a sales representative, and
after holding a number of positions at RJR Tobacco and RJIR, he became Vice President of Sales and
Marketing Development of RJR Tobacco in 1993.

Tommy J. Payne. Mr. Payne, 44, assumed his current positions as Executive Vice President —
External Relations of RJR Tobacco and of RJR in July 1999, after serving as Senior Vice President —
External Relations of RJR Tobacco since 1998 and of RIR since June 1999. He joined RJR in 1988 and was
promoted to Director of Federal Government Affairs in 1995. From 1995 until 1998, he was Vice President —
Federal Government Affairs of RJR Tobacco in Washington, D.C. Mr. Payne serves on the boards of trustees
of Winston-Salem State University and the Southeast Center for Contemporary Art, the North Carolina
Community Colleges Foundation Board of Advisors, the board of directors of the R. J. Reynolds Foundation
and the East Carolina University Board of Visitors.
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Richard M. Sanders. In connection with RJR’s acquisition of Santa Fe in January 2002, Mr. Sanders,
48, was named President and Chief Executive Officer of Santa Fe. From December 1999 until January 2002,
he served as Senior Vice President — Marketing of RJR Tobacco, while continuing his role as President —
Sports Marketing Enterprises, a division of RJR Tobacco. Mr. Sanders joined RJR Tobacco in 1977 and, after
holding a number of positions, was promoted to Vice President of Marketing Operations and President —
Sports Marketing Enterprises in July 1999. He is a member of the boards of directors of the Speedway
Children’s Charity, T. Wayne Robertson Memorial Fund and Minnesota Resources.

David E. Townsend. In October 2000, Dr. Townsend, 54, was promoted to Executive Vice President —
Research and Development of RJR Tobacco after serving as Vice President of the Research and Development
Product Development and Assessment Group of RIR Tobacco since 1997. He joined RJR Tobacco in 1977
and, after holding a number of positions at RJR Tobacco, was promoted to Senior Principal Scientist of RJR
Tobacco in 1995, and to Director of Product Development and Assessment of RJR Tobacco in 1996.

James H. Wilson. In July 1999, Mr. Wilson, 59, was promoted to Executive Vice President —
Operations of RIR Tobacco after serving as Senior Vice President — Operations of RJR Tobacco since 1994.
He has served as Director of RJR Tobacco since 1997. Mr. Wilson joined RJR Tobacco in 1962 and was
promoted to Vice President of Manufacturing of RJR Tobacco in 1991.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

RJR’s common stock, par value $.01 per share, is listed on the NYSE as RJR and began trading on
June 15, 1999. On January 31, 2002, there were approximately 38,000 holders of record of RJR’s common
stock. Stockholders whose shares are held of record by a broker or clearing agency are not included in this
amount; however, each of those brokers or clearing agencies is included as one holder of record. The closing
price of RJR’s common stock on January 31, 2002 was $59.75.

The high and low sales prices per share for RJR’s common stock on the NYSE Composite Tape, as
reported by the NYSE, was:

High Low

2001:

First Quarter $60.42 $44.19

Second Quarter 52.33

Third Quarter . 47.90

Fourth Quarter . 54.72
2000:

First QUarter. .. oottt et e e e 20.50  15.75

Second Quarter . ... e 3194 1694

Third Quarter . . ... it 37.25 24.88

Fourth Quarter. ...t 50.25 30.81

From the third quarter of 1999 through the second quarter of 2001, RJR’s board of directors declared a
quarterly cash dividend of $.775 per common share, or $3.10 on an annualized basis. Beginning with the third
quarter of 2001, RJR’s board of directors has declared a quarterly cash dividend of $.875 per common share,
or $3.50 on an annualized basis, an increase of 12.9% from $.775.

RJR conducts its business through its subsidiaries and is dependent on the earnings and cash flow of its
subsidiaries to satisfy its obligations and other cash needs. RJR’s credit facility limits the payment of dividends
on its common stock in excess of specific amounts. For more information see “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Financial Condition” in Item 7
and note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. RJR believes that the provisions of its credit facility will
not impair its payment of quarterly dividends.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected historical consolidated financial data as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 and for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001 are derived from the consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes, which have been audited by RIR’s independent auditors. The selected
historical consolidated financial data as of December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 and for the years ended
December 31, 1998 and 1997 are derived from audited consolidated financial statements not presented or
incorporated by reference. The financial statements prior to 2000 segregate the account balances and activities
of the international tobacco business and Nabisco and report those account balances and activities as
discontinued operations. You should read this table in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Item 7 and the consolidated financial
statements.

For the Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)

Results of Operations:

Netsales (1) oo e e $8,585 $ 8,058 $ 7,468 § 5,685 § 4,975
Income (loss) from continuing operations ................ 444 352 195 (519) 19
Income (loss) from discontinued operations............... 9) — 2,398 3 414
Extraordinary items — gain (loss) ....................... — 1,475 (250) — —
Net income (10SS) ... oo 435 1,827 2,343 (516) 433
Per Share Data:
Basic income (loss) from continuing operations ........... 4.57 3.48 1.80 (4.77) 17
Diluted income (loss) from continuing operations.......... 4.48 3.46 1.80 (4.77) 17
Basic income (loss) from discontinued operations.......... (.09) — 2210 03 3.81
Diluted income (loss) from discontinued operations ........ (.09) —~ 2208 .03 3.81
Basic income (loss) from extraordinary items ............. — 14.56 (2.30) — —
Diluted income (loss) from extraordinary items ........... — 14.48 (2.30) - -
Basic net income (loss) ......... it 4.48 18.04  21.60 (4.74) 3.98
Diluted net income (loss) .......... oo, 4.39 1794  21.58 (4.74) 3.98
Basic weighted average shares, in thousands .............. 97,043 101,264 108,495 108,691 108,691
Diluted weighted average shares, in thousands............. 98,986 101,857 108,570 108,691 108,691
Cash dividends declared per share of common stock (2) .... $ 330 § 310 § 15 % — % —
Balance Sheet Data (at end of periods):
Total @8Sets ...t e 15,050 15,554 14,377 19,310 20,251
Long-term debt ........ ... ... i 1,631 1,674 1,653 4861 4944
Stockholders’ equity. ..ot 8,026 8,436 7,064 9,886 11,079
Other Data:
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges (3).................... 6.4 5.1 2.8 — 1.5
Deficiency in the coverage of fixed charges by earnings

before fixed charges (3) .......... ... ... i $ — 8§ — 8% — 8% (6H6Hs —

(1) Net sales and costs of products sold exclude excise taxes of $1.529 billion, $1.631 billion, $1.173 billion,
$1.292 billion and $1.369 billion for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997,
respectively.

(2) RIJR began trading as a separate company on June 15, 1999. From the third quarter of 1999 through the
second quarter of 2001, RJR’s board of directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $.775 per common
share, or $3.10 on an annualized basis. Beginning with the third quarter of 2001, the board of directors
has declared a quarterly cash dividend of $.875 per common share, or $3.50 on an annualized basis, an
increase of 12.9% from $.775.

(3) Earnings consist of income before income taxes and fixed charges. Fixed charges consist of interest on
indebtedness, amortization of debt issuance costs and one-third of operating rental expense, representa- -
tive of the interest factor.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read this discussion and analysis of RJR’s consolidated financial condition and results of
operations in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the related notes as of December 31,
2001 and 2000 and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001.

Critical Accoumting Policies and Recent Accounting Developments

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require estimates and
assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts in RJR’s consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Some of these estimates require difficult, subjective and/or complex judgments about
matters that are inherently uncertain, and as a result, actual results could differ from those estimates. Due to
the estimation processes involved, the following summarized accounting policies and their application are
considered to be critical to understanding the business operations, financial condition and results of operations
of RJR and its subsidiaries.

Litigation

As discussed in “Business — Litigation Affecting the Cigarette Industry” in Item 1 and note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements, RJR Tobacco and its affiliates have been named in a number of tobacco-
related legal actions, proceedings or claims seeking damages in amounts ranging into the hundreds of millions
or even billions of doliars. Unfavorable verdicts have been returned in the Engle smoking and health class
action and in three individual smoking and health cases that are in the post-verdict stage or are on appeal.
RJR Tobacco and RJR each believe that they have a number of valid defenses to all actions and intend to
defend those actions vigorously. However, litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and it is possible that
some of the tobacco-related legal actions, proceedings or claims could be decided against them. RJR and RJR
Tobacco are unable to predict the outcome of the litigation or to derive a meaningful estimate of the amount
or range of any possible loss in any particular quarterly or annual period or in the aggregate. Accordingly, no
liability is currently recorded in the consolidated financial statements for tobacco-related litigation. However,
at such time a material loss, including bonding and litigation costs, becomes probable and the amount can be
reasonably estimated, its recognition could have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows of RJR or its subsidiaries.

Goodwill and Trademarks

Goodwill is continually reviewed for impairment. Trademarks are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the book value of the asset may not be recoverable. The
carrying value of goodwill and trademarks would be impaired if the best estimate of future undiscounted cash
flows over their remaining amortization period is less than their carrying value. If an asset is impaired, the loss
is measured using estimated fair value.

In the fourth quarter of 2000, impairment occurred on two of RJR Tobacco’s non-key brands, MAGNA
and CENTURY, based on their estimated undiscounted net future cash flows. Accordingly, RJR Tobacco
recorded an impairment charge of $89 million, based on the excess of the brands’ carrying value over fair
value.

Factors that may impact the valuation of goodwill and trademarks include, among other things, the level
of brand support, consumer demand, governmental regulation and the ability to raise prices. At December 31,
2001, there were no factors that indicated that the book value of goodwill and trademarks might not be
recoverable.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which is effective as of January 1, 2002. SFAS
No. 142 substantially changes the accounting for goodwill and trademarks. SFAS No. 142 requires that
goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized. This statement also
requires that within the first interim period of adoption, the intangible assets with indefinite lives should be
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tested for impairment as of the date of adoption, and that if any impairment results, it should be recognized as
a change in accounting principle. Additionally, SFAS No. 142 requires that within six months of adoption,
goodwill be tested for impairment at the reporting unit level as of the date of adoption. If any impairment is
indicated to have existed upon adoption, it should be measured and recorded before the end of the year of
adoption. SFAS No. 142 requires that any goodwill impairment loss recognized as a result of initial application
be reported in the first interim period of adoption as a change in accounting principle, and that the income per
share effects of the accounting change be separately disclosed.

Other intangible assets consist of RJR Tobacco’s trademarks acquired through business combinations,
which have indefinite useful lives. A national appraisal firm has been engaged to assist in the valuation of the
trademarks as of January 1, 2002. No later than March 31, 2002, the existence and amount, if any, of
trademark impairment will be determined by comparing the fair values of those assets with their carrying
values.

RIR’s goodwill as of January 1, 2002 is attributable to one reporting unit, RJR Tobacco, which comprises
substantially all of RJR’s consolidated results of operations and financial condition. A national appraisal firm
has been engaged to assist in the determination of the fair value of RJR. Before June 30, 2002, any indication
of goodwill will be determined by comparing RJR’s fair value with its carrying value as of January 1, 2002.

As of December 31, 2001, the carrying values of RJR Tobacco’s goodwill and trademarks were $6.9
billion and $2.8 billion, respectively. RJR Tobacco recorded goodwill and trademark amortization expense of
$362 million and $366 million during 2001 and 2000, respectively. As of January 1, 2002, RJR Tobacco’s
goodwill and trademarks will no longer be amortized. Because of the extensive effort needed to comply with
the application of SFAS No. 142, the impairment loss, if any, related to RJR Tobacco’s trademarks or
goodwill upon adoption of this statement cannot be estimated.

Settlement Agreements

As discussed in “Business — Litigation Affecting the Cigarette Industry” in Item 1 and note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements, RJR’s operating subsidiaries are participants in a number of settlement
agreements related to governmental health-care cost recovery actions. Their obligations and the related
expense charges under the MSA and other settlement agreements are subject to adjustments based upon,
among other things, the volume of cigarettes sold by the operating subsidiaries, their relative market share and
inflation. Since relative market share is based on cigarette shipments, the best estimate of the allocation of
charges under these agreements is recorded in costs of products sold as products are shipped. Settlement
expenses under these MSA and other settlement agreements recorded in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income were $2.6 billion in 2001, $2.3 billion in 2000 and $2.2 billion in 1999. Adjustments to
these estimates, which historically have not been significant, are recorded in the period that the change
becomes probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

RJR Tobacco estimates that its settlement charges will approximate $2.4 billion in 2002 and $2.1 billion
in each of 2003, 2004 and 2005, subject to adjustments, including those discussed above.

Recent Accounting Developments

Effective January 1, 2001, RJR’s operating subsidiaries adopted the Emerging Issues Task Force’s Issue
No. 00-14, “Accounting for Certain Sales Incentives,” which addresses the recognition, measurement and
income statement classification for certain sales incentives, including rebates, coupons and free products or
services. EITF No. 00-14 requires that in the accompanying consolidated income statements, certain costs
that historically were included in selling, general and administrative expenses now be classified in cost of
products sold or as reductions of net sales. Those costs have been reclassified in prior periods for comparative
purposes. The adoption of EITF No. 00-14 did not impact consolidated annual net income or cumulative
earnings. :

As of January 1, 2001, RJR and its subsidiaries adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 137 and SFAS No. 138. SFAS No. 133
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requires that all derivative instruments be recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at their fair value.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each period in earnings or other comprehensive income,
depending on whether a derivative is designated and effective as part of a hedge transaction. If it is, the type of
hedge transaction must be disclosed. The adoption of SFAS No. 133, as amended, did not impact RIR’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

As of December 31, 2001, RJR Tobacco held a forward currency exchange contract to purchase seven
million Euros with a term of less than 12 months as a hedge of an unrecognized firm commitment for the
purchase of equipment. As of December 31, 2001, the foreign currency cash flow hedge was effective and,

accordingly, no gain or loss was realized. The unrealized gain resulting from the increase in the hedge’s fair
value was insignificant.

Effective January 1, 2002, EITF No. 00-25, “Vendor Income Statement Characterization of Considera-
tion Paid to a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products,” requires that consideration paid to a distributor or retailer to
promote the vendor’s products, such as siotting fees or buydowns, generally be characterized as a reduction of
revenue when recognized in the vendor’s income statement. Upon adoption, RJR’s operating subsidiaries will
characterize the applicable costs as a reduction of net sales rather than as selling, general and administrative
expense. Had EITF No. 00-25 been adopted for 2001 and 2000, selling, general and administrative expense
would have been reduced by $2.3 billion and $2 billion, respectively. The respective amounts would have been
classified as reductions to net sales. The adoption of EITF No. 00-25 will not impact RJR’s consolidated
financial position, operating income or net income,

Results of Operations

2001 2000 1999

Netsales ................ P $8,585 $8,058 $7,468
Cost of products sold (*).. ... .. o i 3,560 3,436 3,292
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses . ...................... 3,745 3,342 2924
Ongoing operating company contribution.......................... $1,280 $1,280 $1,252

(*) $2,584 million, $2,329 million and $2,178 million of ongoing settlement expense was recorded in cost of
products sold for the years ended 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

2001 Compared with 2000

Net sales of $8.6 billion for the year ended December 31, 2001 increased 6.5% over 2000. This increase
was primarily driven by favorable pricing of $1 billion, as a result of price increases in 2001 and the last half of
2000, partially offset by volume declines of $0.5 billion.

RIR Tobacca’s total shipment volume for the year ended December 31, 2001 of 90.7 billion units,
excluding Puerto Rico and certain other U.S. territories’ volume of 1.3 billion units, decreased 5.9% from the
year ended December 31, 2000. RJR Tobacco’s shipment volume during the year ended December 31, 2001
was adversely impacted by estimated declines in trade inventory levels and decreased consumption.
Consumption of RJR Tobacco’s products, representing retail sales to consumers, declined approximately 2.8%
during 2001 when compared with 2000. Consumption is expected to continue to decline. For the year ended
December 31, 2001, RJR Tobacco’s full-price and savings shipments decreased 5.7% and 6.2%, respectively,
when compared with the prior year. RJR Tobacco’s full-price shipments represented 63.3% and 63.2% of total
shipments for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

CAMEL shipment volume, excluding the non-filter style, for 2001 was up 1.6% versus 2000. WIN-
STON’s base styles decreased 3.7% during 200! from 2000, and SALEM shipments decreased 13.7%.
DORAL shipments decreased 10.1% when compared with the prior year.

Industry volume decreased 3.2% for the year ended December 31, 2001 when compared with 2000. Fuli-
price and savings shipments for the industry for the year ended December 31, 2001 decreased 2.7% and 4.4%,
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respectively, when compared with the prior year. Industry full-price shipments represented 73.8% and 73.5%
of total shipments for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

RJR Tobacco’s retail share of market, according to data from Information Resources Inc./Capstone,
averaged 23.42% for the year ended December 31, 2001, a decrease of .16 share points when compared with
the prior year.

CAMEL, RJR Tobacco’s largest brand, continued its growth trend. CAMEL’s share of market,
excluding the non-filtered style, was 5.52% in 2001, compared with 5.14% in 2000. CAMEL’s growth can be
attributed to its strong “Pleasure to Burn” positioning, which was enhanced by unique programs such as the
“Seven Pleasures of the Exotic” consumer events, and the strength of its Turkish line extensions. Following
the successful launch of CAMEL Turkish Gold in 2000, the brand launched CAMEL Turkish Jade, a
menthol line extension, during the third quarter of 2001.

Base WINSTON'’s retail share averaged 4.84% in 2001, up from 4.76% in 2000. During 2001,
WINSTON modernized its “No Boundaries, No Bull” positioning by launching WINSTON S2, a line
extension that features a new blend and high-impact silver embossed packaging. Additionally, the base
WINSTON family was enhanced to incorporate the same silver highlights.

SALEM’s share averaged 2.73% in 2001 compared with 3.01% in 2000. SALEM’s decline was due to
increased competitive activity in the menthol category coupled with reduced marketing support in SALEM’s
ten emphasis markets in the latter portion of 2001, While the trend in the ten emphasis markets has been
better than in the balance of the country, the brand is currently evaluating opportunities to strengthen its
performance.

Since the second quarter of 2001, DORAL’s share of market has declined after holding relatively steady
at 6.1 to 6.2 share points for several quarters. The retail share of market of DORAL, the nation’s best-selling
savings brand, was 5.92% for 2001, down from 6.16% in 2000. To strengthen DORAL’s performance, the
brand recently launched a comprehensive upgrade across all categories of DORAL’s “Imagine Getting More”
positioning. This upgrade includes a new blend with higher-quality tobaccos, new bold packaging, new
advertising to support the changes and a new website to enhance DORAL's existing relationship marketing
program.

RIJIR Tobacco also is committed to finding ways to develop and market consumer-acceptable cigarettes
that may present less risk associated with smoking. In April 2000, RJR Tobacco launched a new test market
of ECLIPSE in the Dallas/Fort Worth area through direct mail and Internet sales to age-verified, adult
smokers. The Dallas/Fort Worth test market was expanded to include retail sales in January 2001. ECLIPSE
is a cigarette that primarily heats rather than burns tobacco. Although RJR Tobacco does not claim that
ECLIPSE presents smokers with less risk of cardiovascular disease or complications with pregnancy,
ECLIPSE may present less risk of cancer, chronic bronchitis and possibly emphysema when compared with
tobacco-burning cigarettes.

Cost of products sold of $3.6 billion increased $124 million from 2000, primarily due to an increase in
ongoing settlement costs partially offset by decreased volume and lower raw material costs.

Selling, general and administrative expenses of $3.7 billion in 2001 increased $403 million from the prior
year. This change over the prior year was primarily due to increased retail discounting.

Ongoing operating company contribution was unchanged at $1.28 billion for 2001 when compared with
the prior year, primarily due to the factors discussed above. This performance measure omits up-front, initial
tobacco charges, goodwill and trademark amortization expense and certain other adjustments from operating
income.

Amortization expense of $362 million during 2001 decreased $4 million, reflecting the impact of
trademark impairment during 2000. Beginning with the adoption of SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002, no
amortization expense will be recorded related to goodwill or trademarks.

31




An impairment charge of $89 million, or $54 million after tax, was incurred during the fourth quarter of
2000 on two of RJR Tobacco’s non-key brands, MAGNA and CENTURY, measured as the excess of

carrying value over fair value.

Other operating expense includes activity related to a $1.4 billion pre-tax tobacco settlement and related
charge recorded in 1998 by RJR Tobacco. At December 31, 1998, $1.3 billion had been utilized. Since
December 31, 1998, the remaining liability for employece severance and related benefits for workforce
reductions totaling approximately 1,300 employees was utilized through cash expenditures of $76 million and
the reversal of $21 million, due to a less-than-expected workforce reduction.

Interest and debt expense was $15‘0 million and $168 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively. This
decrease primarily resulted from lower debt balances.

Interest income during 2001 increased $18 million when compared with the prior year, primarily
reflecting a higher average cash balance during 2001 when compared with 2000, partially offset by declining
interest rates. Lower interest rates and lower cash balances are expected to cause significantly lower interest
income during 2002, when compared with 2001.

Other expense, net decreased $18 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 from the prior year. This
decrease was primarily due to foreign exchange losses realized during 2000 on debt denominated in foreign
currencies. All debt denominated in foreign currencies was retired in 2000.

Provision for income taxes was $448 million, or an effective rate of 50.2%, in 2001 compared with $396
million, or an effective rate of 52.9%, in 2000. The effective tax rates exceed the federal statutory rate of 35%
primarily due to the impact of certain nondeductible items, including goodwill amortization, and to a lesser
extent, state taxes. The effective tax rate during 2002 is expected to be approximately 39% after the
elimination of goodwill amortization expense.

Discontinued operations in 2001 included a $14 million, $9 million after tax, purchase price adjustment of
the 1999 gain on the sale of the international tobacco business to Japan Tobacco Inc. Including this
adjustment, the net after-tax gain on the sale of the international tobacco business was $2.3 billion.

Extraordinary item included a gain of $1.5 billion realized during the fourth quarter of 2000 in connection
with RJR’s acquisition of NGH. See note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

2000 Compared with 1999

Net sales of $8.1 billion for the year ended December 31, 2000 increased 7.9% over 1999. This increase
was driven by favorable pricing of $626 million, as a result of price increases in 2000 and the last haif of 1999,
partially offset by a $38 million unfavorable volume shift in the branded savings price tier to private label. RJR
Tobacco’s shipment volume for the year of 96.4 billion units, excluding Puerto Rico and certain other U.S.
territories’ volume of 1.4 billion units, was level with the prior year, while industry volume increased 0.1% to
419.8 billion units. RJR Tobacco believes that its shipment volume benefited from an increase in trade
inventory levels. RJR Tobacco’s consumption volume declined 3.5%, and the industry consumption volume
declined 2.5% during 2000 compared with [999.

RJR Tobacco’s full-price shipments represented 63.2% and 62.6% of its total shipments for the years
ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Industry-wide, full-price shipments represented 73.5% and
73.4% of total shipments for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. RJIR Tobacco’s full-
price shipments increased 0.9%, while the industry full-price increase was 0.2%. CAMEL shipments,
excluding the non-filter style, for 2000 were up 10.2% versus 1999, and WINSTON'’s base styles increased
0.6% during 2000 from 1999. SALEM shipments were down 3.9% compared with the prior year. Shipments
for DORAL decreased 1.6% compared with the prior year, while the industry savings decline was 0.2%.

RIJR Tobacco’s retail share of market averaged 23.58% for the year ended December 31, 2000, a decrease
of .34 share points compared with the prior year.
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CAMEL, RIR Tobacco’s largest full-price brand, continued to show strong growth. Its share of market,
excluding the non-filtered style, grew .42 share points to 5.14% in 2000. CAMEL’s growth was supported by
its “Pleasure to Burn” positioning, its successful launch of Turkish Gold and its creative and integrated
marketing programs.

Base WINSTON's retail share of 4.76% for the year ended December 31, 2000 was down slightly from its
1999 share of 4.83%; however, its share increased .16 share points in the second half compared with the first
half of 2000. WINSTON’s “No Bull” positioning and a more competitive retail plan contributed to the
brand’s performance.

SALEM’s share averaged 3.01% in 2000 compared with 3.17% in 1999, reflecting increased competitive
activity in the menthol category. However, SALEM’s share grew in latter 2000 in its emphasis markets where
the brand’s full marketing support had a positive impact among adult menthol smokers. These initiatives
include SALEM’s “It’s not what you expect” positioning, unique packaging, promotions and adult smoker
events.

DORAL’s retail share of market was 6.16% in 2000, down .14 share points compared with the prior year.
Competitive pricing pressure from deep-discount brands impacted DORAL’s performance, particularly in the
second quarter of 2000. To more effectively compete against these brands, refined retail pricing promotions
were begun in mid-2000. These promotions, along with its “Imagine Getting More positioning, contributed to
consecutive share gains in the third and fourth quarters of 2000.

Cost of products soid of $3.4 billion increased $144 million from 1999, primarily due to an increase in
ongoing settlement costs of $151 million and higher promotional costs, partially offset by lower raw material
cost.

Selling, general and administrative expenses of $3.3 billion in 2000 increased $418 million from the prior
year. This change over the prior-year period was primarily due to increased retail discounting.

Ongoing operating company contribution increased 2.2% to $1.28 billion for 2000 when compared with
the prior year. This increase is primarily due to the factors discussed above.

An impairment charge of $89 million, $54 million after tax, was incurred during the fourth quarter of
2000 on two of RJR Tobacco’s non-key brands, MAGNA and CENTURY.

Headqguarters close-down and related charges recorded by RJR in the second quarter of 1999 of $143
million, $93 million after tax, reflected the elimination of its New York corporate headquarters. Total cash
expenditures related to this charge were $122 million. The elimination of the headquarters resulted from
reorganization transactions described in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. Approximately $127
million of the charge was for severance and related benefits for approximately 100 employees whose
employment was terminated. The remainder of the charge was primarily related to contractual lease
termination payments and the write-off of leasehold improvements and abandoned equipment.

Other operating expense during 2000 and 1999 includes a reversal of $3 million and $17 million,
respectively, from the liability for employee severance and related benefits to the $1.4 billion tobacco
settlement and related charge recorded in 1998 by RJR Tobacco. The reversal reflected a less-than-expected
workforce reduction. During 1999, RJR Tobacco recorded a charge of $40 million for initial, up-front costs
related to the tobacco growers’ settlement.

Interest and debt expense was $168 million and $268 million in 2000 and 1999, respectively. This
decrease resulted from the repurchase of approximately $4 billion of debt, partially offset by the issuance of
$1.25 billion of debt, during the second quarter of 1999.

Interest income increased $5 million during 2000 when compared with the prior year, primarily reflecting
higher cash balances and higher interest rates.

Other expense, net decreased $27 million for the year ended December 31, 2000 from the prior year. This
decrease was primarily the result of higher 1999 charges related to the spin-off. See note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Provision for income taxes was $396 million, or an effective rate of 52.9%, in 2000 compared with $315
million, or an effective rate of 61.8%, in 1999. The effective tax rates exceed the federal statutory rate of 35%
primarily due to the impact of certain nondeductible items, including goodwill amortization, and to a lesser
extent, state taxes.

Discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 1999 included after-tax income of $76 million
related to the operations of the international tobacco business and Nabisco. Additionally, discontinued
operations included a $2.3 billion gain on the sale of the international tobacco business, net of a $322 million
loss on the recognition of Nabisco’s cumulative translation adjustment account. See note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Extraordinary item included a gain of $1.5 billion realized during the fourth quarter of 2000 in connection
with RJR’s acquisition of NGH. See note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. An extraordinary loss of
$384 million, $250 miilion after tax, was incurred during 1999 in connection with the repurchase of
approximately $4 billion of debt securities. See note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity and Financial Condition
Liguidity

At present, the principal sources of liquidity for RJR’s operating subsidiaries’ businesses and operating
needs are internally generated funds from their operations and borrowings through RJR. Cash flows from
operating activities are believed to be sufficient for the foreseeable future to enable the operating subsidiaries
to meet their obligations under the MSA, to fund their capital expenditures and to make payments to RIJR
that will enable RJR to make its required debt-service payments and to pay dividends to its stockholders.
Additionally, the acquisition of NGH in December 2000 provided $1.5 billion cash proceeds to RIR
Acquisition Corp., a portion of which is funding RIR’s share repurchase programs. While demand for tobacco
products is not materially impacted in the short term by consumers, the negative impact, if any, on the sources
of liquidity that could result from a decrease in demand for products due to short-term trade inventory
adjustments cannot be predicted. Additionally, RJR cannot predict its cash requirements or those of its
subsidiaries related to any future settlements or judgments, including cash required to bond any appeals, if
necessary, and make no assurance that RJR or its subsidiaries will be able to meet all of those requirements.

Contractual obligations as of December 31, 2001 were:

Payments Due by Period
Less than 1-3 4-5

Total 1 Year Years Years Thereafter
Long-term debt ......... ...t $1,674  $43  $846 $527  $258
Operating leases. .. ...t iiieenaann, 35 19 14 2 —
Total cash obligations ................... $1,709 862  $860 $529  $258

For more information about RJR’s long-term debt, see “—Debt” below. RIR Tobacco estimates that its
settlement charges will approximate $2.4 billion in 2002 and will exceed $2 billion each year thereafter. For
more information about RJR Tobacco’s settlement payments, see “Business — Litigation Affecting the
Cigarette Industry” in Item 1 and note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Commitments as of December 31, 2001 were:
Commitment Expiration Per Period

Total 1 Year

Standby letters of credit backed by revolving credit facility .................. $132 § 132
Trade letter of credit ... ... .. . 1 1
Total commitments. ......... . . $133 § 133
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Cash Flows

Net cash flows from operating activities of $626 million in 2001 increased $36 million from 2000. This
change primarily reflects increased revenues from higher pricing and increased interest income, partially offset
by increased tobacco settlement expenses, raw material purchases and promotional expenses. Net cash flows
from operating activities of $590 million in 2000 decreased $339 million from 1999. This decrease primarily
reflects an increase in cash payments for tobacco settlements and the posting of a $100 million bond related to
the appeal of the Engle verdict, partially offset by increased revenues from higher pricing.

Net cash flows used in investing activities were $307 million in 2001 compared with net cash inflows of
$1.6 billion in 2000. This change is primarily due to investments in short-term securities in 2001, compared
with $1.5 billion net proceeds from the NGH acquisition in 2000 and $110 million proceeds received from the
maturity of short-term investments in 2000. Net cash flows used in investing activities included a $14 million,
$9 million after tax, purchase price adjustment of the 1999 gain on the sale of the international tobacco
business. Net cash flows from investing activities in 2000 decreased $6 billion from 1999. Net cash flows from
1999 investing activities included the net proceeds from the sale of the international tobacco business.

Net cash flows used in financing activities of $842 million in 2001, compared with $881 million in 2000,
included $494 million repurchase of common stock, $320 million of dividends paid and $73 million repayment
of long-term debt. Net cash flows used in financing activities in 2000, compared with $5.4 billion in 1999,
included $387 million repayment of long-term debt, $322 million of dividends paid and $231 million
repurchase of common stock.

Net cash flows related to discontinued operations in 1999 primarily resulted from $2.1 billion of income
taxes paid on the gain on the sale of the international tobacco business, partially offset by net cash flows
provided by discontinued operations of $116 million, and in 2000, an $84 million refund of these taxes.

In connection with the spin-off from NGH in 1999, RJR has assumed, subject to specified exceptions, all
U.S. pension liabilities and related assets for current and former tobacco employees. The additional cash
required, compared with 1998, to fund these liabilities was $58 million in each of 2001, 2000 and 1999. In
January 2002, RJR contributed the expected additional cash requirement of $58 million for each of 2002 and
2003. As a result, the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation cancelled the related $116 million letter of credit.

During 2001, RJR repurchased 8,727,600 shares of its common stock with an aggregate cost of $494
million. Of these amounts, 5,100,100 shares with an aggregate cost of $289 million completed a $350 million
repurchase program authorized by RJR’s board of directors on December 12, 2000. The remaining 3,627,500
shares with an aggregate cost of $205 million were repurchased under an authorization by RJR’s board of
directors on July 18, 2001. This program authorizes the repurchase of shares of RJR’s common stock over
time in the open market, with a maximum aggregate cost of $300 million, to enhance stockholder vatue. The
stock repurchases are funded by dividends from RJR Acquisition Corp. utilizing the cash proceeds of the
NGH acquisition. The timing of repurchases and the number of shares repurchased will depend upon market
conditions. As of January 31, 2002, RIR repurchased 1,030,000 additional shares at a cost of $60 million
under this authorization.

From November 1999 through December 31, 2001, cumulative repurchases under all programs were
19,970,739 shares with an aggregate cost of $780 million. Shares held through repurchase, in addition to
144,683 shares cancelled, less 304,590 shares granted, pursuant to employee benefit plans, are included in
treasury stock in the consolidated balance sheets.

On February 6, 2002, RJR’s board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $1 billion of RIR’s
common stock over time in the open market, to enhance stockholder value. The program will be funded by
dividends from RJR Acquisition Corp. utilizing the cash proceeds of the NGH acquisition and from cash
provided by operating activities. Although RJR expects to complete this authorization within two years, the
timing of repurchases and the number of shares repurchased under this authorization will depend upon market
conditions.
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Debt

On May 18, 1999, RJR completed tender offers to purchase substantially all of its outstanding debt
securities, which resulted in RJR repurchasing $4 billion of its debt with a portion of the proceeds from the
sale of the international tobacco business. As a result, RJR recognized an extraordinary loss from the early
extinguishment of debt of $384 million, $250 million after tax.

RJR’s revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks was amended and restated on November 17,
2000. Under the amendment and restatement, the committed amount of $1.235 billion was reduced to $622
million as of November 2001 and will remain at this amount through May 2003. RJR can use the full facility
to obtain loans or letters of credit, at its option. RJR Tobacco and RJR Acquisition Corp. have guaranteed
RJR’s obligations under this revolving credit facility. If RJR’s guaranteed unsecured notes are rated below
BRBB- by S&P or Baa3 by Moody’s, RIR’s other material subsidiaries will be required to guarantee the facility.
If RJR falls below these thresholds for both of these rating agencies, or two levels below these thresholds for
either of these rating agencies, RJR and the guarantors will be required to pledge their assets to secure their
obligations. RJR is not required to maintain compensating balances; however, commitment fees of 1% of the
committed amount are payable quarterly. The credit facility also limits RJR’s ability to pay dividends,
repurchase stock, incur indebtedness, engage in transactions with affiliates, create liens, acquire, sell or dispose
of specific assets and engage in specified mergers or consolidations. Borrowings under the revolving credit
facility bear interest at rates that vary with the prime rate or LIBCR. At December 31, 2001, RJR had $132
million in letters of credit and no borrowings outstanding under the facility, with the remaining $490 million of
the facility available for borrowing. In January 2002, a $116 million letter of credit was cancelled resulting in
$606 million of the facility available for borrowing.

Additionally, as of December 31, 2001, RJR had a trade letter of credit outstanding of $1 million. RJR
also has a $30 million uncommitted, unsecured line of credit with one bank. No borrowings were outstanding
on this line of credit at December 31, 2001.

RJR filed a registration statement, effective October 8, 1999, in order to issue publicly registered notes of
$550 million in principal amount at 7.375% due 2003, $500 million in principal amount at 7.75% due 2006 and
$200 million in principal amount at 7.875% due 2009 in exchange for an aggregate $1.25 billion of private
placement debt securities. The net proceeds received from the private placement were used for general
corporate purposes. These notes are unsecured obligations and, unlike RJR’s other non-bank debt, are
guaranteed by RJR Tobacco and RJR Acquisition Corp. In addition, any other subsidiaries of RJR that in the
future guarantee the $622 million revolving credit facility, as amended and restated, will also be required to
guarantee these notes. In addition, if RJR and the guarantors are required to pledge their assets to secure their
obligations under the revolving credit facility, as amended and restated, they will also be required to pledge
their assets to secure these notes. Generally, the terms of the notes restrict the issuance of guarantees by
subsidiaries, the pledge of collateral, sale/leaseback transactions and the transfer of all or substantially all of
the assets of RJR and its subsidiaries.

RJR was in compliance with all covenants and restrictions imposed by its indebtedness at December 31,
2001.

RJR filed a shelf registration statement, effective December 22, 1999, for $1.876 billion of debt securities,
guaranteed by RJR Tobacco. On April 19, 2001, a registration statement became effective to add RIR
Acquisition Corp. as a guarantor of these debt securities. As of the date of this filing, no debt securities have
been issued from this registration.

On December 11, 2000, related to the acquisition of NGH, RJR acquired $98 million of 9.5% junior
subordinated debentures, due in 2047, redeemable on September 30, 2003. Interest on these debentures is paid
quarterly in arrears. These debentures are effectively defeased by an irrevocable trust, which is included in
other assets and deferred charges in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2001
and 2000. The trust holds certain U.S. government obligations maturing at such times and in such amounts
sufficient to pay interest and principal.
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As of December 31, 2001, RJR also had $330 million of public notes, at fixed interest rates of 7.625%
through 9.25%, due in 2002 through 2013. See note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Dividends

On February 6, 2002, RJR’s board of directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $.875 per common
share payable on April 1, 2002 to stockholders of record as of March 11, 2002.

Capital Expenditures

RIJIR Tobacco’s capital expenditures were $74 million in 2001, $60 million in 2000 and $55 million in
1999. RJR Tobacco’s capital expenditure program is expected to continue at a level sufficient to support its
strategic and operating needs. RJR Tobacco plans to spend $115 million to $125 million for capital
expenditures during 2002, funded primarily by cash flows from operations. This increase over recent years is
primarily due to increased equipment replacements. There were no material long-term commitments for
capital expenditures as of December 31, 2001.

Litigation and Settlements

Various legal actions, proceedings and claims, including legal actions claiming that lung cancer and other
diseases, as well as addiction, have resulted from the use of, or exposure to, RJR’s operating subsidiaries’
products, - are pending or may be instituted against RJR or its affiliates, including RJR Tobacco, or
indemnitees. For further discussion of litigation and legal proceedings pending against RJR or its affiliates or
indemnitees, see “‘Business — Litigation Affecting the Cigarette Industry” and “Business — Environmental
Matters” in Item 1; “— Governmental Activity”; note 14 to the consolidated financial statements; and
Exhibit 99.1 to this report. RJR believes that, notwithstanding the quality of defenses available to it and its
affiliates in litigation matters, it is possible that its results of operations or cash flows in particular quarterly or
annual periods could be materially affected by the ultimate outcome of various pending or future litigation
matters, including litigation costs. RJR is unable to predict the outcome of the litigation or to derive a
meaningful estimate of the amount or range of any possible loss in any particular quarterly or annual period or
in the aggregate.

In November 1998, RJR Tobacco and the other major U.S. cigarette manufacturers entered into the
MSA with attorneys general representing most U.S. states, territories and possessions. As described under
“Business — Litigation Affecting the Cigarette Industry” in [tem 1, the MSA imposes a stream of future
payment obligations on RJR Tobacco and the other major U.S. cigarette manufacturers and places significant
restrictions on their ability to market and sell cigarettes in the future. The cash payments made by RJR
Tobacco under the MSA and other existing settiement agreements were $2.4 billion, $2.2 billion and $1.6
billion in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. RJR Tobacco estimates these payments to be $2.4 billion in 2002
and to exceed $2 billion per year thereafter. However, these payments will be subject to adjustments for,
among other things, the volume of cigarettes sold by RJR Tobacco, RJR Tobacco’s market share and
inflation. RJR Tobacco cannot predict the impact on its business, competitive position or results of operations
of the MSA and the other existing settlement agreements, the business activity restrictions to which it is
subject under these agreements or the price increases that it may be required to make as a result of these
agreements.

Governmental Activity

The advertising, sale, taxation and use of cigarettes have been subject to substantial regulation by
government and health officials for many years. Various state governments have adopted or are considering,
among other things, legislation and regulations increasing their excise taxes on cigarettes, restricting displays
and advertising of tobacco products, establishing fire safety standards for cigarettes, raising the minimum age
to possess or purchase tobacco products, requiring the disclosure of ingredients used in the manufacture of
tobacco products, imposing restrictions on public smoking and restricting the sale of tobacco products directly
to consumers or other unlicensed recipients or over the Internet. In addition, in 2002, the U.S. Congress may
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consider legislation regarding further increases in the federal excise tax, regulation of cigarette manufacturing
and sale by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, implementation of a national standard for “fire-safe”
cigarettes and changes to the tobacco price support program. Together with manufacturers’ price increases in
recent years and substantial increases in state and federal excise taxes on cigarettes, these developments have
had and will likely continue to have an adverse effect on cigarette sales.

Cigarettes are subject to substantial excise taxes in the United States. The federal excise tax per pack of
20 cigarettes is $.39 as of January 1, 2002, All states and the District of Columbia currently impose excise
taxes at levels ranging from $.025 per pack in Virginia to $1.425 per pack in Washington. The excise tax in
New York will increase to $1.50 per pack on April 13, 2002.

In 1964, the Report of the Advisory Committee to the Surgeon General of the U.S. Public Health
Service concluded that cigarette smoking was a health hazard of sufficient importance to warrant appropriate
remedial action. Since 1966, federal law has required a warning statement on cigarette packaging. Since 1971,
television and radio advertising of cigarettes has been prohibited in the United States. Cigarette advertising in
other media in the United States is required to include information with respect to the “tar” and nicotine yield
of cigarettes, as well as a warning statement.

During the past three decades, various laws affecting the cigarette industry have been enacted. In 1984,
Congress enacted the Comprehensive Smoking Education Act. Among other things, the Smoking Education
Act:

o establishes an interagency committee on smoking and health-that is charged with carrying out a
program to inform the public of any dangers to human health presented by cigarette smoking;

o requires a series of four health warnings to be printed on cigarette packages and advertising on a
rotating basis;

° increases type size and area of the warning required in cigarette advertisements; and

o requires that cigarette manufacturers provide annually, on a confidential basis, a list of ingredients
added to tobacco in the manufacture of cigarettes to the Secretary of Health and Human Services.

The warnings currently required on cigarette packages and advertisements are:

o “SURGEON GENERAL’S WARNING: Smoking Causes Lung Cancer, Heart Disease, Emphy-
sema, And May Complicate Pregnancy”’;

o “SURGEON GENERAL’S WARNING: Quitting Smoking Now Greatly Reduces Serious Risks To
Your Health™;

o “SURGEON GENERAL’S WARNING: Smoking By Pregnant Women May Result in Fetal Injury,
Premature Birth, and Low Birth Weight”; and

o “SURGEON GENERAL’S WARNING: Cigarette Smoke Contains Carbon Monoxide.”

Since the initial report in 1964, the Secretary of Health, Education and Welfare (now the Secretary of
Health and Human Services) and the Surgeon General have issued a number of other reports which purport
to find the nicotine in cigarettes addictive and to link cigarette smoking and exposure to cigarette smoke with
certain health hazards, including various types of cancer, coronary heart disease and chronic obstructive lung
disease. These reports have recommended various governmental measures to reduce the incidence of smoking.
In 1992, the federal Alcohol, Drug Abuse and Mental Health Act was signed into law. This act requires states
to adopt a minimum age of 18 for purchases of tobacco products and to establish a system to monitor, report
and reduce the illegal sale of tobacco products to minors in order to continue receiving federal funding for
mental health and drug abuse programs. In January 1996, the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services announced regulations implementing this legislation.

In December 1992, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency issued a report that classified environ-
mental tobacco smoke as a Group A (known human) carcinogen. RJR Tobacco and others filed suit to
challenge the validity of the EPA report. On July 17, 1998, a U.S. District Court judge held that the EPA’s
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classification of environmental tobacco smoke was invalid and vacated those portions of the report dealing with
lung cancer. The EPA appealed, and oral argument was held before the Court of Appeals for the Fourth
Circuit on June 7, 1999. RJR Tobacco is awaiting the Court’s decision.

In March 1994, the U.S. Occupational Safety and Health Administration announced proposed regula-
tions that would restrict smoking in the workplace to designated smoking rooms that are separately exhausted
to the outside. RJR Tobacco submitted comments on the proposed regulations during the comment period
that closed in February 1996. In December 2001, OSHA announced the withdrawal of its proposed
regulations, stating that most of the activity on workplace smoking restrictions was taking place on the state
and local levels. OSHA further stated that the announcement did not preclude future agency action, but
claimed that 70 percent of employees now work where smoke-free workplace policies exist.

Legislation imposing various restrictions on public smoking also has been enacted in 48 states and many
local jurisdictions, and many employers have initiated programs restricting or eliminating smoking in the
workplace. A number of states have enacted legislation designating a portion of increased cigarette excise
taxes to fund either anti-smoking programs, health care programs or cancer research. In addition, educational
and research programs addressing health care issues related to smoking are being funded from industry
payments made or to be made under settlements with state attorneys general. Federal law prohibits smoking in
scheduled passenger aircraft, and the U.S. Interstate Commerce Commission has banned smoking on buses
transporting passengers inter-state. Certain common carriers have imposed additional restrictions on passenger
smoking,

In July 1996, Massachusetts enacted legislation requiring manufacturers of tobacco products sold in
Massachusetts to report yearly, beginning December 15, 1997, the ingredients of each brand sold. The statute
also requires the reporting of nicotine yield ratings in accordance with procedures established by the state. The
legislation contemplates public disclosure of all ingredients in descending quantitative order, a trade-secret
disclosure that RJR Tobacco believes could damage the competitive position of its brands. RJR Tobacco,
together with other cigarette manufacturers, filed suit in the U.S. District Court for the District of
Massachusetts secking to have the statute declared invalid. In September 2000, the district court permanently
enjoined enforcement of provisions of the law relating to ingredient reporting and issued a judgment in favor of
the cigarette manufacturers. On October 16, 2001, a panel of the United States Court of Appeals for the First
Circuit reversed the district court’s decision, ruling that the ingredients disclosure provisions were valid. The
entire court, however, agreed to re-hear the appeal, reinstating the district court’s injunction in the meantime.
Oral argument before the full court took place on January 7, 2002, and RJR Tobacco is awaiting the decision.

In August 1998, the Massachusetts Department of Public Health issued proposed regulations for public
comment that would require annual reporting, beginning July 1, 2000, on a brand-by-brand basis of 43 smoke
constituents in both mainstream smoke and sidestream smoke. RJR Tobacco, together with other cigarette
manufacturers, filed comments with the MDPH on October 9, 1998. RJR Tobacco and the other manufactur-
ers believe that the MDPH lacks legal authority to promulgate these regulations. Nevertheless, RIR Tobacco
and the other manufacturers have conducted a cooperative benchmarking study to address certain MDPH
concerns. The benchmarking study obtained smoke constituent information on a representative number of
cigarette brand styles. The final report, including all data, was presented to the MDPH. The MDPH has
drafted additional proposed regulations requiring further extensive testing of cigarette brands. The MDPH has
engaged in discussions about these additional proposed regulations with representatives of the cigarette
manufacturers and others, but has not formally issued them for public comment. Although the MDPH has
stated its intention to promulgate additional reporting requirements, RJR Tobacco cannot predict the form
they will take or the effect they will have on RJR Tobacco’s business or operations.

On May 21, 1999, RJR Tobacco, Lorillard Tobacco Company, Brown & Williamson Tobacco Corpora-
tion and Philip Morris, Inc. filed lawsuits in the U.S. District Court for the District of Massachusetts to enjoin
implementation of certain Massachusetts Attorney General regulations concerning the advertisement and
display of tobacco products. The regulations went beyond those required by the MSA, and banned outdoor
advertising of tobacco products within 1,000 feet of any school or playground, as well as any indoor tobacco
advertising placed lower than five feet in stores within the 1,000-foot zone. The district court ruled against the

39




industry on January 25, 2000, and the United States Court of Appeals for the First Circuit affirmed. The U.S.
Supreme Court granted the industry’s petition for writ of certiorari on January 8, 2001, and ruled in favor of
RIJR Tobacco and the rest of the industry on June 28, 2001. The Supreme Court found that the regulations
were preempted by the Federal Cigarette Labeling and Advertising Act, which precludes states from imposing
any requirement or prohibition based on smoking and health with respect to the advertising or promotion of
cigarettes labeled in conformity with federal law.

In June 2000, the New York state legislature passed legislation charging the state’s Office of Fire
Prevention and Control with developing standards for “fire-safe” or self-extinguishing cigarettes. The OFPC
has until January 1, 2003 to issue final regulations. Six months from the issuance of the standards, but no later
than July 1, 2003, all cigarettes offered for sale in New York state will be required to be manufactured to those
standards. RJR Tobacco is unable to predict what design or manufacturing changes will be necessary for
cigarettes manufactured for sale in New York until the standards are published. Similar legislation is being
considered by other state legislatures.

On September 11, 2001, RJR Tobacco, together with several retailers who sell RJR Tobacco’s products,
filed a Petition for Declaratory Judgment and Injunctive Relief in the District Court of Lancaster County,
Nebraska, challenging the validity of the Nebraska Department of Revenue’s interpretation of 316 N.A.C.
§§ 57-012, 57-015 and 57-016. The Department of Revenue maintains that this regulation prohibits the
advertisement of RJR Tobacco’s manufacturer’s promotion known as a “buy down” to consumers. The
plaintiffs have challenged the Department of Revenue’s interpretation of this regulation on the grounds that
such action exceeded the Department’s statutory authority, constituted an unlawful rulemaking, violated the
United States and Nebraska constitutions and is preempted by federal law. On October 15, 2001, the
defendants filed a Demurrer to the plaintiffs’ Petition for Declaratory Judgment and Injunctive Relief. The
Court has not yet ruled on the parties’ motions.

A price differential exists between cigarettes manufactured for sale abroad and cigarettes manufactured
for U.S. sale; consequently, a domestic “‘gray market” has developed in cigarettes manufactured for sale
abroad. These cigarettes compete with the cigarettes RJR Tobacco manufactures for domestic sale. The U.S.
federal government and 49 states have enacted legislation prohibiting the sale and distribution of gray market
cigarettes. In addition, RJR Tobacco has taken legal action against certain distributors and retailers who
engage in such practices.

Two states have passed and various states are considering legislation to ensure “nonparticipating
manufacturers” under the MSA are making required escrow payments under the MSA. Failure to make
escrow payments could result in the loss of a nonparticipating manufacturer’s ability to sell tobacco products in
a respective state.

Tobacco leaf is an agricultural product subject to U.S. Government production controls and price
supports that can affect market prices substantially. The tobacco leaf price support program is subject to
congressional review and may be changed at any time. In December 1994, Congress enacted the Uruguay
Round Agreements Act to replace a domestic content requirement with a tariff rate quota system that bases
tariffs on import volumes. The tariff rate quotas have been established by the United States with overseas
tobacco producers and became effective on September 13, 1995. Because of the importance of tobacco leaf as
a raw material for RJR Tobacco’s products, substantial changes in the legislative or regulatory environment
applicable to tobacco leaf could have a material effect on RJR Tobacco’s results of operations and cash flows.

It is not possible to determine what additional federal, state or local legislation or regulations relating to
smoking or cigarettes will be enacted or to predict the effect of new legislation or regulations on RJR Tobacco
or the cigarette industry in general, but any new legislation or regulations could have an adverse effect on RJR
Tobacco or the cigarette industry in general.

For further discussion of litigation and legal proceedings pending against RJR, its affiliates, including
RJR Tobacco, or indemnitees, see “Business — Litigation Affecting the Cigarette Industry” and “Business —
Environmental Matters” in Item 1; note 14 to the consolidated financial statements; and Exhibit 99.1 to this
report.
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Environmental Matters

RJR and its subsidiaries are subject to federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations
concerning the discharge, storage, handling and disposal of hazardous or toxic substances. RJR and its
subsidiaries have been engaged in a continuing program to assure compliance with these environmental laws
and regulations. Although it is difficult to identify precisely the portion of capital expenditures or other costs
attributable to compliance with environmental laws and regulations, RJR does not expect such expenditures or
other costs to have a material adverse effect on the business or financial condition of RJR or its subsidiaries.

For further discussion of environmental matters, see “Business — Environmental Matters” in Item 1 and
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other Contingencies

Until the acquisition by merger by Philip Morris Companies, Inc. of Nabisco from NGH on Decem-
ber 11, 2000, NGH and Nabisco were members of the consolidated group of NGH for U.S. federal income
tax purposes. Each member of a consolidated group is jointly and severally liable for the U.S. federal income
tax liability of other members of the group as well as for pension and funding liabilities of the other group
members. NGH, now known as RJR Acquisition Corp., continues to be jointly and severally liable for these
Nabisco liabilities prior to December 11, 2000.

In connection with Philip Morris” acquisition by merger of Nabisco and RJR’s subsequent acquisition by
merger of NGH, Philip Morris, Nabisco,and NGH entered into a voting and indemnity agreement that
generally seeks to allocate tax liabilities ratably based upon NGH’s taxable income and that of Nabisco, had
the parties been separate taxpayers. If Philip Morris and Nabisco are unable to satisfy their obligations under
this agreement, NGH, now known as RJR Acquisition Corp., would be responsible for satisfying them.

In connection with the sale of the international tobacco business to Japan Tobacco Inc. on May 12, 1999,
RJR and RJR Tobacco agreed to indemnify Japan Tobacco against (1) any liabilities, costs and expenses
arising out of the imposition or assessment of any tax with respect to the international tobacco business arising
prior to the sale, other than as reflected on the closing balance sheet, (2) any liabilities, costs and expenses
that Japan Tobacco or any of its affiliates, including the acquired entities, may incur after the sale in respect of
any of RIR’s or RIR Tobacco’s employee benefit and welfare plans and (3) any liabilities, costs and expenses
incurred by Japan Tobacco or any of its affiliates arising out of certain activities of Northern Brands. See
“Business — Litigation Affecting the Cigarette Industry” in Item | and note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements for a description of the Northern Brands litigation. Although it is impossible to predict the
outcome of the Northern Brands litigation or the amount of liabilities, costs and expenses, a significant adverse
outcome regarding any of these items could have an adverse effect on either or both of RJR and RJR
Tobacco. :

Acguisition

On January 16, 2002, RJR acquired 100% of the voting stock of privately held Santa Fe for $340 million
in cash, subject to post-closing adjustments. Fiesta Acquisition Corp., a wholly owned subsidiary of RJR,
merged with and into Santa Fe, and Santa Fe, being the surviving corporation, became a wholly owned
subsidiary of RJR. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase, with its cost allocated on the basis of the
estimated fair market value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

RJR believes that Santa Fe will enhance RJR’s consolidated earnings, and that its approach to building
brand equity is consistent with RJR Tobacco’s strategy for its key brands. Santa Fe’s sales have tripled over
the past five years, based on the success of cigarettes and pouch tobaccos sold under the NATURAL
AMERICAN SPIRIT brand name. NATURAL AMERICAN SPIRIT cigarettes are made with no-additive
tobacco blends and are marketed in distinctive packages bearing the silhouette of an American Indian in a
feathered headdress. The NATURAL AMERICAN SPIRIT retail share of market during 2001 was .21% in
the United States. Santa Fe also has a small, but growing international tobacco business.
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Statements included in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” which are not historical in nature are forward-looking statements made pursuant to the safe
harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements
regarding our future performance and financial results include certain risks and uncertainties that could cause

actual results to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements. These risks include
the substantial and increasing regulation and taxation of the cigarette industry; various legal actions,
proceedings and claims arising out of the tobacco business and claimed health effects of cigarettes that are
pending or may be instituted against RJR or its subsidiaries; the substantial payment obligations and
limitations on the advertising and marketing of cigarettes, under various litigation settlement agreements; the
continuing decline in volume in the domestic cigarette industry; competition from other cigarette manufactur-
ers; the success of new product innovations and acquisitions; the effect of market conditions on the
performance of pension assets and the return on corporate cash; and the ratings of RJR’s securities. Due to
these uncertainties and risks, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date of this report.

Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact the consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows due to adverse changes in financial market prices and rates. RJR and its subsidiaries
are exposed to interest rate risk directly related to their normal investing and funding activities. In addition,
since the second quarter of 2001, RJR Tobacco has been exposed to insignificant foreign currency exchange
rate risk related to an unrecognized firm commitment for the purchase of equipment denominated in Euros.
See notes 8, 10, 13 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements for more information. RJR and its
subsidiaries have established various policies and procedures to manage their exposure to market risks and use
major institutions with high credit ratings to minimize their investment and credit risk. Derivative financial
instruments are not used for trading or speculative purposes.

The value-at-risk model is used to statistically measure the maximum fair value, cash flows or earnings
loss over one year from adverse changes in interest rates and foreign currency rates. The computation assumes
a 95% confidence level under normal market conditions. This model indicates that near term changes in
interest rates and foreign currency rates will not have a material impact on the future earnings, fair values or
cash flows, based on the historical movements in interest rates, foreign currency rates and the fair value of
market-rate sensitive instruments at December 31, 2001.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, [nc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and
2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Greensboro, North Carolina
January 24, 2002, except as to notes 14 and 22, which are as of February 7, 2002
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Independent Auditors’ Report

R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of income, cash flows and stockholders’ equity
and comprehensive income of R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (“RJR™) for the year
ended December 31, 1999. These financial statements are the responsibility of RJR’s management. Cur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the results of
operations and cash flows of RJR for the year ended December 31, 1999, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Raleigh, North Carolina
January 27, 2000
(February 23, 2000 as to Note 14)
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Report of Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

The financial statements presented in this report are the responsibility of management, and have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles using, where appropriate, management’s
best estimates and judgment. Management maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable
assurance that RJR’s assets are safeguarded and transactions are executed as authorized and properly
recorded. The system includes established policies and procedures, a program of internal audits, management
reviews and careful selection and training of qualified personnel.

The audit committee of RJR’s board of directors is composed solely of outside directors. It meets
periodically with management, the internal auditors and the independent auditors, to discuss and address
internal accounting control, auditing and financial reporting matters. Both independent and internal auditors
have unrestricted access to the audit committee.

/s/ Andrew J. Schindler

Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Kenneth J. Lapiejko

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)
For the Years Ended December 31,

Net sales® ... e

Costs and expenses: v
Cost of products sold* .. ... ... ... ... .. . e
Selling, general and administrative expenses .........................
Amortization of trademarks and goodwill ............ ... . ... .. ...
Impairment charge .. ... ...ttt
Headquarters close-down and related charges . .......................
Other Operating eXpemSe . . . v v v vttt et et et e

Operating IMCOMIE . .. . ...ttt e
Interest and debt expense ....... ... i
Interest INCOME . . ...t e e e
Other expense, net ........ PP

Income frem continuing operations before income taxes ............
Provision for income taxes . ... ...ttt e

Income from continuimg OPerationms . ...............iiiiiinnnn.
Discontinued operations:
Income from operations of discontinued businesses, net of income taxes
Gain (loss) on discontinued businesses, net of income taxes ...........

Income before extraordinary items. . .......... . ...,
Extraordinary item—gain on acquisition, net of income taxes.............
Extraordinary item—Iloss on early extinguishment of debt, net of income

12D T

Net IMCOMIE . o vttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e

Basic income (loss) per share:
Income from continuing Operations. ... ..........c.ovuuuunerennnei..
Income (loss) from discontinued operations .........................
Extraordinary items—gain (10ss) ........... ..,

NEt INCOME . ..ttt et et e e e e e e
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income from continuing Operations. ... .........c.cuviiiennennnen. ..

Income (loss) from discontinued operations .................ccooo....
Extraordinary items—gain (loss) .......... ...,

NeEtINCOME . .ot

2001 2060 1999
$8,585  $8,058  $7,468
3,560 3436 3,292
3,745 3342 2,924
362 366 366
— — 143

— (3) 21
918 828 722
150 168 268
(137) (1190  (114)
13 . 31 58
892 748 510
448 396 315
444 352 195
— — 76

9) — 2322
435 352 2,593
— 1,475 —
— — (250)

$ 435  $1,827  $2,343
$457 $348 $1.80
(.09) — 2210
— 14.56 (2.30)
$ 448  $18.04  $21.60
$448 $346 $ 1.80
(.09) — 2208
_ 14.48 (2.30)
$439  $17.94  $21.58
$330 $310 $ 155

* Excludes excise taxes of $1,529 million, $1,631 million and $1,173 million for the years ended

December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{Dollars in Millions)

For the Years Ended December 31,

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

\
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2001 2000 1999
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
INEt INCOMIE . . oottt et e e e e e $ 435 $ 1,827 § 2,343
Less income (loss) from discontinued operations..................... (9) — 2,398
Subtotal ... 444 1,827 (55)
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash flows from (used in) continuing
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization. . ......... ..., 491 485 482
Impairment charge .. ...t — 89 —
Deferred income tax benefit ......... ... . i (43) (31) (307)
Extraordinary gain on acquiSition ................ciiea s, — (1,475) —
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt ................. — — 384
Other changes, net of acquisition effects, that provided (used) cash:
Accounts and notes receivable. . ... ... .. (6) (12) (32)
Inventories . . ...t (141) (23) (41)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities including income taxes . ... (211) (194) (50)
Litigation bonds . ........ ...t e — (118) —
Tobacco settlement and related expenses................... S 123 82 564
Restructuring and related expenses, net of cash .................... — — (8)
Headquarters close-down and related charges, net of cash ........... — — 21
Other, met. ... (31) (40) (29)
Net cash flows from operating activities ................ccooiunon. 626 590 929
Cash flows from (used in} investing activities:
Short-term investments .. ...ttt (207) 110 (110)
Capital expenditures .. ... it (74) (60) (55)
Net proceeds from acquisition. ........ ..ottt — 1,519 —
Net proceeds from the sale of the international tobacco business........ (14 — 7,760
Other, M. Lt e (12) 4 (19)
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities .................. (307) 1,573 7,576
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Repurchase of common stock . ...... .. .. . i (494) (231) (55)
Dividends paid on common stock . .......... . o i i (320) (322) (85)
Repayments of long-term debt ...... ... .. ... ... ..ol (73) (387) (4,450)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options. ..., 45 59 —
Proceeds from issuance of long-termdebt . .......................... -— — 1,244
Transfers and payments to former parent.................. e — — (1,968)
Decrease in short-term borrowing . ..........ooiviin i, — — (62)
Other, Net. .o e — — 17
Net cash flows used in financing activities......................... (842) (881)  (5,359)
Net cash flows related to discontinued operations (including income taxes
paid on gain on sale of the international tobacco business of $2,085 in
....................... — 84 (1,969)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents.............................. (523) 1,366 1,177
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ..................... ... 2,543 1,177 —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year .......... ... ... .. ... ... ... $2,020 $ 2543 $ 1,177
Income taxes paid, net of refunds. ....... ... . ... ... .. ., $ 457 § 309 § 2,605
Interest paid. ... ... o i e $ 141 $ 153 $ 341
Tobacco settlement and related expense payments...................... $2,393  $ 2,247 $ 1,636




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{Dollars in Millions)

December 31,

2001 2000
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ............ . it i $ 2,020 $ 2,543
Short-term INVEStMENtS . . .. ..ottt et e e 207 —
Accounts and notes receivable, net of allowance (2001 — $13; 2000 — $11) ....... 106 100
IVEmIOIES . .ttt e e 730 588
Deferred inCOME tAXES . . .. ..ottt et et e 538 459
Prepaid excise taxes and other ........ ... . 255 181
Total CUTTENL ASSEIS . . o v o et e et e e e e e e e e 3,856 3,871
Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Land and land improvements ... ... i 94 94
Buildings and leasehold improvements ......... ... ... .. ... i 668 666
Machinery and equipment . .... ... .. i 1,557 1,531
COnStIUCHOM-IN-PIOCESS - .\ o vt ettt e ettt et e e et et e eae e 61 34
Total property, plant and eqUIpMEnt ... ...t 2,380 2,325
Less accumulated depreciation. ........ ...t 1,330 1,277
Property, plant and equipment, net . ........ ... ... L 1,050 1,048
Trademarks, net of accumulated amortization (2001 — $1,450; 2000 — $1,348) ...... 2,773 2,875
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization (2001 — $3,359; 2000 — $3,099) ......... 6,875 7,303
Other assets and deferred charges ... ... . i 496 457
$15,050 $15,554
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . ... ... $ 74§ 80
Tobacco settlement and related accruals. . ......... ... ... . . i, 1,520 1,394
Accrued labilities . ... .. 1,155 1,229
Current maturities of long-termdebt. .. ....... ... .. .. .. . 43 73
Total current liabilities ........... ... ... ......... O 2,792 2,776
Long-term debt (less current maturities) ........... ... it ine .. 1,631 1,674
Deferred INCOmME 1aXeS . . ..o\ttt it et 1,726 1,856
Long-term retirement benefits . ... ... ... i 514 543
Other noncurrent liabilities . .. ... .. . . . e 361 269
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock (shares issued: 2001 — 114,046,712; 2000 — 112,563,918) ......... 1 1
Paid-in capital ... ... . 7,371 7,291
Retained earnings. ... ... oo 1,593 1,481
Accumulated other comprehensive loss — cumulative minimum pension liability
AdJUSTIMICIE . ot e e e e (121) (8)
Unamortized restricted stock ......... ... (42) (41)
8,802 8,724
Less treasury stock (shares: 2001 — 19,810,832; 2000 — 11,299,092), at cost....... (776) (288)
Total stockholders” equity .. ... 8,026 8,436

$15,050 $15,554

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

48




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Dollars in Millions)

Retained Accumulated
Earnings Other Unamortized Total
Common Paid-in  (Accumulated Comprehensive  Restricted  Treasury Stockholders’ Comprehensive
Stock Capital Deficit) Income (Loss) Stock Stock Equity Income

Balance at December 31, 1998 ... § 1 $10861 § (516) $(460) $ — $§ — $ 9,886
Netincome ...........cvvuvnn. — — 2,343 — — — 2,343 $2,343
Foreign currency translation, net of

tax benefit of $11 million .. .... — — — (86) — — (86) (86)
Minimum pension liability, net of

tax benefit of $4 million ... .. .. — — — (7 — — (7) (7)
Total comprehensive income . . . .. — — —_ — —_ — — $2,250
Dividends .................. ... — (169) — — — — (169)
Items related to international

tobacco business (see note 2) .. — — — 218 — — 218
Merger transaction® ............ — (3,435) (1,958) 322 — — (5,071)
Stock options exercised.......... — 4 — — — — 4
Restricted stock awarded .. ...... — 23 — — (32) — 9
Restricted stock amortization. .. .. — — — — 7 — 7
Common stock repurchased . ... .. — — — — — (53) (55)
Other ... .. ... ... ...l = 3 — = = — 3
Balance at December 31, 1999 ... 1 7,287 (131) (13) (25) (55) 7,064
Net income .............c..... — — 1,827 — — — 1,827 $1,827
Minimum pension liability, net of

tax expense of $3 million ...... — — — 5 — — 5 5
Total comprehensive income .. ... — — — — — — — $1,832
Dividends ..................... — (102) (215) — — — (317)
Stock options exercised.......... — 62 — — — — 62
Tax benefit on stock options

exercised. ................... — 7 — — — — 7
Restricted stock awarded ........ — 37 — — (37) — —
Restricted stock amortization. . . . . — — — — 19 — 19
Restricted stock forfeited ........ — — — — 2 (2) —
Common stock repurchased . .. ... = —_— — — - _(231) (231)
Balance at December 31, 2000 ... 1 7,291 1,481 (8) (41) (288) 8,436
Netincome ................... — — 435 — — — 435 $ 435
Minimum pension liability, net of

tax benefit of $61 million . ... .. — —_ — (113) — — (113) (113)
Total comprehensive income ... .. — — — — - — — $ 322
Dividends ..................... - — (324) - — — (324)
Stock options exercised.......... — 42 — — — — 42
Tax benefit on stock options

exercised................. ... — 20 — — — — 20
Restricted stock awarded ........ — 18 — — (26) 8 —
Restricted stock amortization. .. .. —_ — — — 23 — 23
Restricted stock forfeited ... ... .. — — i — 2 (2) 1
Common stock repurchased ...... = — — — e _(499) (494)
Balance at December 31,2001 ... § 1 § 7,371 $ 1,593 $(121) $(42) $(776) § 8,026

* Transfer of RJR’s 80.5% interest in Nabisco, together with a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the
international tobacco business, to NGH. See note 2.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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NQTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc.,

referred to as RJR, and its wholly owned subsidiaries, including R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company, referred to
as RJR Tobacco, and RJR Acquisition Corp.

The equity method is used to account for investments in businesses that RJR does not control, but have
the ability to significantly influence operating and financial policies. The cost method is used to account for
investments in which RJR does not have the ability to significantly influence operating and financial policies.
All material intercompany balances have been eliminated.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect
the reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Certain reclassifications were made to conform prior years’ financial statements to
the current presentation.

Discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2001 included a $14 million, $9 million after
tax, purchase price adjustment of the 1999 gain on the sale of the international tobacco business to Japan
Tobacco Inc. Including this adjustment, the net after-tax gain on the sale of the international tobacco business
was $2.3 billion.

For 1999, the account balances and activities of the international tobacco business and Nabisco Holdings
Corp., referred to as Nabisco, are segregated and reported as discontinued operations in RIJR’s consolidated
financial statements. See note 2 for more discussion.

All dollar amounts are presented in millions, unless noted otherwise.

Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

Cash equivalents include money market funds, commercial paper and time deposits in major institutions
with high credit ratings to minimize investment risk. As short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible to known amounts of cash, with remaining maturities of three months or less at the time of
purchase, cash equivalents have carrying values that approximate fair values. Debt securities included in cash
equivalents are classified and accounted for as held-to-maturity or, in certain instances, available-for-sale
securities. The appropriate classification of cash equivalents and short-term investments are determined at the
time of purchase and the classification is reassessed at each reporting date. Short-term investments include
investment pools that are classified and accounted for as available-for-sale securities.

Investment securities classified as available-for-sale are reported at fair value based on current market
quotes with unrealized gains and losses, net of any tax effect, recorded as a separate component of
comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity until realized. Interest income and amortization of premiums
and discounts are included in interest income. Gains and losses on investment securities sold are determined
based on the specific identification method and are included in other expense, net. Unrealized losses that are
other than temporary are recognized in net income. No securities are held for speculative or trading purposes.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The cost of tobacco inventories is determined
principally under the last-in, first-out, or LIFO, method. The cost of work in process and finished goods
includes materials, direct labor, and variable and full absorption of fixed manufacturing overhead. Stocks of
tobacco, which must be cured for more than one year, are classified as current assets in accordance with
recognized industry practice.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method of
depreciation over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Useful lives range from 20 to 50 years for buildings
and improvements and from 3 to 30 years for machinery and equipment. The cost and related accumulated
depreciation of assets sold or retired are removed from the accounts and the gain or loss on disposition is
recognized in income.

Intangibles

Intangibles include primarily goodwill and trademarks and, for the periods presented through Decem-
ber 31, 2001, have been amortized using the straight-line method, principally over 40 years.

Software Costs

Certain computer software and software development costs incurred in connection with developing or
obtaining computer software for internal use that has a useful life of greater than one year are capitalized.
These costs are amortized over five years or less. During 2001 and 2000, costs of $12 million and $19 million,
respectively, were capitalized and at December 31, 2001, the unamortized balance was $28 million. Related
amortization expense was $8 million, $4 million and $1 million for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively. :

Long-Lived Assets

Goodwill is continually reviewed for impairment, and for other long-lived assets held for use, including
trademarks and property, plant and equipment, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
book value of the asset may not be recoverable. The carrying value of long-lived assets would be impaired if
the best estimate of future undiscounted cash flows over the remaining amortization period is less than the
carrying value. If an asset is impaired, the loss is measured using estimated fair value. Assets to be disposed of
are reported at the lower of their carrying value or estimated net realizable value.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from product sales is recognized upon shipment, when title and risk of loss passes to the
customer. Shipping and handling costs are classified as cost of products sold.

Advertising and Research and Development

Advertising costs, which are expensed as incurred, were $73 million, $137 million and $168 million in the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Research and development costs, which are
expensed as incurred, were $64 million, $58 million and $59 million in the years ended December 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date. Income taxes for RJR, RJR Tobacco and RJR Acquisition Corp. are
calculated on a separate return basis.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Pension and Postretirement

Unrecognized prior service costs are amortized over the estimated remaining service lives of employees.
If the changes experienced in the projected benefit obligation or plan assets differ from those assumed, the
unrecognized net gain or loss is amortized over five years.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2001, RJR’s operating subsidiaries adopted the Emerging Issues Task Force’s Issue
No. 00-14, “Accounting for Certain Sales Incentives,” which addresses the recognition, measurement and
income statement classification for certain sales incentives, including rebates, coupons and free products or
services. EITF No. 00-14 requires that in the accompanying consolidated income statements, certain costs
that historically were included in selling, general and administrative expenses now be classified in cost of
products sold or as reductions of net sales. Those costs have been reclassified in prior periods for comparative
purposes. The adoption of EITF No. 00-14 did not impact consolidated annual net income or cumulative
earnings.

As of January 1, 2001, RJR and its subsidiaries adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 137 and SFAS No. 138. SFAS No. 133 requires that all derivative
instruments be recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives are recorded each period in earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on whether a
derivative is designated and effective as part of a hedge transaction. If it is, the type of hedge transaction must
be disclosed. The adoption of SFAS No. 133, as amended, did not impact RJR’s consolidated financial
position or results of operations.

As of December 31, 2001, RJR Tobacco held a forward currency exchange contract to purchase seven
million Euros with a term of less than 12 months as a hedge of an unrecognized firm commitment for the
purchase of equipment. As of December 31, 2001, the foreign currency cash flow hedge was effective and,
accordingly, no gain or loss was realized. The unrealized gain resulting from the increase in the hedge’s fair
value was insignificant.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” which prohibits the pooling-
of-interests method accounting for business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and addresses the
accounting for purchase method business combinations completed after June 30, 2001. Also in June 2001, the
FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which is effective as of January 1,
2002. SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be
amortized. This statement also requires that within the first interim period of adoption, the intangible assets
with indefinite lives should be tested for impairment as of the date of adoption, and that if any impairment
results, it should be recognized as a change in accounting principle. Additionally, SFAS No. 142 requires that
within six months of adoption, goodwill be tested for impairment at the reporting unit level as of the date of
adoption. If any impairment is indicated to have existed upon adoption, it should be measured and recorded
before the end of the year of adoption. SFAS No. 142 requires that any goodwill impairment loss recognized
as a result of initial application be reported in the first interim period of adoption as a change in accounting
principle, and that the income per share effects of the accounting change be separately disclosed. ‘

Other intangible assets consist of RIR Tobacco’s trademarks acquired through business combinations,
which have indefinite useful lives. A national appraisal firm has been engaged to assist in the valuation of the
trademarks as of January 1, 2002. No later than March 31, 2002, the existence and amount, if any, of
trademark impairment will be determined by comparing the fair value of those assets with their carrying
values.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Centinued)

RJR’s goodwill as of January 1, 2002 is attributable to one reporting unit, RJR Tobacco, which comprises
substantially all of RJR’s consolidated results of operations and financial condition. A national appraisal firm
has been engaged to assist in the determination of the fair value of RJR. Before June 30, 2002, any indication
of goodwill impairment will be determined by comparing RJR’s fair value with its carrying value as of
January 1, 2002.

As of December 31, 2001, the carrying values of RJR Tobacco’s goodwill and trademarks were $6.9
billion and $2.8 billion, respectively. RJR Tobacco recorded goodwill and trademark amortization expense of
$362 million and $366 million during 2001 and 2000, respectively. As of January 1, 2002, RJR Tobacco’s
goodwill and trademarks will no longer be amortized. Because of the extensive effort needed to comply with
the application of SFAS No. 142, the impairment loss, if any, related to RJR Tobacco’s trademarks or
goodwill upon adoption of this statement cannot be estimated.

Effective January 1, 2002, EITF Issue No. 00-25, “Vendor Income Statement Characterization of
Consideration Paid to a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products,” requires that consideration paid to a distributor or
retailer to promote the vendor’s products, such as slotting fees or buydowns, generally be characterized as a
reduction of revenue when recognized in the vendor’s income statement. Upon adoption, the operating
subsidiaries will characterize the applicable costs as a reduction of net sales rather than as selling, general and
administrative expenses. Had EITF No. 00-25 been adopted for 2001 and 2000, selling, general and
administrative expenses would have been reduced by $2.3 billion and $2 billion, respectively. The respective
amounts would have been classified as reductions to net sales. The adoption of EITF No. 00-25 will not
impact RJR’s consolidated financial position, operating income or net income.

Note 2 — Reeorganization

During 1999, RJR and Nabisco Group Holdings Corp., referred to as NGH, completed a series of
transactions to reorganize their businesses and capital structures. In May 1999, RJR and RJR Tobacco sold
the international tobacco business to Japan Tobacco Inc. As a result of this sale, RJR Tobacco’s business
consists exclusively of the manufacture and sale of cigarettes in the United States and its territories,
commonwealths, protectorates and possessions. A portion of the proceeds from the sale of the international
tobacco business was used by RJR to repurchase $4 billion of its debt, which resulted in a $384 miltion, $250
million after-tax, extraordinary loss from the early extinguishment of debt. Additionally, RJR transferred $1.6
billion in cash proceeds, together with its 80.5% interest in Nabisco to NGH through a merger transaction. In
June 1999, NGH distributed all of the outstanding shares of RJR common stock to NGH common
stockholders of record as of May 27, 1999. Shares of RJR began trading separately on June 15, 1999.

The operating results of the international tobacco business until May 12, 1999, the date of sale, are
segregated and reported as discontinued operations in the 1999 consolidated statement of income. Nabisco’s
operating results through May 18, 1999, the date of the merger transaction, are segregated and reported as
discontinued operations in the 1999 consolidated statement of income. Summarized operating results of the
discontinued operations include net sales and a provision for income taxes of $3,827 million and $34 million,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 1999.

Note 3 — Acquisition

On December 11, 2000, RJR acquired its former parent, NGH. Pursuant to an agreement and plan of
merger dated June 25, 2000, as amended, RJR Acquisition Corp. was merged into NGH, with NGH being
the surviving corporation. After the merger, NGH changed its name to RJIR Acquisition Corp. At the time of
the acquisition, NGH was a non-operating public shell company with no material assets or liabilities other
than $11.8 billion in cash. RJR accounted for the acquisition as a purchase, and accordingly, the cost of the
acquisition was allocated on the basis of the estimated fair market value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. As consideration, RJR Acquisition Corp. paid $30 for each outstanding share of NGH, or $9.8
billion in the aggregate. The $1.5 billion net cash proceeds, after costs related to the transaction, were
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recognized as an extraordinary gain on acquisition in the fourth quarter of 2000. Presentation of pro forma
results of operations would not be meaningful as NGH was a non-operating public shell company.

Note 4 — Impairment Charge

In the fourth quarter of 2000, impairment occurred on two of RJR Tobacco’s non-key brands, MAGNA
and CENTURY, based on their estimated undiscounted net future cash flows. Accordingly, RJR Tobacco
recorded an impairment charge of $89 million, $54 million after tax, or $0.53 per diluted share, based on the

excess of the brands’ carrying value over fair value, determined using the present value of estimated future
cash flows assuming a discount rate of 12.0%. This impairment charge is reflected as an increase in
accumulated amortization in the consolidated balance sheets, as an impairment charge in the 2000
consolidated income statement and had no impact on cash flows. As a result of this charge, amortization
expense related to trademarks was $4 million lower in 2001 than in 2000.

Note 5 — Headquarters Close-Down and Related Charges

During 1999, RJR recorded a charge of $143 million, $93 million after tax, to reflect the elimination of its
New York corporate headquarters. Total cash expenditures related to this charge were $122 million. The
elimination of the headquarters resulted from reorganization transactions, described in note 2, that fundamen-
tally changed RJR’s business and capital structure. Approximately $127 million of the charge was for
severance and related benefits for approximately 100 employees whose employment was terminated. The
remainder of the charge was primarily related to contractual lease termination payments and the write-off of
leasehold improvements and abandoned equipment.

Note 6 — Other Operating Expense

During 1998, RJR Tobacco recorded pre-tax charges totaling $1.4 billion for the following tobacco
settlement and related expenses: MSA, $620 million; Minnesota Settlement Agreement, $312 million; “Most
Favored Nation” adjustment of previously settled states, $145 million; rationalization of manufacturing
operations, $214 million; and employee severance and related benefits, $151 million. The employee severance
and related benefits portion of this charge was for workforce reductions totaling approximately 1,300
employees in response to the changing business conditions expected to result from the MSA signed in
November 1998. At December 31, 1998, $1.3 billion had been utilized. Since December 31, 1998, the
remaining liability for employee severance and related benefits was utilized through cash expenditures of $76
million and the reversal of $21 million, due to a less-than-expected workforce reduction.

During 1999, RJR Tobacco recorded a charge of $40 million for initial, up-front costs related to the
tobacco growers’ settlement.

For more information about the MSA and other state settlement agreements, see note 14.

In 1997, RJR Tobacco recorded a restruocturing expense of $80 million related to a restructuring program
that was implemented to enhance its competitive position and improve its long-term earnings growth
prospects. The $80 million charge included $30 million for the rationalization of manufacturing operations,
$20 million for contract termination and other costs and $30 million for employee severance and related
benefits associated with the closure of a facility resulting in the reduction of 192 full-time positions and 217
seasonal positions. As of December 31, 1999, the charge was substantially utilized after a reduction of $2
million reflecting lower-than-expected expenses. Total cash expenditures were $43 million.
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Note 7 — Income Per Share

The components of the calculation of income per share were:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Income from continuing operations.......................... $ 444 § 352 § 195
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . ................. (9) — 2,398
Extraordinary items—gain (1oss) ......... ... ... . ..., — 1,475 (250)
NELINCOIME oottt e e e e $ 435 § 1,827 § 2,343
Basic weighted average shares, in thousands . ................. 97,043 101,264 108,495
Effect of dilutive potential shares:
L] 18T ) 1~ P 1,472 371 66
Restricted stock. . ... ..o 471 222 9
Diluted weighted average shares, in thousands ................ 98,986 101,857 108,570

Outstanding shares of restricted stock of 1.7 million, 1.6 million and .8 million were excluded from the
share calculation for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, as the related vesting
provisions had not been met.

Note 8 — Short-Term I[nvestments

At December 31, 2001, short-term investments classified as available-for-sale included $146 million of
U.S. government treasury bills and $61 million of federal agency securities. Contractual maturities of these
securities averaged less than one year. Realized and unrealized holding gains and losses of available-for-sale
securities for the year ended December 31, 2001 were not significant and, accordingly, the amortized cost of
these securities approximated fair value. There were no available-for-sale securities for the years ended
December 31, 2000 and 1999.

Note 9 — Inventories

The major components of inventories at December 31 were:

2001 2000
Leal t0DaCC0 . ottt e e $550 $509
Raw materials. . . .. 25 26
WOTK 00 PIOCESS . . . vttt e e e e e e 49 49
Finished products . . ... ... e 118 103
L 111> o 26 26
Total ......... e e e 768 713
Less LIFO alloWancCe . ..ot e e e e e 38 125

$730 $588

Inventories valued under the LIFO method were approximately $682 million and $543 million at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The LIFO allowance reflects the excess of the current cost of
LIFO inventories at December 31, 2001 and 2000 over the amount at which these inventories were carried on
the consolidated balance sheets. During 2001, 2000 and 1999, there was no impact on net income from LIFO
inv‘entory liquidations.
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Note 10 — Short-Term Borrowings and Borrowing Arrangements

RIR’s revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks was amended and restated on November 17,
2000. Under the amendment and restatement, the committed amount of $1.235 billion was reduced to $622
million as of November 2001 and will remain at this amount through May 2003. RJR can use the full facility
to obtain loans or letters of credit, at its option. RJR Tobacco and RJR Acquisition Corp. have guaranteed
RJR’s obligations under this revolving credit facility. If RJR’s guaranteed unsecured notes are rated below
BBB— by S&P or Baa3 by Moody’s, RIR’s other material subsidiaries will be required to guarantee the
facility. If RJR falls below these thresholds for both of these rating agencies, or two levels below these
thresholds for either of these rating agencies, RJR and the guarantors will be required to pledge their assets to
secure their obligations. RJIR is not required to maintain compensating balances; however, commitment fees
of 1% of the committed amount are payable quarterly. The credit facility also limits RJR’s ability to pay
dividends, repurchase stock, incur indebtedness, engage in transactions with affiliates, create liens, acquire, sell
or dispose of specific assets and engage in specified mergers or consolidations. Borrowings under the revolving
credit facility bear interest at rates that vary with the prime rate or LIBOR. At December 31, 2001, RJR had
$132 million in letters of credit and no borrowings outstanding under the facility, with the remaining $490
million of the facility available for borrowing. RJR was in compliance with all covenants and restrictions
imposed by this facility at December 31, 2001.

Additionally, as of December 31, 2001, RJR had a trade letter of credit outstanding of $1 million. RJR
also has a $30 million uncommitted, unsecured line of credit with one bank. No borrowings were outstanding
on this line of credit at December 31, 2001.

Note 11 — Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities at December 31 included:

2001 2000
Payroll and employee benefits ....... ... .. . $ 398 § 293
Marketing and advertising. ........... e 378 406
Accrued INTETEST . ... 20 24
L0 1 1) P 359 506

$1,155 $1,229

Note 12 — Income Taxes

The components of the provision for income taxes from continuing operations were:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Current:
Federal ... ... . $426 $368 $530
State and other. . ... .. 65 59 92
491 427 622
Deferred:
Federal .. ... ... . . (36) (30) (265)
State and other. . ... ... (7) (1) (42)
(43) (31) (307)
Provision for income taxes . ............ it $448 $396 $315
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The current deferred income tax asset shown on the consolidated balance sheets at December 31

included:
2001
Deferred tax assets:
LIFO INVENTOTIES . ..ottt et e e $(131)

Pension and other postretirement liabilities .............. ... ... ... ... ... 62

2000

$(136)

%l

wh
N W
-

45

\O

2000

$ (208)
(109)

(317)

310
1,121
742

2,173

Tobacco settlement related accruals and other accrued liabilities ............ 607
$ 538
The non-current deferred income tax liability shown on the consolidated balance sheets at December 31
included:
2001
Deferred tax assets:
Pension and other postretirement liabilities .. ........... ... ............. $ (191)
Tobacco settlement related accruals and other accrued liabilities ........... (119)
(310)
Deferred tax liabilities: »
Property and equipment ............o i e 300
Trademarks............ e e e 1,080
L0 11 V=) P 656
2,036
$1,726

$1,856

The differences between the provision for income taxes and income taxes computed at statutory U.S.

federal income tax rates were:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Income taxes computed at statutory U.S. federal income tax rates......... $312 %262 $178
State and local income taxes, net of federal tax benefits ................. 37 33 30
Goodwill amortization . ... ... .. . e e 91 91 91
Other ItEMS, NEL . .. oot e e e 8 10 16
Provision for INCOME tAXES ... ... vtt ittt ittt $448 $396 $315

Effective tax rate

.................................. e 50.2% 52.9% 61.8%

Note 13 — Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt at December 31 included:

2001
7.625%-9.25% unsecured notes, due 2002 to 2013 . ....... .. ... ... ., $ 330
7.375%-7.875% guaranteed unsecured notes, due 2003 to 2009 ............... 1,246
9.5% junior subordinated debentures, due 2047 ...... ... ... . oo, 98
Current maturities of long-term debt........... e e (43)
$1,631

57

2000

$ 404
1,245
98
(3)
$1,674
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The payment of long-term debt is due as follows:

Year

On May 18, 1999, RJR completed tender offers to purchase substantially all of its outstanding debt
securities, which resulted in RJR repurchasing $4 billion of its debt with a portion of the proceeds from the
sale of the international tobacco business. As a result, RJR recognized an extraordinary loss from the early
extinguishment of debt of $384 million, $250 million after tax.

RJR filed a registration statement, effective October 8, 1999, in order to issue publicly registered notes of
$550 million in principal amount at 7.375% due 2003, $500 million in principal amount at 7.75% due 2006 and
$200 million in principal amount at 7.875% due 2009 in exchange for an aggregate $1.25 billion of private
placement debt securities. The net proceeds received from the private placement were used for general
corporate purposes. These notes are unsecured obligations and, unlike RJR’s other non-bank debt, are
guaranteed by RJR Tobacco and RJR Acquisition Corp. In addition, any other subsidiaries of RJR that in the
future guarantee the $622 million revolving credit facility, as amended and restated, will also be required to
guarantee these notes. In addition, if RJR and the guarantors are required to pledge their assets to secure their
obligations under the revolving credit facility, as amended and restated, they will also be required to pledge
their assets to secure these notes. Generally, the terms of the notes restrict the issuance of guarantees by
subsidiaries, the pledge of collateral, sale/leaseback transactions and the transfer of all or substantially all of
the assets of RJR and its subsidiaries. RJR was in compliance with all covenants and restrictions imposed by
its indebtedness at December 31, 2001. See note 21 for condensed consolidating financial information, which
separates the account balances and activities of the issuer, the guarantors and the subsidiaries of RJR and
RIJR Tobacco that are not guarantors of the notes.

RIJR filed a shelf registration statement, effective December 22, 1999, for $1.876 billion of debt securities,
guaranteed by RJR Tobacco. On April 19, 2001, a registration statement became effective to add RJR
Acquisition Corp. as a guarantor of these debt securities. As of December 31, 2001, no debt securities had
been issued from this registration.

On December 11, 2000, related to the acquisition of NGH, RJR acquired $98 million of 9.5% junior
subordinated debentures, due in 2047, redeemable on September 30, 2003. Interest on these debentures is paid
quarterly in arrears. These debentures are effectively defeased by an irrevocable trust, which is included in
other assets and deferred charges in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2001
and 2000. The trust holds certain U.S. government obligations maturing at such times and in such amounts
sufficient to pay interest and principal.

The estimated fair value of RJR’s long-term debt was $1.8 billion as of December 31, 2001 and $1.7
billion as of December 31, 2000. The fair values are based on available market quotes, discounted cash flows
and book values, as appropriate.

Note 14 — Commitments and Contingencies

Tobacco Litigation

QOverview. Various tobacco-related legal actions and proceedings are pending or may be instituted
against RJR or its affiliates, including RJR Tobacco, or indemnitees. These actions and proceedings raise a
variety of claims, including product liability, health-care cost recovery, consumer protection, smuggling,
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RICQO, tax, antitrust and trade regulation claims. During 2001, 129 new tobacco-related actions were served
against RJR Tobacco and/or its affiliates or indemnitees, and 154 actions were dismissed or otherwise resolved
in favor of RJR Tobacco and/or its affiliates or indemnitees without trial. On December 31, 2001, there were
1,639 active cases pending, including approximately 1,237 individual smoker cases pending in West Virginia
state court as a consolidated action, as compared with 1,664 on December 31, 2000, and 541 on December 31,
1999. As of February 7, 2002, 1,657 active cases were pending against RJR Tobacco and/or its affiliates or
indemnitees: 1,652 in the United States; two in Puerto Rico and one in each of Canada, Israel and the
Marshall Islands. The U.S. case number does not include the 2,852 Broin II cases pending as of February 7,
2002, discussed below.

The U.S. cases, exclusive of the Broin II cases, are pending in 35 states and the District of Columbia. The
breakdown is as follows: 1,237 in West Virginia; 77 in New York; 58 in Florida; 52 in California; 29 in
Maryland; 28 in the District of Columbia; 27 in Louisiana; 23 in Mississippi; 12 in Iowa; 11 in Massachusetts;
10 in each of Missouri and New Jersey; 9 in Alabama; 8 in Texas; 7 in Georgia; 6 in each of Illinois and
Tennessee; 4 in each of New Hampshire, Nevada and Pennsylvania; 3 in each of Arizona, Connecticut,
Michigan, New Mexico and Ohio; 2 in each of Kansas, North Carolina, North Dakota and South Dakota; and
1 in each of Indiana, Maine, Minnesota, Oklahoma, Utah, Washington and Wisconsin. Of the 1,652 active
U.S. cases, 130 are pending in federal court, 1,518 in state court and 4 in tribal court. Most of these cases were
brought by individual plaintiffs, but many of these cases seek recovery on behalf of third parties or large
classes of claimants.

Theories of Recovery. The plaintiffs seek recovery on a variety of legal theories, including strict liability
in tort, design defect, negligence, special duty, voluntary undertaking, breach of warranty, failure to warn,
fraud, misrepresentation, unfair trade practices, conspiracy, aiding and abetting, unjust enrichment, indemnity,
medical monitoring, public nuisance and violations of state and federal antitrust and RICC laws. Punitive
damages, often in amounts ranging into the hundreds of millions or even billions of dollars, are specifically
pleaded in a number of cases, in addition to compensatory and other damages. Of the 1,652 active cases in the
United States, eight cases, plus the 2,852 Broin I cases, involve alleged nonsmokers claiming injuries resulting
from exposure to environmental tobacco smoke. Twenty-nine cases purport to be class actions on behalf of
thousands of individuals. Purported classes include individuals claiming to be addicted to cigarettes,
individuals and their estates claiming illness and death from cigarette smoking, persons making claims based
on alleged exposure to environmental tobacco smoke, African-American smokers claiming their civil rights
have been violated by the sale of menthol cigarettes, current smokers who have no tobacco-related disease but
are seeking to recover the costs of medical monitoring, purchasers of “light” and “ultra light” cigarettes
claiming to have been defrauded and seeking to recover the costs of their cigarette purchases, and Blue Cross
and Blue Shield subscribers seeking reimbursement for premiums paid. Approximately 59 cases seek recovery
of the cost of Medicaid/Medicare payments or other health-related costs paid for treatment of individuals
suffering from diseases or conditions allegedly related to tobacco use. Eleven cases, brought by entities
administering asbestos liability, seek contribution for the costs of settlements and judgments.

Defenses. The defenses raised by RJR Tobacco and/or its affiliates, including RJR, include, where
applicable, preemption by the Federal Cigarette Labeling and Advertising Act of some or all such claims
arising after 1969, the lack of any defect in the product, assumption of the risk, contributory or comparative
fault, lack of proximate cause and statutes of limitations or repose. RJR has asserted additional defenses,
including jurisdictional defenses, in many of the cases in which it is named.

Industry Trial Results in Individual Smoker Cases. The tobacco industry in general, and RJR Tobacco
In particular, continue to win most individual smoking and health cases. In Anderson v. Fortune Brands, Inc., a
Brooklyn, New York jury found in favor of the industry, including RJR Tobacco, on June 27, 2000. The
plaintiff failed to perfect his appeal by submitting his brief and record by June 22, 2001. The Appellate
Division dismissed the appeal on September 18, 2001. In Nunnally v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., a
Mississippi state court jury found RJR Tobacco not liable on July 12, 2000. Plaintiff’s motion for judgment
notwithstanding the verdict, or in the alternative, for a new trial, was denied, and plaintiff’s appeal to the
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Mississippi Supreme Court is pending. On January 16, 2001, a Brooklyn, New York state court jury returned a
verdict in favor of RJR Tobacco and other cigarette manufacturers in Apostolou v. American Tobacco Co. On
September 7, 2001, the plaintiff appealed the final judgment to the Appellate Division of the New York
Supreme Court. In Little v. Brown & Williamson Tobacco Corp., a South Carolina federal district court judge
granted a directed verdict in favor of RJR Tobacco on January 30, 2001. The jury rendered a verdict in favor
of the remaining defendant, Brown & Williamson, on February 6, 2001. The plaintiff voluntarily dismissed her
appeal to the United States Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit on April 19, 200!. On March 7, 2001, in
Grinnell v. Brown & Williamson Tobacco Corp., a Texas state court jury returned a verdict in favor of Brown
& Williamson. On May 16, 2001, a state court jury in New Jersey returned a verdict in favor of RJR Tobacco
and Philip Morris in Mehlman v. Philip Morris, Inc. On October 5, 2001, an Ohio federal court jury returned a
unanimous verdict in favor of Philip Morris, Brown & Williamson and Lorillard in Tompkin v. American
Tobacco Co. On October 23, 2001, plaintiff filed a motion for a new trial. The judge in this case referred the
parties to mediation in order to avoid the transaction costs associated with an appeal. The mediation failed and
the case was returned to the presiding judge who then denied plaintiff’s motion for a new trial. Finally, on
November 13, 2001, a state court judge in Connecticut granted Brown & Williamson’s motion for a directed
verdict in DuJack v. Brown & Williamson Tobacco Co.

RJR Tobacco has prevailed in virtually all individual smoker cases that have gone to trial. However, in
Whiteley v. Raybestos-Manhattan, Inc., a tobacco-asbestos synergy case brought in San Francisco Superior
Court, the jury found against RJR Tobacco and Philip Morris on March 20, 2000, and awarded $1.7 million in
compensatory damages. On March 27, 2000, the same jury awarded $20 million in punitive damages, $10
million against RJR Tobacco and $10 million against Philip Morris. RJR Tobacco and Philip Morris have
appealed. In Jones v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., a wrongful death case, a Tampa state court jury found
against RJR Tobacco on October 12, 2000. Although the jury found that RJR Tobacco was negligent and
liable, it refused to find that RJR Tobacco was part of a conspiracy to defraud. The jury awarded
approximately $200,000 in compensatory damages; however, the jury refused to award punitive damages. On
December 28, 2000, the trial judge granted RJR Tobacco’s motion for a new trial. The plaintiff has appealed
the new trial ruling to the Florida Second District Court of Appeal. Most recently, in Kenyon v. R. J. Reynolds
Tobacco Co., on December 12, 2001, a Tampa jury determined that Floyd Kenyon had been adequately
warned about the risks of smoking and that RJR Tobacco was not negligent in designing its products. The jury
did find that some of RJR Tobacco’s products were defective and awarded the plaintiff $165,000 in
compensatory damages. RJR Tobacco believes that the jury’s findings were not supported by the evidence in
the case. Accordingly, on December 26, 2001, RJR Tobacco asked the court to set aside the verdict or to grant
a new trial. A hearing on RJR Tobdcco’s motion has been scheduled for February 27, 2002.

Juries have found for plaintiffs in six smoking and health cases in which RJR Tobacco was not a
defendant. Two of the verdicts were overturned on appeal and have been dismissed; three others are on appeal;
and damages have been paid in one case. In February 1999, in Henley v. Philip Morris, Inc., a San Francisco
state court jury awarded an individual smoker $1.5 million in compensatory damages and $30 million in
punitive damages. In April 1999, the trial judge reduced the punitive damages award to $25 million, but
otherwise denied Philip Morris’ post-trial motions challenging the verdict. On November 7, 2001, a California
appellate court upheld the jury’s 1999 verdict against Philip Morris. Philip Morris has appealed that decision
to the California Supreme Court, which accepted the appeal on a “grant and hold” basis (another appeal has
to be decided prior to ruling on the Henley petition). In Williams v. Philip Morris, Inc., an Oregon state court
jury awarded the plaintiff $800,000 in actual damages, $21,500 in medical expenses and $79 million in
punitive damages. The judge reduced the punitive damages to $32 million. Philip Morris’ appeal is pending.
On June 6, 2001, in Boeken v. Philip Morris, Inc., a California state court jury found in favor of the plaintiff
and awarded approximately $5.5 million in compensatory damages and $3 billion in punitive damages. Philip
Morris filed motions to reduce the damages, for judgment notwithstanding the verdict or for a new trial. On
August 9, 2001, plaintiff agreed to the court’s recommendation that the $3 billion punitive damages award be
reduced to $100 million. On September 7, 2001, Philip Morris filed its notice of appeal to the California Court
of Appeals. In Carter v. American Tobacco Co., the Florida Supreme Court, on November 22, 2000,
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reinstated the jury verdict against Brown & Williamson. According to press reports, Brown & Williamson paid
approximately $1.09 million to the plaintiff on February 8, 2001. On June 29, 2001, the U.S. Supreme Court
declined to review the case, thus leaving the jury verdict intact.

Broin II Cases. As of February 7, 2002, approximately 2,852 lawsuits brought by individual flight
attendants for personal injury as a result of illness allegedly caused by exposure to secondhand tobacco smoke
in airplane cabins, referred to as the Broin II cases, are pending in Florida. In these lawsuits, filed pursuant to
the terms of the settlement of the Broin v. Philip Morris, Inc. class action, discussed below, each individual
flight attendant will be required to prove that he or she has a disease caused by exposure to secondhand smoke
in airplane cabins.

On October 5, 2000, Judge Robert Kaye entered an order applicable to all Broin II cases that the terms of
the Broin settlement agreement do not require the individual Broin II plaintiffs to prove the elements of strict
liability, breach of warranty or negligence. Under this order, there is a rebuttable presumption in plaintiffs’
favor on those elements, and plaintiffs bear the burden of proving that their alleged adverse health effects
actually were caused by exposure to environmental tobacco smoke. Although defendants still may prevail on
causation and other theories, RJR Tobacco does not believe that the order is correct under Florida law or that
it accurately reflects the intent of the Broin settlement agreement. Accordingly, defendants appealed Judge
Kaye’s ruling to the Third District Court of Appeal on November 3, 2000. Plaintiffs moved to dismiss the
appeal on November 28, 2000. On January 12, 2001, the Third District Court of Appeal denied plaintiffs’
motion and ordered oral argument. On Cctober 10, 2001, a different panel of the Third District Court of
Appeal dismissed the appeal, finding that Judge Kaye’s order is not an appealable order at this time, but noted
that the ruling is without prejudice to the defendants’ ability to appeal the issue at the appropriate time. On
January 16, 2002, defendants filed a writ to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of the Florida Supreme Court.

On April 5, 2001, in the first Broin 1] flight attendant case to go to trial, Fontana v. Philip Morris, Inc., a
Florida state court jury returned a verdict in favor of the defendants, including RJR Tobacco. On April 16,
2001, plaintiff filed motions for a mistrial, judgment notwithstanding the verdict, or for a new trial. On
October 1, 2001, the trial judge denied plaintiff’s post-trial motions. Plaintiff appealed to the Florida Third
District Court of Appeal. Defendants cross-appealed on November 8, 2001.

Class Action Suits. In May 1996, in Castano v. American Tobacco Co., the Fifth Circuit Court of
Appeals overturned the certification of a nationwide class of persons whose claims related to alleged addiction
to tobacco. Since this ruling by the Fifth Circuit, most class-action suits have sought certification of statewide,
rather than nationwide, classes.

Class action suits based on claims similar to those asserted in Castano have been brought against RJR
Tobacco, and in some cases RJR, in state or federal courts in Alabama, Arkansas; California, the District of
Columbia, Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, lowa, Kansas, Louisiana, Maryland, Massachusetts,
Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, Nevada, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, Chio,
Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Virginia, West Virginia and Wisconsin. In
addition, a class action filed in Tennessee seeks reimbursement of Blue Cross and Blue Shield premiums paid
by subscribers throughout the United States and class-action suits in [llinois, Missouri and New Jersey claim
that the marketing of “light” and “‘ultralight” cigarettes is deceptive. Plaintiffs have made similar claims in
other lawsuits elsewhere. Other types of class-action suits also have been filed in additional jurisdictions. Most
of these suits assert claims on behalf of classes of individuals who claim to be addicted, injured or at greater
risk of injury by the use of tobacco or exposure to environmental tobacco smoke, or the legal survivors of such
persons. A number of unions and other third-party payors have filed health-care cost recovery actions in the
form of class actions. These cases are discussed separately below. Class certification motions are pending in
several state and federal courts.

Few smoker class-action complaints have been certified or, if certified, have survived on appeal. All 16
federal courts that have considered the issue, including two courts of appeals, have rejected class certification
in smoker cases. On March 19, 2001, in Guillory v. American Tobacco Co., Inc., the United States District
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Court for the Northern District of Illinois refused to certify a class defined as “all Illinois residents who smoke
or smoked cigarettes manufactured by defendants, who started smoking while a minor, who purchase or
purchased cigarettes in Illinois and who desire to participate in a program designed to assist them in the
cessation of smoking and/or monitor their medical condition to promote early detection of disease caused by,
contributed, or exacerbated by cigarette smoking.” On May 17, 2001, in Brown v. Philip Morris, Inc., the
United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit affirmed the trial court’s dismissal of a proposed class
action alleging the violation of civil rights by the targeting of “African-American smokers.” On June 29, 2001,
the United States District Court for the District of Nevada denied plaintiffs’ motions for class certification in
three cases involving casino workers exposed to environmental tobacco smoke and one case involving smokers
with injuries allegedly caused by smoking. These four cases, which were consolidated for class certification
purposes, are: (1) Badillo v. American Tobacco Co., Inc.; (2) Christensen v. Philip Morris Cos., Inc.; (3)
Dienno v. Liggett Group, Inc.; and (4) Selcer v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co. Most recently, two cases,
Mahoney v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co. and Davis v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., were denied class
certification by the United States District Court for the Southern District of Iowa.

Similarly, most state courts have refused to certify smoker class actions. On December 8, 2000, in Geiger
v. American Tobacco Co., the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of New York, Second Judicial
Department, affirmed the trial court’s denial of class action status to a purported class defined as all New York
residents, including their heirs, representatives and estates, who contracted lung and/or throat cancer as a
result of smoking cigarettes. Plaintiffs filed a motion for leave to appeal the order denying certification to the
New York Court of Appeals, the highest court in the state. The New York Court of Appeals dismissed
plaintiffs’ appeal on February 13, 2001.

Classes have been certified thus far in several state court class-action cases in which RJR Tobacco is a
defendant. On November 5, 1998, in Scott v. American Tobacco Co., a Louisiana state appeals court affirmed
the certification of a medical monitoring and/or smoking cessation class of Louisiana residents who were
smokers on or before May 24, 1996. On February 26, 1999, the Louisiana Supreme Court denied the
defendants’ petition for writ of certiorari and/or review. Jury selection began on June 18, 2001. Defendants
appealed the jury selection process to the Louisiana Fourth Circuit Court of Appeal on July 18, 2001. On
September 4, 2001, the Court of Appeal dismissed two jurors because of bias, but declined to dismiss jurors
with immediate family members who were members of the class. On September 5, 2001, defendants sought
review by the Louisiana State Supreme Court. On September 25, 2001, the Louisiana State Supreme Court
dismissed seven additional jurors because they have immediate family members who are members of the class
and the seven jurors expressed a desire that those family members receive medical monitoring or smoking
cessation assistance. On October 9, 2001, the defendants asked the Louisiana Supreme Court to declare a
mistrial because of the irregularities in the jury selection process. This petition was denied on October 15,
2001. Jury selection resumed again on October 22, 2001, and a full complement of 12 jurors and 10 alternates
was selected. On December 26, 2001, defendants’ filed an application for supervisory writ to the Fourth
District of the Louisiana Court of Appeals challenging certain aspects of the second round of jury selection.
Opening statements will not occur until that writ is decided.

Trial began on January 4, 2001, in Blankenship v. Philip Morris, Inc., a West Virginia state court medical
monitoring class action. The trial of this case ended on January 25, 2001, when the judge declared a mistrial.
Argument on decertification of the class, among other things, was held on February 19, 2001. On March 23,
2001, the judge denied the defendants’ motion to decertify the class. The retrial of this case began on
September 5, 2001, and ended on November 14, 2001, when the jury returned a verdict in favor of RJR
Tobacco and other cigarette manufacturers.

On November 30, 2000, in Daniels v. Philip Morris Cos., Inc., a San Diego Superior Court judge reversed
a prior ruling and, based on a California unfair business practices statute, certified a class consisting of all
persons who, as California resident minors, smoked one or more cigarettes in California between April 2, 1994
and December 1, 1999. Trial has been scheduled for July 1, 2002.
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Cn April 11, 2001, in Brown v. American Tobacco Co., Inc., the same judge granted in part plaintiffs’
motion for class certification. The class is composed of adult residents of California who smoked at least one of
defendants’ cigarettes “during the applicable time period,” and who were exposed to defendants’ marketing
and advertising activities in California. Certification was granted as to plaintiffs’ claims that defendants
violated §17200 of the California Business and Professions Code. The court, however, refused to certify the
class under the California Legal Remedies Act. Class certification on plaintiffs’ common law claims was
denied on April 10, 2000. Defendants petitioned the California Supreme Court to review the trial court’s class
certification ruling, but the Supreme Court denied the petition on January 16, 2002. The trial has been
scheduled for October 11, 2002,

Most recently, on November 14, 2001, in Turner v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., an lllinois state court
judge certified a class defined as “[a]ll persons who purchased defendants’ Doral Lights, Winston Lights,
Salem Lights and Camel Lights, in Illinois, for personal consumption, between the first date that defendants
sold Doral Lights, Winston Lights, Salem Lights and Camel Lights through the date the court certifies this
suit as a class action . . . .” Trial is scheduled for March 17, 2003. This case currently includes both RJR and
RIJR Tobacco as defendants.

Defendants, including RJR Tobacco, settled one class-action suit, Broin v. Philip Morris, Inc., in October
1997. The Florida Court of Appeal denied challenges to this settlement on March 24, 1999, and subsequently
denied motions to reconsider. On September 7, 1999, the Florida Supreme Court dismissed all proceedings,
and the settlement and judgment became final. The Broin II cases, discussed above, arose out of the
settlement of this case.

Trial began in July 1998 in Florida state court in Engle v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., in which a class
consisting of Florida residents, or their survivors on their behalf, claim to have diseases or medical conditions
caused by their alleged “addiction” to cigarettes. On July 7, 1999, the jury found against RJR Tobacco and
the other cigarette manufacturer defendants in the initial phase, which included common issues related to
certain elements of liability, general causation and a potential award of or entitlement to punitive damages.

The second phase of the trial, which consisted of the claims of three of the named class representatives,
began on November 1, 1999. On April 7, 2000, the jury returned a verdict against all defendants. They
awarded plaintiff Mary Farnan $2.85 million, the estate of plaintiff Angie Della Vecchia $4.023 million and
plaintiff Frank Amodeo $5.831 million. The jury also found, however, that Frank Amodeo knew or should
have known of his claim prior to May 5, 1990. The legal effect of that finding should be to bar his claim based
on the applicable statute of limitations.

The trial court also ordered the jury in the second phase of the trial to determine punitive damages, if any,
on a class-wide basis. On July 14, 2000, the jury returned a punitive damages verdict in favor of the “Florida
class” of approximately $145 billion against all the defendants, with approximately $36.3 billion being assigned
to RJR Tobacco.

On July 24, 2000, the defendants, including RJR Tobacco, filed numerous post-verdict motions, including
motions for a new trial and to reduce the amount of the punitive damages verdict. On November 6, 2000, the
trial judge denied the post-trial motions and entered judgment. On November 7, 2000, RJR Tobacco posted
an appeal bond in the amount of $100 million, pursuant to a Florida statute enacted on May 9, 2000, and
intended to apply to the Engle case, and initiated the appeals process. The opening appellate brief of certain
defendants, including RJR Tobacco, was filed on November 26, 2001. RJR Tobacco believes it has numerous
bases for a successful appeal, although it cannot predict the outcome of the appellate process.

On May 7, 2001, three of the defendants entered into agreements with the Engle class to deposit an
additional $1.86 billion into separate escrow accounts to ensure that the stay of execution that is in effect
pursuant to the Florida bond statute will remain in effect as to these three defendants throughout the appellate
process, regardless of the results of a challenge, if any, to the Florida bond statute. Approximately $700 million
of the total amount deposited by these three defendants is non-refundable and will go to the trial court to be
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distributed, regardless of the result of the appeal. RJR Tobacco has not entered into a similar agreement with
the Engle class. Although RJR Tobacco cannot predict the outcome of any possible challenges to the Florida
bond statute, RJR Tobacco remains confident of the applicability and validity of the statute in the Engle case.
In addition, nine other states, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Nevada, North Carolina, Oklahoma, South
Carolina, Virginia and West Virginia, have enacted legislation similar to the Florida bond statute. The
Mississippi Supreme Court also has placed limits on appeal bonds by court rule.

Governmental Health-Care Cost Recovery Cases. In June 1994, the Mississippi attorney general
brought an action, Moore v. American Tobacco Co., against various industry members, including RJR
Tobacco. This case was brought on behalf of the state to recover state funds paid for health care and medical
and other assistance to state citizens suffering from diseases and conditions allegedly related to tobacco use.
By making the state the plaintiff in the case and basing its claims on economic loss rather than personal injury,
the state sought to avoid the defenses otherwise available against an individual plaintiff. Most other states,
through their attorneys general or other state agencies, sued RJR Tobacco and other U.S. cigarette
manufacturers based on similar theories. The cigarette manufacturer defendants, including RJR Tobacco,
settled the first four of these cases scheduled to come to trial, those of Mississippi, Florida, Texas and
Minnesota, by separate agreements between each state and those manufacturers in each case.

On November 23, 1998, the major U.S. cigarette manufacturers, including RJR Tobacco, entered into
the Master Settlement Agreement with attorneys general representing the remaining 46 states, the District of
Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin Islands, American Samoa and the Northern Marianas. The MSA
became effective on November 12, 1999, when final approval of the settlement was achieved in 80% of the
settling jurisdictions. As of October 17, 2000, final approval had been achieved in all settling jurisdictions. The
MSA settled all the health-care cost recovery actions brought by, or on behalf of, the settling jurisdictions and
contains releases of various additional present and future claims.

In the settling jurisdictions, the MSA released RJR Tobacco, indemnitees and RJR from: (1) all claims
of the settling states and their respective political subdivisions and other recipients of state health-care funds,
relating to past conduct arising out of the use, sale, distribution, manufacture, development, advertising,
marketing or health effects of, the exposure to, or research, statements or warnings about, tobacco products
and (2) all monetary claims relating to future conduct arising out of the use of, or exposure to, tobacco
products that have been manufactured in the ordinary course of business.

o Monetary Liabilities. In addition to payments already made, the MSA calls for additional initial
industry payments of approximately $2.6 billion and $2.7 billion in 2002 and 2003, respectively. A
substantial portion of the payment due in 2002 was prepaid in 2001 to obtain the tax benefit of the early
payment. The MSA also requires perpetual annual industry payments, which started in 2000. The
unadjusted annual payment currently is $6.5 billion and increases to $8 billion in 2004, to $8.14 billion in
2008 and finally to $9 billion in 2018 and thereafter. Ten additional payments of $861 million are due
annually beginning in April 2008. All payments are to be allocated among the companies on the basis of
relative market share and most are subject to adjustments for changes in sales volume, inflation and other
factors. RJR Tobacco records its allocation of charges in cost of goods sold as products are shipped.

The tobacco companies also agreed to (1) make a one-time payment of $50 million on March 31,
1999, to establish a fund for enforcement of the MSA and laws relating to tobacco products and (2) fund
activities of the National Association of Attorneys General relating to the MSA at the cost of $150,000
per year for ten years.

In addition, the MSA calls for the creation of a national foundation to support the study of, and
programs to reduce, youth tobacce product usage and youth substance abuse, and the study of
educational programs to prevent diseases associated with tobacco product use. The tobacco companies
agreed to fund the foundation with (1) ten annual payments of $25 million, which began on March 31,
1999, (2) further payments of $250 million, which began on March 31, 1999, and $300 million annually
thereafter for four years, and (3) additional annual payments of $300 million beginning in 2004 if, during
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the year preceding the year when payment is due, participating manufacturers collectively accounted for
at least 99.05% of the cigarette market. Each of these payments is to be allocated among the companies
on the basis of relative market share. Other than the $25 million annual payments and the $250 million
payment made on March 31, 1999, the payments for the foundation are subject to adjustments for
changes in sales volume, inflation and other factors.

The manufacturers also agreed to pay the litigation costs, including government attorneys’ fees, of
the offices of the attorneys general relating to the settled cases and, subject to certain quarterly and
annual payment caps, the costs and fees of outside counsel to the jurisdictions. Qutside counsel fees have
been determined either by arbitration or in accordance with a negotiated fee procedure. Awards
determined by arbitration will be paid subject to an aggregate annual cap on arbitrated attorneys’ fees for
all these and certain other settled cases of $500 million. Fees set by the negotiated fee procedure are
subject to an annual cap of $250 million, and will not exceed a total of $1.25 billion. As of February 7,
2002, publicly announced awards determined by arbitration totaled approximately $11.7 billion, and
awards determined in accordance with a negotiated fee procedure totaled approximately $626 million.
Reimbursement of costs is capped at $150 million for litigation costs, including government attorneys’
fees, of the attorneys’ general offices and at $75 million annually for outside counsels’ costs. Payments for
attorneys’ fees and costs are to be allocated on a relative market share basis.

o Growers’ Trust. As part of the MSA, the tobacco companies agreed to work with U.S. tobacco
growers to address the possible adverse economic impact of the MSA on growers. As a result, RIR
Tobacco and the three other major manufacturers agreed to participate in funding a $5.2 billion trust fund
to be administered by a trustee, in conjunction with a certification entity from each of the tobacco
growing states. The trust agreement provides for a schedule of aggregate annual payments, subject to
various adjustments, that are payable in quarterly installments each year from 1999 through 2010. The
aggregate annual payment by all participating manufacturers is adjusted each year for inflation and any
change in the total domestic cigarette volume of all participating manufacturers. In general, the annual
payment by each participating manufacturer, including RJR Tobacco, is based on each manufacturer’s
relative market share of total domestic cigarette shipments during the preceding calendar year. Each
manufacturer’s annual payment is also subject to a tax offset adjustment.

o Other MSA Obligations. The MSA also contains provisions restricting the marketing of
cigarettes. Among these are restrictions or prohibitions on the use of cartoon characters, brand name
sponsorships, brand name non-tobacco products, outdoor and transit brand advertising, payments for
product placement, free sampling and lobbying. The MSA also required the dissolution of three industry-
sponsored research and advocacy organizations.

RJR Tobacco’s settlement expenses under these agreements were $2.6 billion, $2.3 billion and $2.2
billion in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The cash payments made by RJR Tobacco under the MSA and
other existing settlement agreements were $2.4 billion, $2.2 billion and $1.6 billion in 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. RIR Tobacco estimates these payments to be $2.4 billion in 2002 and to exceed $2 billion per
year thereafter. However, these payments will be subject to adjustments based upon, among other things, the
volume of cigarettes sold by RJR Tobacco, RJR Tobacco’s market share and inflation.

Certain litigation has arisen challenging the validity of the MSA, including cases with claims that the
MSA violates antitrust Jaws. On January 5, 2001, the United States District Court for the Northern District of
California dismissed one of those cases, Forces Action Project v. California. On August 15, 2001, the United
States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit remanded the antitrust claim, but affirmed the district court’s
dismissal of the remaining claims. On January 15, 2002, the United States District Court judge denied
plaintiffs’ motion to amend the complaint which effectively dismissed the case.

Six actions are pending against RJR Tobacco alleging various violations of the MSA. RJR Tobacco
believes it has meritorious defenses to each of these actions.
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Arizona, California, New York and Washington have alleged that the posting of signage advertising RJR
Tobacco’s brand name sponsorships violates a provision of the MSA governing the times during which such
signs may be posted. On November 16, 2001, in the Arizona signage action, the trial court granted summary
judgment in favor of the state. On November 27, 2001, the trial court ruled similarly in the California signage
matter. However, on February 1, 2002, a New York trial court upheld RJR Tobacco’s position. Appeals of all
of these decisions are pending or anticipated. Trial in the Washington matter is scheduled for August 5, 2002.

The State of Ohio has alleged that RJR Tobacco’s purchase of advertising space on matchbooks
distributed by an independent third party violates a provision of the MSA governing brand name merchandise.
In November 2001, the trial court heard arguments on the parties’ cross-motions for summary judgment and
took the motions under advisement.

Finally, the State of California has alleged that the publications in which RJR Tobacco places advertising
evidences direct or indirect targeting of youth which is prohibited by the MSA. Pretrial discovery is
proceeding, and the trial is scheduled for April 19, 2002.

On June 8, 2001, the Attorney General of the State of California filed a Iawsuit against RJR Tobacco in
California state court alleging that RJR Tobacco violated California state law by distributing free cigarettes
and free coupons for discounts on cigarettes on “public grounds,” even though the promotions occurred in an
“adult-only facility” at a race track. RJR Tobacco answered the complaint on July 19, 2001, asserting that its
promotions complied with all laws, including California state law. The trial is scheduled for April 30, 2002.

On April 20, 1999, the Canadian Province of British Columbia brought a case in British Columbia
Provincial Court, similar to the U.S. attorneys’ general cases discussed above, against RJR Tobacco and
certain other Canadian and U.S. tobacco companies and their parent companies, including RJR. This lawsuit
relied heavily upon special legislation enacted in British Columbia that was separately challenged by various
Canadian tobacco companies. An agreement was reached with the government in British Columbia to litigate
the separate constitutional challenges prior to the health-care cost recovery action. On February 21, 2000, the
British Columbia Supreme Court declared the Cost Recovery Act unconstitutional and dismissed the action.
This decision was not appealed by the government. On January 24, 2001, the Canadian Province of British
Columbia brought a second action in British Columbia Provincial Court. A trial is likely to occur in October
2002.

On September 22, 1999, the U.S. Department of Justice brought an action in the United States District
Court for the District of Columbia against various industry members, including RJR Tobacco. The
government sought to recover federal funds expended in providing health care to smokers who have developed
diseases and injuries alieged to be smoking-related, and, in addition, seeks, pursuant to the federal RICC
statute, disgorgement of profits the government contends were earned as a consequence of a RICO
racketeering “enterprise.” On December 27, 1999, defendants filed a motion to dismiss challenging all counts
included in the action brought by the DOJ. On June 6, 2000, the trial court heard oral argument on the
motion. On September 28, 2000, federal court Judge Gladys Kessler of the United States District Court for
the District of Columbia granted the non-Liggett defendants’ motion to dismiss the following counts of
plaintiff’s complaint: (1) Medical Care Recovery Act claim, and (2) Medicare Secondary Payer claim. The
court, however, denied the motion with respect to the RICO claims. On October 13, 2000, the United States
filed a motion to limit Judge Kessler's September 28, 2000 order to claims for payments under Medicare and
the Federal Employee Health Benefits Act.

Discovery in the DOJ lawsuit is ongoing, and trial has been scheduled for July 15, 2003. RJR Tobacco
believes it has meritorious factual and legal defenses to that lawsuit. In June 2001, the United States Attorney
General assembled a team of three DOJ lawyers to work on a possible settlement of the federal lawsuit. The
DOJ lawyers met with representatives of the tobacco industry, including RJR Tobacco, on July 18, 2001. No
settlement was reached and no further meetings are planned.
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Union Cases. Although the MSA settled some of the most potentially burdensome health-care cost
recovery actions, many other such cases have been brought by other types of plaintiffs. As of February 7, 2002,
approximately 14 lawsuits by union trust funds against cigarette manufacturers and others are pending. The
funds seek recovery of payments made by them for medical expenses of their participant union members and
their dependents allegedly injured by cigarettes. The claims in these cases are almost identical, and several of
these cases purport to be class actions on behalf of all union trust funds in a particular state.

The defendants in these actions argue, among other things, that one who pays an injured person’s medical
expenses is legally too remote to maintain an action against the person allegedly responsible for the injury. In
addition, they argue that the traditional subrogation remedy cannot be supplanted by a direct right of action
for the trust fund that strips defendants of the defenses they would ordinarily have against the allegedly injured
individual. o

" On March 29, 1999, in the first of these cases to be considered by a federal court of appeals, Steamfitters
Local Union 420 v. Philip Morris, Inc., the United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit affirmed a
district court ruling dismissing the case on remoteness grounds. Since then, the U.S. Courts of Appeals for the
Second, Third, Fifth, Seventh, Eighth, Ninth and Eleventh Circuits have all ruled in favor of the industry in
similar unjon cases. On January 10, 2000, the United States Supreme Court denied petitions for certiorari filed
in cases from the Second, Third and Ninth Circuits.

Numerous trial court judges also have dismissed union trust fund cases on remoteness grounds.
Nonetheless, some union, or other third-party payor, cases have survived motions to dismiss and have
proceeded or may proceed to trial. On August 2, 1999, a federal district court in New York denied defendants’
motions to dismiss in two separate cases heard together, National Asbestos Workers Medical Fund v. Philip
Morris, Inc. and Blue Cross and Blue Shield of New Jersey, Inc. v. Philip Morris, Inc., discussed below. On
December 21, 1999, the federal district court in the District of Columbia denied defendants’ motions to
dismiss in three cases consolidated for pretrial purposes: Service Employees International Union Health and
Welfare Fund v. Philip Morris, Inc., S.E.LU. Local 74 Welfare Fund v. Philip Morris, Inc. and Holland v.
Philip Morris, Inc. On May 22, 2001, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia
reversed the federal district court’s ruling that denied in part defendants’ motion to dismiss, and affirmed the
portion of the ruling that dismissed the bulk of plaintiffs’ claims in these cases. In the same opinion, the court
reversed the district court’s ruling that denied defendants’ motion to dismiss the RICO and fraud claims in
Sheet Metal Workers Trust Fund v. Philip Morris, Inc., which had been consolidated with the first three cases
for purposes of pretrial discovery. The result of the D.C. Circuit’s ruling is that all claims in these four cases,
as well as several additional union trust fund cases that had also been consolidated for purposes of the appeal,
were dismissed. On June 21, 2001, plaintiffs filed a petition for rehearing before the entire D.C. circuit with
respect to these cases, which was denied on July 13, 2001. On August 20, 2001, plaintiffs filed a petition for
writ of certiorari with the U.S. Supreme Court, which was denied on October 29, 2001.

On March 3, 2000, a New York state court granted motions to dismiss ten union cases, Eastern States
Health & Welfare Fund v. Philip Morris, Inc., brought by 14 union trust funds seeking to recover money paid
for medical bills incurred by their participants and beneficiaries who suffer from alleged tobacco-caused
diseases. This group of cases is on appeal to the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of New York. On
September 26, 2000, in Steamfitters Local Union No. 614 Health and Welfare Fund v. Philip Morris, Inc., the
Tennessee Court of Appedls affirmed a trial court’s dismissal of an antitrust claim and found that the
remaining claims in the plaintiffs’ complaint were too remote to permit recovery. On March 21, 2001, a federal
district court in Connecticut granted defendants’ motion to dismiss in Connécticut Pipe Trades Health Fund v.
Philip Morris, Inc. Most recently, on January 25, 2002, in Motion Picture Industry Health Plan v. Philip
Morris, Inc., the California Supreme Court granted plaintiffs’ petition for review and deferred further action
pending consideration and disposition of a related issue in Naegele v. Raybestos-Manhattan, Inc. (pending in
San Francisco County Superior Court), or pending further order of the court. On October 25, 2001, the
California Court of Appeals affirmed the April 10, 2000, order granting voluntary dismissal of the case with
prejudice as to all defendants.
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The first and only union case to go to trial to date was fron Workers Local No. 17 v. Philip Morris, Inc.,
which was tried in federal court in Ohio. On March 18, 1999, the jury returned a unanimous verdict for the
defendants, including RJR Tobacco. The plaintiffs dismissed their appeal of the verdict.

Other Health-Care Cost Recovery and Aggregated Claims Plaintiffs. Groups of health-care insurers, as
well as a private entity that purported to self-insure its employee health-care programs, have also advanced
claims similar to those found in the union health-care cost recovery actions.

Two “insurer” cases, Williams & Drake v. American Tobacco Co. and Regence Blueshield v. Philip
Morris, Inc., were dismissed in their entirety on remoteness grounds by federal district courts in Pennsylvania
and Washington. These rulings were then upheld on appeal to the Third and Ninth Circuits, respectively.

In Group Health Plan, Inc. v. Philip Morris, Inc. and Medica v. Philip Morris, Inc., two cases consolidated
for opinion, a federal district judge in Minnesota dismissed all claims, except a state antitrust claim and a state
conspiracy claim. The federal court certified to the Minnesota Supreme Court the question of whether these
two claims could be pursued under Minnesota [aw by Group Health Plan. On January 11, 2001, the Minnesota
Supreme Court ruled that the plaintiff could pursue these claims. Certain defendants, including RJR Tobacco,
filed motions for summary judgment based on (1) the statutes of limitation on June 15, 2001; and
(2) causation, injury and damages on June 20, 2001. On January 31, 2002, summary judgment was granted in
favor of certain defendants, including RJR Tobacco, on all causes of action. Plaintiffs have not yet filed an
appeal.

On June 6, 2001, in Blue Cross and Blue Shield of New Jersey, Inc. v. Philip Morris, Inc., a federal court
jury in Brooklyn returned a verdict in favor of RJR Tobacco and other tobacco defendants on common law
fraud and civil RICQO claims, but found for the plaintiff, Empire Blue Cross and Blue Shield, on a claim under
a New York state deceptive business practices statute. Empire pursued its claims against the defendants on
behalf of itself directly, as well as on the behalf of its insureds, under a theory of subrogation. The jury verdict
on the direct claim was approximately $17.8 million, and the verdict on the subrogated claim was
approximately $11.8 million, RJR Tobacco’s portion of these amounts is $6.6 million and $4.4 million,
respectively. Empire is not entitled to recover under both direct and subrogated claims; thus, Empire must
elect one claim, and thus one jury verdict. The New York statute under which Empire recovered does not
provide for punitive damages, but does allow for recovery of reasonable attorneys’ fees. Plaintiff filed a motion
for attorneys’ fees. On October 4, 2001, the court denied defendants’ post-trial motions, entered final judgment
in favor of Empire, yet retained jurisdiction to decide the attorneys’ fees issue. RJR Tobacco and the other
tobacco defendants appealed the final judgment to the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit.
All remaining claims of Blue Cross Blue Shield plans pending before the court are stayed pending the appeal.

On August 8, 2001, in County of Cook v. Philip Morris, Inc., the Circuit Court of Cook County granted
defendants’ motion for judgment on the pleadings based on remoteness grounds and dismissed plaintiffs’
complaint in its entirety. Plaintiffs appealed the dismissal to the Illinois Appellate Court, First District, on
September 5, 2001. Defendants noticed a cross-appeal to the appellate court on September 17, 2001, from the
trial court’s prior adverse rulings on defendants’ motions to dismiss on the grounds of MSA release and lack of
standing. The appellate court has not yet ruled. ‘

Native American tribes have filed similar health-care cost recovery cases. On December 8, 2000, in Utu
Utu Gwaitu Paiute Tribe v. Philip Morris, Inc., the San Diego Superior Court denied plaintiffs’ motion for
class certification. On January 10, 2001, the plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed the action. On November 12,
1999, in Table Bluff Reservation v. Philip Morris, Inc., a California federal district court dismissed plaintiffs’
lawsuit. On July 16, 2001, the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit affirmed the federal
district court’s dismissal. On July 30, 2001, in Acoma Pueblo v. American Tobacco Co., a federal district court
in New Mexico granted defendants’ motion to dismiss plaintiffs’ complaint for failure to state a claim. The
ruling was based on a number of grounds, including remoteness. On September 17, 2001, plaintiff filed a
motion for reconsideration which was denied on November 1, 2001. The dismissal was modified to a dismissal
with prejudice in order to facilitate plaintiffs’ appeal. On August 31, 2001, in Alabama Coushatta Tribe of
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Texas v. American Tobacco Co., the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas (Beaumont
Division) dismissed plaintiffs’ complaint. Plaintiffs appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the
Fifth Circuit on October 1, 2001. Most recently, on January 25, 2002, in the Navajo Nation v. Philip Morris,
Inc., the District Court of Navajo Nation granted in part defendants’ motion to dismiss the complaint with
respect to the conspiracy, deceptive acts and restraints of trade claims. The court refused to dismiss plaintiff’s
product liability claim. Four such cases remain pending, all before tribal courts.

Other cost recovery suits have been brought by local governmental jurisdictions, taxpayers on behalf of a
government jurisdiction, a university and hospitals. On December 14, 1999, a federal district court in
Washington dismissed one such case, Association of Washington Public Hospital Districts v. Philip Morris,
Inc. Plaintiffs appealed this ruling to the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, which affirmed
the dismissal by the trial court on February 22, 2001. Plaintiffs filed a petition to the U.S. Supreme Court
asking it to review the case on July 16, 2001, but the court declined plaintiffs” petition October 1, 2001. On
May 30, 2000, in 4.0. Fox Memorial Hospital v. American Tobacco Co., Inc., pending in state court in Nassau
County, New York, a group of approximately 175 hospitals filed suit against the tobacco industry seeking
repayment from cigarette companies for costs expended to treat smoking-related illnesses. Plaintiffs seek at
least $3.6 billion in damages. Defendants’ filed a motion to dismiss which was granted on December 14, 2001.
On January 17, 2002, plaintiffs appealed the dismissal to the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court,
Second Judicial Department.

A number of foreign countries have filed suit in state and federal courts in the United States against RJR
Tobacco and other tobacco industry defendants to recover funds for health care, medical and other assistance
paid by those foreign governments to their citizens. Of the 33 cases currently pending, 6 are pending in state
court and 27 are pending in federal court. Eleven of these cases have been transferred to, and are still pending
before, the Judicial Panel on Multi-District Litigation in the United States District Court for the District of
Columbia. Other foreign governments and entities have stated that they are considering filing such actions in
the United States. In addition, in the Marshall Islands v. American Tobacco Co., the Republic of the Marshall
Islands brought a health-care cost recovery lawsuit in the Marshall Islands against RJR Tobacco and other
cigarette manufacturers. On February 22, 2001, the High Court of the Marshall Islands granted defendants’
motions for summary judgment on all counts except the Consumer Protection Act. The parties stipulated to a
dismissal of the remaining claim on May 18, 2001. Final judgment was entered on June 4, 2001. Thereafter,
on June 27, 2001, plaintiff noticed an appeal to the Supreme Court of the Republic of the Marshall Islands.
On July 3, 2001, defendants filed a notice of cross appeal. Oral argument on the appeal is scheduled for
April 17-19, 2002.

On August 7, 2000, a federal district court in Washington, D.C. dismissed an international health-care
cost recovery action entitled Ontario v. Imperial Tobacco, Lid. Plaintiffs appealed to the United States Court
of Appeals for the District of Columbia. However, on November 29, 2001, the D.C. Court of Appeals granted
plaintiff’s motion for a voluntary dismissal of the appeal, thereby dismissing the case. In Obra Social de
Empleados de la Marina Mercante v. American Tobacco Co., Inc., the Superior Court in Washington, D.C.
granted defendants’ motion to dismiss on January 13, 2001. Plaintiffs appealed the dismissal to the D.C. Court
of Appeals; however, the parties agreed to dismiss the appeal on October 22, 2001. Additionally, plaintiffs filed
a separate action in the same court on March 23, 2001; that case was voluntarily dismissed on August 30,
2001. On May 22, 2001, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia affirmed the federal
district court’s dismissal in the following three matters: (1) Guatemala v. Tobacco Institute, Inc. (a non-RJR
Tobacco action); (2) Nicaragua v. Liggett Group, Inc. (another non-RJR Tobacco case); and (3) Ukraine v.
American Brands, Inc. (a case involving RJR Tobacco). Plaintiffs in each of these cases filed a petition for
writ of certiorari to the U.S. Supreme Court on August 20, 2001. The Supreme Court, on October 29, 2001,
denied the petitions. Most recently, on November 20, 2001, in Venezuela v. Philip Morris Cos., Inc. and
Espirito Santo, Brazil v. Brooke Group Ltd., a Florida state court judge granted defendants’ motions to dismiss
these matters because the claims were too remote, indirect and derivative to survive. Plaintiff appealed each
case to the Third District Court of Appeal of Florida on December 19, 2001.
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Pursuant to the terms of the 1999 sale of RJR’s international tobacco business, Japan Tobacco Inc.
assumed RJR Tobacco’s liability, if any, in the health-care cost recovery cases brought by foreign countries.

Finally, 11 lawsuits are pending against RJR Tobacco in which asbestos companies and/or asbestos-
related trust funds allege that they “overpaid” claims brought against them to the extent that tobacco use, not
asbestos exposure, was the cause of the alleged personal injuries for which they paid compensation. One of
these lawsuits, Falise v. American Tobacco Co., was dismissed by the United States District Court for the
Eastern District of New York (Weinstein, J.) on November 2, 1999, due to a lack of subject matter
jurisdiction. This case was refiled on November 11, 1999. Trial began on November 27, 2000. On January 22,
2001, the judge declared a mistrial. The case was dismissed with prejudice on June 29, 2001 after the plaintiff
announced that it would not retry the case. On May 24, 2001, a Mississippi state court judge dismissed all
claims by Owens-Corning in a lawsuit similar to Falise. Owens-Corning appealed the dismissal to the
Mississippi Supreme Court on August 15, 2001. A similar case, H. K. Porter Co., Inc. v. American Tobacco
Co., is pending in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York (Weinstein, J.). In
Fibreboard Corp. v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., a case pending in state court in California, Owens-Corning
and Fibreboard asserted the same claims as those asserted in the Mississippi case. Motions to dismiss those
claims have been held in abeyance pending the final determination of the Mississippi case.

Antitrust Cases. A number of tobacco wholesalers, or indirect purchasers, have sued United States
cigarette manufacturers, including RJR Tobacco, and its parent company, RJR, alleging that cigarette
manufacturers combined and conspired to set the price of cigarettes, in violation of antitrust statutes and
various state unfair business practices statutes, as a result of which plaintiffs suffered economic injury. Of the
39 cases currently pending, 30 are pending in state court and 9 are pending in federal court. Plaintiffs are
asking the court to certify the lawsuits as class actions and to allow the respective plaintiffs to pursue the
lawsuits as representatives of other persons in individual states or throughout the United States that purchased
cigarettes directly from one or more of the defendants. The federal cases have been consolidated and sent by
the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation for pretrial proceedings in the United States District Court for
the Northern District of Georgia. On November 30, 2000, the court dismissed plaintiffs’ claims of fraudulent
concealment, claims concerning conduct outside the United States and allegations relating to non-price
conduct. A class of direct purchasers was certified by the court on January 27, 2001. On February 22, 2001,
plaintiffs repleaded their fraudulent concealment allegations. These allegations were dismissed on June 19,
2001. State court cases on behalf of indirect purchasers have been dismissed in Arizona, currently on appeal,
and New York. A Minnesota court denied class certification on November 21, 2001. A Kansas court granted
class certification on November 15, 2001.

On March 2, 2000, Liggett Group Inc. filed an antitrust action against RJR Tobacco in the U.S. District
Court for the District of New Jersey. Subsequently, the court granted RJR Tobacco’s motion to transfer this
action to the United States District Court for the Middle District of North Carolina. On May 3, 2001, the
case, which alleged that RJR Tobacco’s Every-Day-Low-Price merchandising program is a violation of the
Sherman Antitrust Act and New Jersey antitrust laws, was voluntarily dismissed.

In A.D. Bedell Wholesale Co. v. Philip Morris, Inc., filed on April 13, 1999, in the United States District
Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania, a cigarette wholesaler alleged that the MSA restricts cigarette
output and otherwise restrains trade in violation of the Sherman Act. On March 22, 2000, the district court
entered an order granting defendants’ motion to dismiss counts I and II of the complaint, denying defendants’
motion to dismiss count III, and denying as moot plaintiffs’ motion for partial summary judgment. On
April 11, 2000, the plaintiffs and defendant Philip Morris, the only defendant to which count III applied, filed
a consent order dismissing count III of the amended complaint. On April 18, 2000, plaintiffs appealed the
dismissal of counts [ and II to the United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit. On June 19, 2001, the
Third Circuit affirmed the district court’s dismissal of counts I and II, ruling that tobacco companies that
entered into the MSA, including RJR Tobacco, were immune from potential antitrust liability that was
alleged to arise out of the MSA. The finding of antitrust immunity is consistent with that of all other federal
courts that have considered antitrust challenges to the MSA. The plaintiffs filed a petition for rehearing and
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suggestion for rehearing before the entire Third Circuit on July 2, 2001. This petition was denied on July 24,
2001. On October 19, 2001, the plaintiffs filed a petition for a writ of certiorari with the U.S. Supreme Court,
which denied the petition on January 7, 2002.

On July 30, 1999, Cigarettes Cheaper!, a retailer, filed an antitrust counterclaim against RJR Tobacco in
a gray market trademark suit originally brought by RJR Tobacco in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Illinois. Cigarettes Cheaper! alleges that it was denied promotional resources in violation
of the Robinson-Patman Act. The district court declined to dismiss the counterclaim. On January 23, 2001,
the court granted Cigarettes Cheaper!’s motion to amend its counterclaim to include a violation of the
Sherman Act §1, claiming that RJR Tobacco conspired with other retailers to deny promotions to Cigarettes
Cheaper!, an allegation that RJR Tobacco denies. On March 21, 2001, RIJR Tobacco’s motion to add a
trademark dilution claim against Cigarettes Cheaper! was granted. On June 28, 2001, the court granted RJR
Tobacco’s motion to strike with prejudice several of Cigarettes Cheaper!’s affirmative defenses. These
defenses related to: (1) alleged misrepresentations caused by the packaging of cigarettes manufactured by
RJR Tobacco for export; (2) RIR Tobacco’s “No Bull” advertising campaign for its WINSTON cigarettes;
(3) antitrust trademark misuse; (4) nominative fair use; and (5) the first sale doctrine. Fact discovery closed
on October 18, 2001. Expert discovery is presently underway and dispositive motions likely will be filed this
spring or summer. No trial date is yet set.

On May 10, 2000, the Customer Company, a retailer affiliated with Cigarettes Cheaper!, filed a similar
antitrust claim against RJR Tobacco in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
California. This case has now been settled. The settlement terms are confidential; however, the settlement is
not material to RJR Tobacco. :

Tobacco Growers” Case.  On February 16, 2000, a class action complaint, Deloach v. Philip Morris Cos.,
Inc., was brought against RJR Tobacco, other cigarette manufacturers and others, in the United States
District Court for the District of Columbia on behalf of a putative class of all tobacco growers and tobacco
allotment holders, some 5,930 of which are actually named in the first amended complaint. Plaintiffs’ current
theory, as reflected in their second amended complaint, which was filed on September 2, 2000, is that the
defendants, Philip Morris, Inc., RJR Tobacco, Brown & Williamson Tobacco Corp. and Lorillard Tobacco
Co., engaged in bid-rigging of American burley and flue-cured tobacco auctions beginning at least by 1996 and
continuing to present. Defendants’ actions are alleged to have held the auction prices of tobacco at artificially
low prices resulting in damage to tobacco growers and allotment holders. In addition, plaintiffs allege that
defendants have engaged in a conspiracy to force the elimination or destruction of the federal government’s
tobacco quota and price support program through an alleged illegal group boycott. On October 9, 2000,
defendants filed a motion to dismiss the second amended complaint and a motion to transfer venue to the
United States District Court for the Middle District of North Carolina. On November 30, 2000, the court
granted the motion to transfer the case. On December 20, 2000, plaintiffs moved to amend the complaint to
add leaf-buying companies as defendants. Plaintiffs’ motion to certify the class remains pending.

Scheduled Trials. As of February 7, 2002, RJR Tobacco is a defendant in two cases currently being
tried: Burton v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., an individual case being tried in federal court in Kansas, and Scott
v. American Tobacco Co., a medical monitoring class action. Jury selection began in the Scott case on June 18,
2001. After the jury was impaneled, various rulings required the dismissal of several members of the original
jury (nine jurors and/or alternates). Jury selection began again on October 22, 2001. On December 26, 2001,
defendants’ filed an application for supervisory writ to the Fourth District of the Louisiana Court of Appeals
challenging certain aspects of the second round of jury selection. Opening statements will not occur until that
application is decided.

Although trial schedules are subject to change and many cases are dismissed before trial, it is likely that
there will be an increased number of tobacco cases, some involving claims for possibly billions of dollars,
against RJR and RJR Tobacco, coming to trial during 2002. As of February 7, 2002, there are 18 cases
scheduled for trial. Fourteen Broin II cases also are scheduled to be tried in 2002.
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Other Developments. RIJR Tobacco is aware of a grand jury investigation being conducted in North
Carolina that relates to the cigarette business of certain of its former affiliates. In connection with this
investigation, RJR Tobacco responded to document subpoenas dated July 7, 1999 and June 1, 2000,
respectively.

On December 22, 1998, Northern Brands International, Inc. entered into a plea agreement with the
United States Attorney for the Northern District of New York. Northern Brands is a now-inactive tobacco
subsidiary that was part of the business of R. J. Reynolds International B.V., a former Netherlands subsidiary
of RJR Tobacco which was managed by a former affiliate, RIR-MacDonald, Inc. On May 12, 1999, RJR-
MacDonald, Inc. was sold to Japan Tobacco Inc. and subsequently changed its name to JT-MacDonald, Inc.
Northern Brands was charged with aiding and abetting certain customers who brought merchandise into the
United States “by means of false and fraudulent practices . . . .” It is understood that JT-MacDonald, Inc.,
Japan Tobacco’s international operating company in Canada, is cooperating with an investigation now being
conducted by the Royal Canadian Mounted Police relating to the same events that gave rise to the Northern
Brands investigation.

On December 21, 1999, the government of Canada filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for
the Northern District of New York against RJR Tobacco, RIJR, several currently and formerly related
companies, including Northern Brands, and the Canadian Tobacco Manufacturers Council. The lawsuit
alleges that, beginning in 1991, the defendants conspired with known distributors and smugglers to illegally
import into Canada tobacco products originally earmarked for export from Canada, in a fashion that avoided
the imposition of certain excise and retail taxes and duty payments. On June 30, 2000, this case was dismissed
by the United States District Court for the Northern District of New York. Plaintiff appealed the dismissal to
the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit, which, on October 12, 2001, affirmed the district
court’s dismissal. On December 12, 2001, the Court of Appeals denied Canada’s petition for rehearing.
Although the international tobacco business was sold, RJR Tobacco retained certain liabilities relating to the
events disclosed above.

Similar lawsuits have been filed against RJR Tobacco and its affiliates, along with other cigarette
manufacturers, by the European Community and ten of its member states (Belgium, Finland, France, Greece,
Germany, Italy, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Portugal and Spain), Ecuador, Belize and Honduras. These
suits contend that RJR Tobacco and other tobacco companies in the United States may be held responsible
for damages caused by cigarette smugglers under common law and under the federal RICO statute. Each of
these actions seeks compensatory, punitive and treble damages. On July 17, 2001, the action brought by the
European Community was dismissed by the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New
York. However, the European Community and its member states filed a similar complaint in the same
jurisdiction on August 6, 2001. On October 25, 2001, the court denied the European Community’s request of
August 10, 2001, to reinstate its original complaint. On November 9, 2001, the European Community and the
ten member states amended their complaint filed on August 6, 2001, to change the name of defendant
Nabisco Group Holdings Corp. to RJR Acquisition, Inc. RIR Tobacco and the other defendants filed motions
to dismiss that complaint on November 14, 2001, and the court heard oral argument on those motions on
January 11, 2002. As of February 7, 2002, a decision is still pending. RIR Tobacco and other defendants filed
in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida motions to dismiss the actions brought
by Ecuador, Belize and Honduras. These motions have been briefed and argued, and have been taken under
advisement.

On May 23, 2001, Star Scientific, Inc. filed a patent infringement action against RJR Tobacco in the
United States District Court for the District of Maryland. The suit alleges infringement of U.S. Patent
No. 6,202,649 entitled “Method of Treating Tobacco to Reduce Nitrosamine Content, and Products Produced
Thereby.” RJR Tobacco denies that it has infringed any valid claim of the Star patent. On June 13, 2001, RJR
Tobacco filed a declaratory judgment action against Star Scientific in the United States District Court for the
Middle District of North Carolina, seeking a declaration that the patent is invalid and not infringed by RJR
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Tobacco. On October 3, 2001, the North Carolina federal court granted Star Scientific’s motion to stay, but
denied its motions to dismiss or transfer the case.

On or about October 30, 1998, a boat manufacturer, American Marine Holdings, Inc., filed suit against
RIR Tobacco claiming that one of its boats was not properly identified in RJR Tobacco cigarette advertising.
The plaintiff claimed, among other things, violations of the Lanham Act and breach of an alleged oral
contract. On April 12, 2001, the parties reached an agreement to settle the matter. The related provision for
settlement is included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and it is possible that some of the tobacco-related legal
actions, proceedings or claims could be decided against RJR Tobacco or its affiliates, including RIR, or
indemnitees. Determinations of liability or adverse rulings against other cigarette manufacturers that are
defendants in similar actions, even if such rulings are not final, could adversely affect the litigation against
RJR Tobacco or its affiliates or indemnitees and could encourage an increase in the number of such claims. A
number of political, legislative, regulatory and other developments relating to the tobacco industry and
cigarette smoking have received wide media attention. These developments may negatively affect the
outcomes of tobacco-related legal actions and encourage the commencement of additional similar litigation.

Although it is impossible to predict the outcome of such events on pending litigation and the rate at
which new lawsuits are filed against RJR Tobacco and RJR, a significant increase in litigation and/or in
adverse outcomes for tobacco defendants could have an adverse effect on either or both of these entities. RJR
Tobacco and RJR each believe that they have a number of valid defenses to any of those actions and intend to
defend those actions vigorously.

RJR believes that, notwithstanding the quality of defenses available to it and RJR Tobacco in litigation
matters, it is possible that the results of operations or cash flows of RJR in particular quarterly or annual
periods or RJR’s financial condition could be materially affected by the ultimate outcome of certain pending
litigation matters, including bonding and litigation costs. RJR’s management is unable to predict the outcome
of the litigation or to derive a meaningful estimate of the amount or range of any possible loss in any particular
quarterly or annual period or in the aggregate. Accordingly, no liability for tobacco-related litigation is
currently recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Matters

RJR and its subsidiaries are subject to federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations
concerning the discharge, storage, handling and disposal of hazardous or toxic substances. Such laws and
regulations provide for significant fines, penalties and liabilities, sometimes without regard to whether the
owner or operator of the property knew of, or was responsible for, the release or presence of hazardous or toxic
substances. In addition, third parties may make claims against owners or operators of properties for personal
injuries and property damage associated with releases of hazardous or toxic substances. In the past, RJR
Tobacco has been named a potentially responsible party with third parties under the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act with respect to several superfund sites. Regulations
promulgated by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and other governmental agencies under various
statutes have resulted in, and likely will continue to result in, substantial expenditures for pollution control,
waste treatment, plant modification and similar activities. RJR and its subsidiaries monitor their environmen-
tal matters and, dependent upon the probability of occurrence and reasonable estimation of cost, accrue or
disclose any material liability. '

RJR was named in an insurance coverage suit filed August 13, 1997, by another company named as a
potentially responsible party under CERCLA with respect to a superfund site in Hawaii at which a former
subsidiary of RJR had operations. In this lawsuit, De/ Monte Fresh Produce v. Fireman’s Fund Insurance, filed
in the First Circuit Court of the State of Hawaii, the plaintiff sought a declaratory judgment that it is entitled
to insurance coverage for the site or, in the alternative, that RJR is obligated to indemnify the plaintiff under
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the terms of the agreement by which RJR sold that company in 1989. On June 26, 2001, the plaintiff filed for
dismissal without prejudice as to all claims against RJR. A motion for summary judgment filed by Fireman’s
Fund Insurance Company was denied by the court on August 6, 2001.

Del Monte Corporation has been named a defendant in two lawsuits related to the same Hawaii
superfund site, Board of Water Supply of the City and County of Honolulu v. Shell Oil Company and Akee v.
The Dow Chemical Co., filed in the First Circuit Court of the State of Hawaii on September 27, 1999, and
October 7, 1999, respectively. Also, Del Monte Corporation has received a demand for indemnity from an
entity that was a chemical supplier to Del Monte Corporation and is named a defendant in one of these
lawsuits. Del Monte Corporation has sought indemnity from RJR under the terms of the agreement by which
RIJR sold Del Monte Corporation in 1989. RJR, in turn, has provided notice of these claims to the buyers of
the Del Monte fresh fruit business, asserting the right to be indemnified by the buyers for any liability arising
out of such claims under the terms of the agreement by which RJR sold the Del Monte fresh fruit business in
1989.

Pursuant to an agreement dated June 12, 2001, among RJR, the buyers of the Del Monte fresh fruit
business, Del Monte Corporation and others, the buyers of the Del Monte fresh fruit business agreed, from the
date of the agreement forward, to indemnify RJR for any liabilities imposed in either Board of Water Supply
or Akee and with respect to the environmental investigation and remediation of the superfund site in Hawaii
currently being required by the EPA. RJR and the buyers of the Del Monte fresh fruit business also agreed to
engage in good faith negotiations regarding RIJR’s asserted right to be indemnified with respect to any liability,
cost or expense related to such matters that was incurred prior to the date of the agreement. Based on an
agreement reached between RJR and the buyers of the Del Monte fresh fruit business on December 3, 2001,
the buyers have reimbursed RJR for the amount of legal expenses claimed by RJR in defending the Board of
Water Supply and Akee cases prior to the parties’ agreement of June 12, 2001. Additionally, pursuant to a
settlement agreement executed in December 2001, among the plaintiff and certain defendants, including the
buyers of the Del Monte fresh fruit business, the Board of Water Supply case, including all pending claims and
cross-claims, has been dismissed with prejudice. In accordance with the terms of the settlement agreement,
the plaintiff released the buyers of the Del Monte fresh fruit business and all of their predecessors, including
RJR, from all claims asserted in Board of Water Supply.

On June 1, 2001, RJR received notice from Del Monte Corporation of a claim made against it by a
Hawaii landowner who has been sued by a lessee of its land, claiming injuries due to pesticide contamination
of the soil, allegedly caused by Del Monte Corporation as a prior lessee of the land. The landowner-defendant
has tendered the claim to Del Monte Corporation for defense and indemnity. Del Monte Corporation has in
turn tendered the claim to RJR for defense and indemnity, claiming it is entitled to be indemnified under the
terms of the agreement by which RJR sold Del Monte Corporation. Based on the plaintiff's failure to provide
any factual information in support of its claim that Del Monte Corporation was a prior lessee of the subject
land, Del Monte Corporation has agreed to extend indefinitely the period during which RJR must respond to
the Del Monte Corporation’s tender of the claim to RJR for defense and indemnity, subject to the right to
terminate the indefinite extension on fifteen days notice to RJR.

RJIR Tobacco was notified by the EPA on June 11, 2000 of its potential liability under CERCLA for a
superfund site in Greer, South Carolina. The notice and demand for reimbursement of costs incurred by the
EPA were sent to a group of companies previously involved as potentially responsible parties in another
superfund site, which includes RJR Tobacco. The EPA alleges that some waste from the cleanup of the other
site was transported to the site in question. RJR Tobacco has executed a tolling agreement with the EPA. This
tolling agreement provides for entry into good faith negotiations with the EPA, and is not an admission of fact
or liability. The tolling agreement also should have no impact on any defense RJR Tobacco may assert, other
than a defense based on the running of the statute of limitations. Information is still being gathered from other
potentially responsible parties recently notified by the EPA.
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RJR and its subsidiaries have been engaged in a continuing program to assure compliance with federal,
state and local environmental laws and regulations. Although it is difficult to identify precisely the portion of
capital expenditures or other costs attributable to compliance with environmental laws and regulations and to
estimate the cost of resolving these CERCLA matters, RJR does not expect such expenditures or other costs
to have a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations or financial condition of RJR or its
subsidiaries.

Other Contingencies

Until the acquisition by merger by Philip Morris Companies, Inc. of Nabisco from NGH on Decem-
ber 11, 2000, NGH and Nabisco were members of the consolidated group of NGH for U.S. federal income
tax purposes. Each member of a consolidated group is jointly and severally liable for the U.S. federal income
tax liability of other members of the group as well as for pension and funding liabilities of the other group
members. NGH, now known as RJR Acquisition Corp., continues to be jointly and severally liable for these
Nabisco liabilities prior to December 11, 2000.

In connection with Philip Morris’ acquisition by merger of Nabisco and RJR’s subsequent acquisition by
merger of NGH, Philip Morris, Nabisco and NGH entered into a voting and indemnity agreement that
generally seeks to allocate tax liabilities ratably based upon NGH’s taxable income and that of Nabisco, had
the parties been separate taxpayers. If Philip Morris and Nabisco are unable to satisfy their obligations under
this agreement, NGH, now known as RJR Acquisition Corp., would be responsible for satisfying them.

In connection with the sale of the international tobacco business to Japan Tobacco Inc. on May 12, 1999,
RIJR and RJR Tobacco agreed to indemnify Japan Tobacco against (1) any liabilities, costs and expenses
arising out of the imposition or assessment of any tax with respect to the international tobacco business arising
prior to the sale, other than as reflected on the closing balance sheet, (2) any liabilities, costs and expenses
that Japan Tobacco or any of its affiliates, including the acquired entities, may incur after the sale in respect of
any of RJR’s or RJR Tobacco’s employee benefit and welfare plans and (3) any liabilities, costs and expenses
incurred by Japan Tobacco or any of its affiliates arising out of certain activities of Northern Brands. Although
it is impossible to predict the outcome of the Northern Brands litigation or the amount of liabilities, costs and
expenses, a significant adverse outcome regarding any of these items could have an adverse effect on either or
both of RJR and RJR Tobacco.

Commitments

At December 31, 2001, commitments totaled $245 million, primarily for marketing-related activities and
operating lease commitments. The operating lease amounts for each of the next five years are: 2002 — §$19
million; 2003 — $10 million; 2004 — $3 million; 2005 — $1 million; and 2006 — $1 million. Rent expense
was $43 million during 2001 and $44 million during each of 2000 and 1999.

Note 15 — Financial Instruments
Foreign Currency Arrangements

At December 31, 2001, RJR Tobacco held a forward currency exchange contract to purchase seven
million Euros with a term of less than 12 months as a hedge of an unrecognized -firm commitment for the
purchase of equipment. As of December 31, 2001, the foreign currency cash flow hedge was effective and,

accordingly, no gain or loss was realized. The unrealized gain resulting from the increase in its fair value was
insignificant. There were no forward currency exchange contracts outstanding at December 31, 2000.

Credit Risk

RIJR and its subsidiaries minimize counterparty credit risk related to their financial instruments by using
major institutions with high credit ratings.
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Note 16 — Stockholders’ Equity

RIJR’s authorized capital stock at December 31, 2001 consisted of 50 million shares of preferred stock,
par value $.01 per share, and 290 million shares of common stock, par value $.01 per share. The preferred
stock, none of which is issued or outstanding, ranks senior to common stock as to dividends and liquidation
preferences.

During 2001, RJR repurchased 8,727,600 shares of its common stock with an aggregate cost of $494

million. Of these amounts, 5,100,100 shares with an aggregate cost of $289 million completed a $350 million
repurchase program authorized by RJR’s board of directors on December 12, 2000. The remaining 3,627,500
shares with an aggregate cost of $205 million were repurchased under an authorization by RJR’s board of
directors on July 18, 2001. This program authorizes the repurchase of shares of RJR’s common stock over
time in the open market, with a maximum aggregate cost of $300 million, to enhance stockholder value. The
stock repurchases are funded by dividends from RJR Acquisition Corp, utilizing the cash proceeds of the
NGH acquisition. The timing of repurchases and the number of shares repurchased will depend upon market
conditions.

From November 1999 through December 31, 2001, cumulative repurchases under all programs were
19,970,739 shares with an aggregate cost of $780 million. Shares held through repurchase, in addition to
144,683 shares cancelled, less 304,590 shares granted, pursuant to employee benefit plans, are included in
treasury stock in the consolidated balance sheets.

Note 17 — Stock Plans

As of December 31, 2001, RJR had two stock plans, the Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Award
Plan for Directors and the 1999 Long Term Incentive Plan, as amended on December 35, 2001.

The EIAP provides for grants of stock options and deferred stock units to outside directors. Under certain
circumstances, directors may elect to receive shares of common stock in lieu of deferred stock units. A
maximum of 500,000 shares of common stock may be issued under this plan, of which 381,527 shares were
available for grant as of December 31, 2001. Options granted upon becoming a director may be exercised
between six months and ten years at a price that is the market value of the stock on the grant date. Prior to
April 2000, each outside director was awarded an annual grant of stock options that vested in three years and
was exercisable for ten years. Effective in April 2000, the annual grant of stock options was amended to
provide annual awards of deferred stock units and quarterly grants of deferred stock units. Deferred stock units
granted under the EIAP have a value equal to, and bear dividends at the same rate as, one share of RJR’s
common stock. The dividends are paid as units in an amount equal to the number of common shares that
could be purchased with the dividends on the date of payment. As soon as practicable following his or her last
year of service on the board, the director is paid in cash for the units in the quarterly grants and in common
stock, or in cash if the director elects, for the units in the annual grants. Cash payments are based on the
average closing price of RJR’s common stock during December of the year preceding payment.

The 1999 LTIP provides for grants of incentive stock options, other stock options, stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock, performance units and performance shares to key employees. The total number of
shares of common stock authorized for grant under the plan is 8,000,000 shares, plus 5,772,814 shares issuable
under the NGH Long Term Incentive Plan awards that, in connection with the spin-off, were converted into
RJR options or shares of restricted common stock. Of this authorization, 4,304,076 shares were available for
grant as of December 31, 2001.

On June 15, 1999, as a result of the spin-off, 17,065,066 options held by employees to purchase common
stock of NGH, formerly known as RJR Nabisco Holdings Corp., were equitably adjusted into 18,354,932
options for NGH shares and 5,456,114 options for RJR shares. The spin-off did not change the value of the
option grant, ratio of exercise price to market value, vesting provision or exercise period. The allocation of RJR
options was transferred into the 1999 LTIP.

76




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Also, in connection with the spin-off, holders of restricted stock under the NGH LTIP received one RJR
restricted share for every three NGH restricted shares. The resulting 316,700 restricted shares were
transferred into the 1999 LTIP. The five-year vesting provisions of the restricted shares remain unchanged for
those held by continuing employees of RJR and its subsidiaries and lapsed on those held by employees of the
sold international tobacco business and NGH. Compensation expense related to the shares held by continuing
employees of RJR and its subsidiaries was insignificant in each of 2001, 2000 and 1999. At December 31,
2001, 43,333 shares remained restricted. Unless forfeited, restrictions on all of these shares will lapse in 2003,
The unamortized portion remaining in stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2001 was insignificant.

In 1999, RJR granted 777,000 shares of restricted stock in tandem with 3,108,000 options, included in the
following option table, to eligible employees under the 1999 LTIP. On each vesting date, each eligible
employee will receive the portion of the tandem award with the highest value, the vesting shares of RJR
common stock or tandem stock options, unless he or she has previously made an affirmative election
otherwise. Generally, these shares may not be disposed of, or transferred while restricted during the three- to
five-year vesting period. Of these restrictions, 334,500 will lapse in 2002 and 167,250 will lapse in each of 2003
and 2004, unless the related shares are forfeited. Since the date of grant, 108,000 shares have been forfeited.
The market price of the stock on the grant date was charged to stockholders’ equity as unearned compensation
and was amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting periods through September 2000. Since the fourth
quarter of 2000, it-has been more probable that holders will forfeit the restricted stock grant at vesting and
elect to exercise the related tandem options. Accordingly, amortization of the unamortized equity to
compensation expense was suspended. During 2001, a reversal of previous compensation expense of $1 million
resulted from the forfeiture of unvested restricted shares. Compensation expense of $4 million and $3 million
was recorded in 2000 and 1999, respectively. The unamortlzed portion rcmammg in stockholders’ equity at
December 31, 2001 was $13 million.

In 2000, RIR granted 673,898 shares of restricted stock at $17.03 to eligible employees under the 1999
LTIP. Generally, these shares may not be disposed of or transferred during the three-year vesting period.
These restrictions will lapse in 2003, unless the related shares are forfeited. Since the date of grant, 25,374
shares have been forfeited and restrictions on 9,782 shares have lapsed. Because the actual number of shares
granted may increase or decrease based on certain performance factors, this grant is accounted for as a
variable grant and, accordingly, the fair value is being charged to stockholders’ equity as unearned
compensation and is being amortized over the three-year vesting period. During 2001 and 2000, including
amortization of expected performance shares and dividends on forfeited shares, compensation expense was $17
million and $11 million, respectively, and the unamortlzed portlon remaining in stockholders’ equity at
December 31, 2001 was $15 million. :

During 2001, RJR granted 304,590 shares of restricted stock at $52.96 to eligible employees under the
1999 LTIP. Generally, these shares may not be disposed of or transferred during the three-year vesting period.
These restrictions will lapse in 2004, unless the related shares are forfeited. Because the actual number of
shares granted may increase or decrease based on certain performance factors, this grant is accounted for as a
variable grant and, accordingly, the fair value is being charged to stockholders’ equity as unearned
compensation and is being amortized over the thrée-year vesting period. During 2001, 1,764 restricted shares
were forfeited and restrictions on 190 shares lapsed. During 2001, including amortization of expected
performance shares and dividends on forfeited shares, compensation expense was $6 million and the
unamortized portion remaining in stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2001 was $12 million.
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In the EIAP and the 1999 LTIP, at December 31, 2001, there were 4,344,054 options outstanding, of
which 1,664,144 were exercisable, with an exercise price range of $23.32 to $33.71, and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 7.4 years. Additionally, there were 49,722 options outstanding and exercisable,
with an exercise price range of $36.24 to $48.33, and a weighted average remaining contractual life of
4.6 years. The changes in RJR’s stock options during 2001, 2000 and 1999 were:

2001 2000 1999

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Options Price Optiens Price Options Price

Balance at beginning of year 6,096,570 $28.76 8,492,564 $28.43 — 5 —

Options transferred in — — — — 5,456,114 28.02
Options granted — — — — 3,199,500 29.01

Options cancelled (220,000) 27.50 (138,371) 27.52 — —
Options exercised (1,482,794) 2823 (2,257,623) 27.58  (163,050) 26.13

Balance at end of year 4,393,776 2901 6,096,570  28.76 8,492,564  28.43
Exercisable at end of year 1,713,866  28.76 3,108,731 2855 5,325,068  28.09

Compensation costs related to employee stock plans are measured and expensed utilizing the intrinsic
value based method. During 1999, the amortization of tandem restricted stock held was recorded as
compensation expense and, as a result, approximated compensation expense had it been based on fair value.
Furthermore, related pro forma results would have approximated those reported. During 2000, had compensa-
tion expense been based on the fair value, net income would have been reduced by $3 million or $.03 per basic
share and per diluted share. During 2001, had compensation expense been based on the fair value, net income
would have been reduced by $5 million or $.05 per basic share and per diluted share. The impact of pro forma
compensation cost was based on fair value at grant date, using a Black-Scholes methodology assuming a 5.96%
risk-free interest rate, a weighted average expected life of 4.2 years, expected volatility of 33.0% and no

dividend yield.
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Note 18 — Retirement Benefits

RIJR and its subsidiaries sponsor a number of non-contributory defined benefit pension plans covering
most employees, and also provide certain health and life insurance benefits for retired employees and their
dependents. The changes in benefit obligations and plan assets, as well as the funded status of the pension
plans at December 31 were:

Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

2001 2000 2001 2000

Change in benefit obligation:

Obligation at beginning of year ....... ... ... ... i i, $2,462 $2270 $ 675 $ 589
SEIVICE COS. .« vttt ettt e e e e e e 35 31 6 6
IIETESt COSt ..ot 179 176 54 49
Actuarial 1osS ... 48 148 69 75
Plan amendments. . ... .. 6 5 — —
Benefits paid .. ... (188) (190) (64) (50)
St NS . L . o (13) iy — —
Acquisition of NGH ... ... . .. — 33 — 6
Obligation at end of year .............coiiiiieiiiiiiiin $2,529 $2,462 $ 740 $ 675
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year........................ $2,260 $2499 § — § —
Actual return on plan @ssets . .. ... ...t e l (156) — —
Employer contributions ............. i 100 98 64 50
Benefits paid . .. ..o oot (188) (190} (64) (50)
S mMIENtS . . . (13) (11) — —
Acquisition of NGH . ... ... — 20 — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of year...........ccovveiiinnnnn... $2,160 $2,260 § — $§ —
Funded status:
Funded StatUs .. ...ttt $ (369) $ (202) $(740) $(675)
Unrecognized transition asset .. ........ovutiineinneennneanann.. — — (15)  (21)
Unrecognized prior SEIVICe COSt .. ...ttt i, 9 — — —
Unrecognized net actuarial 1088 . ...t 379 117 169 109
Net amount recogmized . . ... ...ttt $ 19 § (85) $(586) $(587)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:

Accrued benefit liability ....... ... $ (181) $(104) $(586) $(587)

Intangible asset. .. ..o e 13 7 — —

Accumulated other comprehensive income. . ...................... 187 12 — —
Net amount recognized .. ... ..ot $ 19 § (85) $(586) $(587)
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As of December 31, 2001, all of the pension plans experienced accumulated benefit obligations in excess
of plan assets, for which the projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan
assets were $2,529 million, $2,340 million and $2,160 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2000, for the
plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets, the projected benefit obligation,
accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets were $89 million, $76 million and $15 million,
respectively.

Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999

Components of total benefit cost (income):

Service Cost. .. ... $ 35 8§ 31 $ 39 $6 $6 $6
Interest COSt .. .vvvr it i et 179 176 169 54 49 44
Expected return on plan assets..................... (220) (229) (195) — — —
Amortization of transition asset . ................... — — —  (6) (6) (6)
Amortization of prior service cost .................. (3) (3) 3) — - -
Amortization of net loss (gain) .................... 2 (7) 2 9 1 6
Net periodic benefit cost (income) ................. - (7 (32 12 63 50 50
Curtailment/special benefits . ...................... — — 14 — — 1
Settlements . ... 4 2 - = = =
Total benefit cost (income) ............... $ (3) $(30) 8 26 $63 $50 $51

The weighted average actuarial assumptions used for the pension and postretirement benefit plans as of
December 31 were: :
2001 2000

Discount rate . ..........iiii i 7.40% 7.50% -
Expected return on pension plan assets.............ccoiiiiiiiiiiin.n. 9.50% 9.50%
Rate of compensation increase . ........... ...l 5.00% 5.00%

For measurement purposes, a 13% annual rate of increase in the pre-65 per capita cost of covered health
care was assumed for the HMO plan for 2001. The rate was assumed to decrease to 9% for 2002 and then
decrease by 1% per year to an ultimate rate of 5%. The annual rate of increase for post-65 per capita cost of
covered care for the HMO plan was assumed to be 13% for 2001, 10% for 2002, decreasing 1% per year to an
ultimate rate of 5%. Additionally, for the indemnity plan, a 10% annual rate of increase in the pre-65 per
capita cost of covered health care was assumed for 2001. The rate was assumed to decrease to 9% for 2002, 8%
for 2003, then decrease by .5% per year to an ultimate rate of 5%. The annual rate of increase for post-65 per
capita cost of covered care for the indemnity plan was assumed to be 12% for 2001, decreasing by 1% to an
ultimate rate of 5%. Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for
the healthcare plans. A one-percentage-point change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would effect:

1-Percemtage 1-Percentage

Point Point
Increase Decrease

Total of service and interest cost components....................... $2 $ Q)
Postretirement benefit obligation .............. ... . ... ... . .. ... 36 (31)

In connection with the NGH acquisition in 2000, plan assets and benefit obligations attributable to
certain former NGH employees were transferred to RJR, which resulted in an increase in pension plan assets
of $20 million and an increase in pension plan benefit obligations of $33 million, Postretirement benefit
obligations of $6 million were also acquired by RIR.

In connection with the reorganization in 1999, the assets and liabilities of the Retirement Plan for
Employees of RJR Nabisco, Inc., referred to as the old plan, were split into two new plans, one for employees
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and former employees of RJR and its subsidiaries and the other for employees and former employees of
Nabisco and NGH. The split of the assets and liabilities of the old plan was in accordance to an agreement
with the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation. The PBGC agreement required contributions of $58 million
in each of the five years beginning in 1999, as well as contribution of the RJR plan’s normal cost beginning in
2000 through the end of the agreement. The agreement is expected to continue for five years; however, there
are certain circumstances under which it could be extended.

In connection with the close-down of the New York headquarters, special termination benefits were
provided to employees resulting in a 1999 one-time charge of $14 million for pension benefits and $1 million
for postretirement benefits,

RJIR and its subsidiaries sponsor a qualified defined contribution plan, and following a participant’s
contribution, match 50% based on a maximum of 6% of a participant’s compensation. The expense related to
this plan was $12 million in each of 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Note 19 — Segment Information

RJR has one reportable operating segment, RJR Tobacco, which comprised more than 90% of RJR’s
total consolidated assets at December 31, 2001 and substantially all of RJR’s consolidated income from
continuing operations during 2001, 2000 and 1999. At December 31, 2001, the consolidated total assets also
included the remaining proceeds from the NGH acquisition. The consolidated income from continuing
operations included corporate costs and interest income on the NGH proceeds.

RIJR Tobacco manufactures and markets cigarettes in the United States. During 2001, 2000 and 1999,
sales made by RJR Tobacco to McLane Company, Inc. and its affiliate, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., comprised
20%, 19% and 17%, respectively, of RJR’s consolidated revenue. No other customer accounted for 10% or
more of RIJR’s consolidated revenue during those years.

81




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Note 20 — Guarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

2001 First Secend Third Fourth
Net sales (1) ..ooii e e e $1,950 $2,269 $2,273 $2,093
Gross profit . . ... 1,113 1,293 1,357 1,262
Income from continuing OPerations .. ............c.oveeureuinnnernn. 100 127 128 89
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes....................... — — 9) —
Nt IMCOMMIE . . ottt et et e e 100 127 119 89
Per share data (2):
Basic:
Income from continuing operations .. .............coveeriivenn... 1.00 1.29 1.34 95
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes..................... — — (.10) —
NEt INCOME .« v vttt ettt et e e e e e 1.00 1.29 1.24 .95
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations .............covvveveiennnn.. .98 1.26 1.31 93
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes..................... — — (.09) -—
NEtIBCOME . . ottt e e e .98 1.26 1.22 93
2000
Net sales (1) .o e 1,904 2,053 2,08 2,012
Gross Profit . . oot 1,078 1,168 1,207 1,169
Income from continuing operations ........... ... .. 80 109 117 46
Extraordinary item, net of income taxes ........................... — — — 1,475
Net INCOME . . oo e e 80 109 117 1,521
Per share data (2):
Basic:
Income from continuing operations .. ............c.coovunneenn .. 77 1.08 1.17 46
Extraordinary item, net of income taxes ............. ... ...ou.. — — — 1476
NELINCOMIE . .« ottt et e e ettt a7 1.08 1.17  15.22
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations ............ ... ... ... ... . ... a7 1.07 1.16 45
Extraordinary item, net of income taxes .................. ....... — — — 14,58
NEtINCOME . . oottt e e e 77 1.07 1.16 1503

(1) Adoption of EITF No. 00-14 required the classification of certain sales incentive costs as reductions of
net sales, and also resulted in shifting a portion of those costs to other interim periods within the annuat
period.

(2) Income per share is computed independently for each of the periods presented. The sum of the income
per share amounts for the quarters may not equal the total for the year.

Neote 21 — Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements

Separate financial statements and other disclosures have not been presented concerning RJR Tobacco
and RJR Acquisition Corp. because such information is not believed to be material to holders of the exchange
notes. RJR Tobacco and RJR Acquisition Corp. are wholly owned subsidiaries of RJR, and have fully and
unconditionally guaranteed the exchange notes. Because the guarantees are full and unconditional and joint
and several, the following condensed consolidating financial statements include: the accounts and activities of
RIR, the issuer of the debt securities; RJR Tobacco and RIR Acquisition Corp., the guarantors; other
subsidiaries of RJR and RJR Tobacco that are not guarantors; and elimination adjustments.
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income
(Dollars in Millions) (Unaudited)

Issuer  Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
Netsales. . ot e  a $  — $8,585 $ 50 $  (50) $8,585
Cost of products sold .................ciiiiiiit. —_ 3,607 3 (50) 3,560
Selling, general and administrative expenses .......... 32 4,065 (352) — 3,745
Amortization of trademarks and goodwill............. — 260 102 — 362
Interest and debt expense . .......... ... ... 138 12 — — 150
Interest income ... ... ... it (4) (129) (4) — (137)
Intercompany interest (income) expense ............. (10) 274 (264) — —
Intercompany dividend . ................... ... ... (1,632) (698) — 2,330 —
Other expense (income), net..............c........ (3) 1 — — 13
Income from continuing operations before income
BAXES | e e 1,479 1,178 565 (2,330) 892
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes ............ (51) 300 199 — 448
Equity income from subsidiaries .................... 1,235 357 — (1,592) —
Income from centinuing operations . .............. 2,765 1,235 366 (3,922) 444
Loss on sale of discontinued businesses, net of income
BAKES . ottt e — — (9) — (9)
Net INCOme. . . ..ot e $ 2,765 $1,235 $ 357 $(3,922) $ 435
For the Year Ended December 31, 2000
Net sales. ..o e $  —  $8,060 $ 48 $  (50) $8,058
Cost of products sold . ..................... ..., — 3,483 3 (50) 3,436
Selling, general and administrative expenses .......... 42 3,615 (315) — 3,342
Amortization of trademarks and goodwill............. — 260 106 366
Impairment charge .................. ... . ... — — 89 89
Other operating eXpense .............vveieeennena. — (3) — (3)
Interest and debt expense.......... ... ..., 164 4 — — 168
Interest income . ...... .. . i (1 (111) (7) — (119)
Intercompany interest (income) expense ............. (11) 394 (383) — —
Intercompany dividend . ......... ... ... ... (238) (861) — 1,099 —
Other expense (income), net..............c.o...... 6 26 (1) — 31
Income before income taxes . .................... 38 1,253 556 (1,099) 748
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes ............ (64) 264 196 — 396
Equity income from subsidiaries .................... 2,825 360 — (3,185) —
Income before extraordinary item................. 2,927 1,349 360 (4,284) 352
Extraordinary item—gain (loss) on acquisition, net of
BBXES © vttt e (1) 1,476 — — 1,475
Netincome. ............ i, $ 2,926 $2,825 $ 360 $(4,284) $1,827
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999
Net sales. .o e e $  — $7,412 $ 36 5 — $7,468
Cost of productssold ....................... .. ... — 3,283 9 — 3,292
Selling, general and administrative expenses .......... 43 3,184 (303) — 2,924
Amortization of trademarks and goodwill. ............ — 260 106 — 366
Headquarters close-down and related charges ......... 143 — — — 143
Other operating expense . ..............ccoceveee... — 21 — — 21
Interest and debt expense................... ... ... 267 1 — — 268
Interest income ......... ...t iiiiaer i 4 (85) (25) — (114)
Intercompany interest {income) expense ............. (393) 620 (227) — —
Other expense (income), net....................... (67) 7 118 — 58
Income from continuing operations before income
BAKES © o vt ettt e ia i 11 121 378 — 510
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes ............ (16) 163 168 —_ 315
Equity income from subsidiaries from continuing
OPErations . ........ vt 168 209 — (377) —
Income from continuing operations ............... 195 167 210 (377) 195
Income (loss) from discontinued operations .......... (611) 1,162 1,847 — 2,398
Equity income from subsidiaries from discontinued
OPETALIONS & . v vttt e 3,009 1,848 — (4,857) —
Income before extraordinary item................. 2,593 3,177 2,057 (5,234) 2,593
Extraordinary item—Iloss on early extinguishment of
debt, netof taxes.......... ...t (250) — — — (250)
Net iMCOME. .. ..ottt i $ 2,343 $3,177 $2,057 $(5,234) $2,343
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
(Dollars in Millions) (Unaudited)

Issuer Guaranters Non-Guaranters Eliminations Censclidated

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Cash flows from operating activities ................. $ 1,003 $ 895 $ 420 $(1,692) § 626
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities: ‘
Short-term Ivestments. ... ....ovvvuiuennneen o — (207) — — (207)
Intercompany notes receivable .. ............... ... 5 (9) 281 (267) —
Other, net. ... ... oo — (85) (15) — (100)
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities (5) (301) 266 (267) (307)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Repurchase of common stock .................... (494) — — — (494)
Dividends paid on common stock .. ............... (320) (994) (698) 1,692 (320)
Repayments of long-term debt................. ... (73) — — — (73)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options . ........... 45 — — — 45
Intercompany notes payable...................... 135 (290) 8 267 —
Net cash flows used in financing activities........ (827)  (1,284) (690) 1,959 (842)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents . ............ 171 (690) (4) — (523)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ....... 14 2,424 105 — 2,543
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year............. § 185 §$ 1,74 $ 101 $ — $ 2,020
For the Year Ended December 31, 2000
Cash flows from operating activities ................. $ 615 $ 641 $ 432 $(1,098) $ 59
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Short-term investments. . ......... . oo — 109 1 — 110
Intercompany notes receivable . ................... 2 34 811 (847) —
Net proceeds from acquisition . ................... — 1,519 — — 1,519
Other, net. .. ... e (5) (50) (1) — (56)
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities (3) 1,612 811 (847) 1,573
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Repurchase of common stock .................... (231) — — — (231)
Dividends paid on common stock .......... ... . ... (322) (238) (860) 1,098 (322)
Repayments of long-term debt.................... (387) — — — (387)
Intercompany notes payable. ..................... { (470) (377) 846 —
Other, Net. .. e 238 (164) {(16) 1 59
Net cash flows used in financing activities . ... .... (701) (872) (1,253) 1,945 (881)
Net cash flows related to discontinued operations . . 103 (19) — — 84
Net change in cash and cash equivalents............. 14 1,362 (10) -— 1,366
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ....... — 1,062 115 — 1,177
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year............. $ 14 $ 2424 $ 105 $ — $ 2,543
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999
Cash flows from operating activities . ................ $ 138 § 518 $ 273 $ — $ 929
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Net proceeds from the sale of the international
tobaccobusiness ............. . ... (35) 2,611 5,184 — 7,760
Short-term investments. . ............ooviiienn. — (109) (1) — (110)
Other, net. . ... i —_ (55) (19) — (74)
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities (35) 2,447 5,164 — 7,576
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debt. . ............ ... ... (4,450) — — (4,450)
Intercompany transfer........................... 5,216 (881) (4,335) —
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt .......... 1,244 — —_ —_ 1,244
Transfers and payments to former parent........... (1,968) — — — (1,968)
Other, net. .. .ot (185) — — — (185)
Net cash flows used in financing activities ........ (143) (881) (4,335) — (5,359)
Cash flows related to discontinued operations (including
income taxes paid on the gain on sale of the
international tobacco business) ................... — (982) (987) — (1,969)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents......... (40) 1,102 115 — 1,177
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ....... 40 (40) — — —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year............. § — § 1062 $§ 115 § — $ 1,177
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
(Dollars in Millions)
(Unaudited)

Issuer Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

December 31, 2001

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents ......................... $ 185 $ 1,734 $ 101 $ — $ 2,020
Short-term investments. . ...........cevurriiann... — 207 — — 207
Other current assets ...........cvieveneinnennen.. 95 1,983 37 (486) 1,629
Trademarks, net. . .. .ttt i e — — 2,173 — 2,773
Goodwill, net .. ... ... — 6,875 — — 6,875
Intercompany notes receivable...................... 146 14 3,822 (3,982) —
Investment in subsidiaries ............ . ... ... ..... 10,585 5,772 —_— (16,357) —
Other NONCUITENT ASSES . .o v vt ce e iin et eaenn. 65 1,497 16 (32) 1,546
Total @SSEtS ..o v e e $11,076  $18,082 $6,749 $(20,857) $15,050
Liabilities and steckholders’ equity
Tobacco settlement and related accruals ............. $ — $1,520 $ — $ — $ 1,520
Other current liabilities. . ....................... ... 664 1,080 14 (486) 1,272
Intercompany notes payable........................ 69 3,905 3 (3,982) —
Long-term debt (less current maturities) . ............ 1,534 97 — —_ 1,631
Other noncurrent liabilities. . ....................... 783 876 974 (32) 2,601
Stockholders’ equity ........ ..ol 8,026 10,604 5,753 (16,357) 8,026
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity.......... $11,076  $18,082 $6,749 $(20,857) $15,050
December 31, 2000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents .................... R $ 14 §$ 2424 $ 105 $ — $ 2,543
Other current assets . .......c.viiet e, 7 2,221 54 (954) 1,328
Trademarks, net. ... ...t —_ — 2,875 — 2,875
Gaodwill, net ... o e e — 7,303 — — 7,303
Intercompany notes receivable...................... 141 5 4,103 (4,249) —
Investment in subsidiaries ............... ... .. ..., 11,957 6,117 — (18,074) —_
Other noncurrent assets ..............ovvuninnnnnnn 69 1,429 6 . 1 1,505
Total @SSETS « .t e $12,188  $19,499 $7,143 $(23,276) $15,554
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Tobacco settlement and related accruals ............. $ —  $ 1,39 $ — $ — $ 1,394
Other current labilities. ........................... 1,307 993 36 (954) 1,382
Intercompany notes payable........................ 54 4,195 — (4,249) —
Long-term debt (less current maturities) . ............ 1,576 98 — — 1,674
Other noncurrent liabilities. . ....................... 815 843 1,009 1 2,668
Stockholders’ equity ........... ... ... 8,436 11,976 6,098 {18,074) 8,436
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity.......... $12,188  $19,499 $7,143 $(23,276) $15,554

Note 22 — Subseguent Events

On January 7, 2002, in connection with its agreement with the PBGC as of May 20, 1999, RJR
accelerated its expected required contributions to the pension plan for 2002 and 2003. As a result, the PBGC
cancelled its $116 million letter of credit required of RJR.

On January 16, 2002; RJR completed its acquisition of Santa Fe Natural Tobacco Company, Inc. by
acquiring 100% of Santa Fe’s privately held voting stock for $340 million in cash, subject to post-closing
adjustments. Santa Fe is a wholly owned operating subsidiary of RJR, and results of its operations subsequent
to the acquisition will be included in RJR’s consolidated financial statements.

Cn February 6, 2002, RJR’s board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $1 billion of RJR’s
common stock over time in the open market, to enhance stockholder value. This program will be funded by
dividends from RJR Acquisition Corp. utilizing the cash proceeds of the NGH acquisition and from cash
provided by operating activities. The timing of repurchases and the number of shares purchased under this
authorization will depend upon market conditions.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

PART III

Ttem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Item 10 is incorporated by reference to “Item 1: Election of Class 11I Directors” and “Stock Ownership-
Section 16(a) beneficial ownership of reporting compliance” of RJR’s Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed
with the SEC on or before March 15, 2002. For information regarding the executive officers, see “Executive
Officers and Certain Significant Employees of the Registrant” in Item 4 of Part I of this report.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Item 11 is incorporated by reference to “Executive Compensation and Transactions with Management”
of RJR’s Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC on or before March 15, 2002.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Ttem 12 is incorporated by reference to “Stock Ownership” of RIJR’s Definitive Proxy Statement to be
filed with the SEC on or before March 15, 2002.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

None.

PART IV

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) The following documents are filed as a part of this report:
(1) Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income for the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules have been omitted because the information required has been
separately disclosed in the consolidated financial statements or notes.

(3) See (c) below.

(b) No reports on Form 8-K were filed during the year ended December 31, 2001.
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Exhibit
Number

2.1

2.2

23

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

28

3.1

32

The following exhibits are filed as part of this report, Exhibit Numbers 10.20 through 10.59 are
management contracts, compensatory plans or arrangements:

Distribution Agreement dated as of May 12, 1999, among RJR Nabisco Holdings Corp., RJR
Nabisco, Inc. and R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to
Registrant’s Form 8-A filed May 19, 1999)

Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 28, 2001, to the Distribution Agreement, dated as of

May 12, 1999, among RJR Nabisco Holdings Corp. (now known as RJR Acquisition Corp.),
RIJR Nabisco, Inc. (now known as R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc.) and R. J. Reynolds
Tobacco Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001, filed August 1, 2001)

Certificate of Merger and Agreement and Plan of Merger among RJR Nabisco Holdings Corp.,
RJR Nabisco, Inc. and R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.2 to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed May 28, 1999)

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of June 25, 2000, among Nabisco Group Holdings Corp.,
R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and RJR Acquisition Corp. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000,
filed August 7, 2000)

Amendment No. 1, dated September 20, 2000, to the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of
June 25, 2000, among Nabisco Group Holdings Corp., R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and
RIR Acquisition Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000, filed November 3, 2000)

Letter dated October 19, 2000, from R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. to Nabisco Group
Holdings Corp., electing that Nabisco Group Holdings Corp. be merged with and into RJR
Acquisition Corp. under the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of June 25, 2000, as
amended, among Nabisco Group Holdings Corp., R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and RJR
Acquisition Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000, filed November 3, 2000)

Letter dated November 20, 2000, from R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. to Nabisco Group
Holdings Corp., withdrawing its previous election made on October 19, 2000, and electing that
RIJIR Acquisition Corp. be merged with and into Nabisco Group Holdings Corp. under the
Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of June 25, 2000, as amended, among Nabisco Group
Holdings Corp., R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and RJR Acquisition Corp. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 2.4 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated December 11, 2000)

Letter dated October 27, 2000, from R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. to Nabisco Group
Holdings Corp., agreeing that it will pay or cause to be paid to stockholders of Nabisco Group
Holdings Corp., in circumstances described in Section 2.02(b) of the Agreement and Plan of
Merger dated as of June 25, 2000, as amended, among Nabisco Group Holdings Corp., R.J.
Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and RJR Acquisition Corp., an amount equal to 100% of the
difference between the Net Proceeds (as defined in the Agreement and Plan of Merger) and
$11.729 billion (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000, filed November 3, 2000)

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-X dated June 14, 1999)

Bylaws of R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc., as amended and restated effective April 25,
2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-8 filed April 27, 2001)
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4.1  Rights Agreement dated as of May 18, 1999, between R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and
its rights agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated June 14,
1999)

4.2  Amended and Restated Indenture dated as of July 24, 1995, between RJR Nabisco, Inc. and The
Bank of New York (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1995, filed August 8, 1995)

4.3 First Supplemental Indenture and Waiver dated as of April 27, 1999, between RJR Nabisco, Inc.
and The Bank of New York, to the Amended and Restated Indenture dated as of July 24, 1995,
between RJR Nabisco, Inc. and The Bank of New York, as successor trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Form 8-A filed May 19, 1999)

4.4 Second Supplemental Indenture and Waiver dated as of April 27, 1999, between RJR Nabisco,
Inc. and The Bank of New York, to the Amended and Restated Indenture dated as of May 18,
1992 between RJR Nabisco, Inc. and The Bank of New York, as successor trustee, as amended
by the Form of First Supplemental Indenture and Waiver thereto dated as of June 2, 1995
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Form 8-A filed May 19, 1999)

4.5 Indenture dated as of May 15, 1999, among RJR Nabisco, Inc., R. J. Reynolds Tobacco
Company and The Bank of New York, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Registrant’s Form 8-A filed May 19, 1999)

4.6 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 12, 2000, among RJR Acquisition Corp.,
R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc., R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company and The Bank of New
York, as Trustee, to the Indenture dated as of May 15, 1999, among RJR Nabisco, Inc., R. J.
Reynolds Tobacco Company and The Bank of New York, as Trustee (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.6 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2000, filed March 1, 2001)

10.1 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of November 17, 2000, among R.J. Reynolds
Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and the lending institutions listed and to be listed from time to time on
Annex [ (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2000, filed March 1, 2001)

10.2  First Amendment to the Credit Agreement dated as of November 19, 2001, among R.J. Reynolds
- Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and lending institutions party to the Credit Agreement

10.3  Form of Amended and Restated Subsidiary Guaranty by R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company and
RJR Acquisition Corp. to the creditors defined therein, issued in connection with the Credit
Agreement dated as of May 18, 1999 and Amended and Restated as of November 17, 2000,
among R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and the lending institutions listed and to be listed
from time to time on Annex I (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, filed March 1, 2001)

10.4  Guarantee dated as of May 18, 1999, by R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company to the holders and to
The Bank of New York, as trustee, issued in connection with the Indenture dated as of May 15,
1999, among RJR Nabisco, Inc., R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company and The Bank of New York,
as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Registrant’s Form 8-A filed May 19,
1999)

10.5  Tax Sharing Agreement dated as of June 14, 1999, among RJR Nabisco Holdings Corp., R.J.
Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc., R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company and Nabisco Holdings Corp.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated June 14, 1999)

10.6  Amendment to Tax Sharing Agreement dated June 25, 2000, among Nabisco Group Holdings
Corp., R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc., Nabisco Holdings Corp. and R. J. Reynolds
Tobacco Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000, filed August 7, 2000)
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10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

Agreement dated as of May 20, 1999, among Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation, RJR
Nabisco Holdings Corp. and R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.16 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
1999, filed August 16, 1999)

Amendment effective as of June 14, 1999, to the Agreement effective as of May 20, 1999, by and
among the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation, R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and R.
J. Reynolds Tobacco Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000, filed August 7, 2000)

Second Amendment effective as of January 7, 2002, to the Agreement effective as of May 20,
1999, by and among the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation, R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings,
Inc. and R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company

Purchase Agreement dated as of March 9, 1999, as amended and restated as of May 11, 1999,
among R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company, RJR Nabisco, Inc. and Japan Tobacco Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated May 12, 1999)

Settlement Agreement dated August 25, 1997, between the State of Florida and settling
defendants in The State of Florida v. American Tobacco Co. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated August 25, 1997)

Comprehensive Settlement Agreement and Release dated January 16, 1998, between the State of
Texas and settling defendants in The State of Texas v. American Tobacco Co. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated January 16, 1998)

Settlement Agreement and Release in re: The State of Minnesota v. Philip Morris, Inc., by and
among the State of Minnesota, Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Minnesota and the various tobacco
company defendants named therein, dated as of May 8, 1998 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 30,
1998, filed May 15, 1998)

Settlement Agreement and Stipulation for Entry of Consent Judgment in re: The State of
Minnesota v. Philip Morris, Inc., by and among the State of Minnesota, Blue Cross and Blue
Shield of Minnesota and the various tobacco company defendants named therein, dated as of
May 8, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 30, 1998, filed May 15, 1998)

Form of Consent Judgment by Judge Kenneth J. Fitzpatrick, Judge of District Court in re: The
State of Minnesota v. Philip Morris, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 30, 1998, filed May 15,
1998)

Stipulation of Amendment to Settlement Agreement and for Entry of Agreed Order dated July 2,
1998, by and among the Mississippi Defendants, Mississippi and the Mississippi Counsel in
connection with the Mississippi Action (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998, filed August 14, 1998)

Stipulation of Amendment to Settlement Agreement and for Entry of Consent Decree dated

- July 24, 1998, by and among the Texas Defendants, Texas and the Texas Counsel in connection

with the Texas Action (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998, filed August 14, 1998)

Stipulation of Amendment to Settlement Agreement and for Entry of Consent Decree dated
September 11, 1998, by and among the State of Florida and the tobacco companies named
therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 1998, filed November 12, 1998)
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10.19 Master Settlement Agreement (the “MSA”) dated November 23, 1998, between the Settling
States named in the MSA and the Participating Manufacturers also named therein (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated November 23, 1998)

10.20  Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Award Plan for Directors of R.J. Reynolds Tobacco
Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “EIAP”) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000, filed May 9,
2000)

10.21  Form of Deferred Stock Unit Agreement between R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and the
Director named therein, pursuant to the EIAP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999, filed
August 16, 1999)

10.22 Form of Stock Option Agreement (Initial) between R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and
the Director named therein, pursuant to the EJAP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999, filed
August 16, 1999)

10.23  Form of Stock Option Agreement (Annual) between R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and
the Director named therein, pursuant to the EIAP, dated as of June 15, 1999 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1999, filed August 16, 1999)

10.24  Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors between R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc.
(Effective June 14, 1999) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999, filed August 16, 1999)

10.25 R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. 1999 Long Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated June 15, 1999)

10.26 Amendments to the R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. 1999 Long Term Incentive Plan dated
December 5, 2001.

10.27 Form of 1999 Performance Appreciation Rights Agreement under R.J. Reynolds Tobacco
Holdings, Inc. 1999 Long Term Incentive Plan between R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc.
and the grantee named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1999, filed November 12,
1999)

10.28 Form of Tandem Restricted Stock/Stock Option Agreement dated June 15, 1999, between R.J.
Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and the grantee named therein (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
1999, filed November 12, 1999)

10.29 Form of Tandem Restricted Stock/Stock Option Agreement dated June 15, 1999, between R.J.
Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and Andrew J. Schindler (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
1999, filed November 12, 1999)

10.30  Amendment No. 1 to Tandem Restricted Stock/Stock Option Agreement Dated June 15, 1999,
dated December 5, 2001.

10.31  Form of Tandem Restricted Stock/Stock Option Agreement dated July 28, 1999, between R.J.
Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and the grantee named therein (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
1999, filed November 12, 1999)

10.32  Amendment No. 1 to Tandem Restricted Stock/Stock Option Agreement Dated July 28, 1999,
dated December 5, 2001.
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10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement dated February 2, 2000, between R.J. Reynolds Tobacco
Holdings, Inc. and the grantee named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999, filed March 8,
2000)

Form of Performance Unit Agreement (three-year vesting) dated February 2, 2000, between R.J.
Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and the grantee named therein (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.36 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1999, filed March 8, 2000)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement dated January 31, 2001, between R.J. Reynolds Tobacco
Holdings, Inc. and the grantee named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, filed March 1,
2001)

Form of ‘Performance Unit Agreement (three-year vesting) dated January 31, 2001, between R.J.
Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and the grantee named therein (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.38 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2000, filed March 1, 2001)

Amendment No. 1 to Performance Unit Agreements dated December 35, 2001, between R.J.
Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and the grantee named therein

R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. Annual Incentive Award Plan, Effective January 1, 1987
Amended and Restated Effective January 1, 2002.

Master Trust Agreement, as amended and restated as of October 12, 1988, between RJR
Nabisco, Inc. and Wachovia Bank and Trust Company, N.A. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.18 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 of RIR Holdings Corp. and RJR
Holdings Group, Inc., Registration No. 33-27894, filed April 5, 1939, as amended)

Amendment No. 1 to Master Trust Agreement, dated January 27, 1989 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(g) (ii) to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1988, filed March 9, 1989)

Amendment No. 2 to Master Trust Agreement, dated January 27, 1989 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(g) (iii) to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1988, filed March 9, 1989)

Excess Benefit Master Trust Agreement, as amended and restated as of October 12, 1988,
between RJR Nabisco, Inc. and Wachovia Bank and Trust Company, N.A. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 of RJR Holdings
Corp. and RJR Holdings Group, Inc., Registration No. 33-27894, filed April 5, 1989, as
amended)

Amendment No. 1 to Excess Benefit Master Trust Agreement, dated January 27, 1989
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(h) (ii) to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1988, filed March 9, 1989)

RJR Nabisco, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended on July 21, 1988
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 of RJR
Holdings Corp. and RJR Holdings Group, Inc., Registration No. 33-27894, filed April 5, 1989, as
amended)

Amendment to Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, dated November 23, 1988
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(m) (ii) to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-X for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998, filed March 9, 1989)
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10.46

10.50

10.51

10.52

10.53

10.54

10.55

10.56

10.57

10.58

Amendment No. 2 to Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan; dated January 27, 1989
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(m) (iii) to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1988, filed March 9, 1989)

Amendment to Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, dated April 10, 1993 (incorporated by
reference to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993,
filed February 24, 1994)

Retention Trust Agreement dated May 13, 1998, by and between RJR Nabisco, Inc. and
Wachovia Bank, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 1998, filed August 14, 1998)

Form of Employment Agreement dated as of October 31, 1988, by and between RJR Nabisco,
Inc. and Andrew J. Schindler (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to Registrant’s
Schedule 14D-9 filed on November 8, 1988)

Form of Special Addendum dated December 20, 1988, to the Employment Agreement dated as
of October 31, 1988, between RJR Nabisco, Inc. and Andrew J. Schindler (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(d) (i) to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1988, filed March 8, 1989)

Amendment dated June 7, 1999, to the Employment Agreement dated as of October 31, 1988,
and previously amended as of December 20, 1988, between RJR Nabisco, Inc. and Andrew J.
Schindler (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1999, filed November 12, 1999)

Amendment dated January 4, 2002, to the Employment Agreement dated as of October 31, 1988,
and previously amended as of December 20, 1988 and June 7, 1999, between R.J. Reynolds
Tobacco Holdings, Inc. (formerly known as RJR Nabisco, Inc.) and Andrew J. Schindler

Change of Control Letter Agreement dated October 25, 1999, by and among R.J. Reynolds
Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and Andrew J. Schindler

Participation Agreement, RJR Nabisco, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, for
Andrew J. Schindler dated December 28, 1995 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995, filed
February 22, 1996)

Amendment dated October 25, 1999, to the Participation Agreement — R.J. Reynolds
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan dated as of December 28, 1995, between R.J. Reynolds
Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and Andrew J. Schindler

Cash Retention Grant Letter Agreement dated August 17, 1999, between R.J. Reynolds Tobacco
Holdings, Inc. and Andrew J. Schindler (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1999, filed November 12,
1999)

Form of Change of Control Letter Agreement between R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Holdings, Inc. and
the executive officer named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1999, filed November 12,
1999)

Form of Special Severance Benefits Letter Agreement between R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company
and the executive officer named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1999, filed November 12,
1999)
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10.59

12.1

21.1
23.1
23.2
99.1

Form of Amendment to Special Severance Benefits Letter Agreement between R. J. Reynolds
Tobacco Company and the executive officer named therein (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
1999, filed November 12, 1999)

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock
Dividends/Deficiency in the Coverage of Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends
by Earnings Before Fixed Charges for each of the five years within the period ended

December 31, 2001.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant
Consent of Independent Auditors
Consent of Independent Auditors
Expanded Litigation Disclosure
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: February 28, 2002

R.J. REYNCLDS TOBACCO HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/ Andrew J. Schindler

Andrew J. Schindler
Chairman of the Board, President,
Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature

/s/ Andrew J. Schindler

Andrew J. Schindler

/s/ _Kenneth J. Lapiejko

Kenneth J. Lapiejko

/s/ Thomas R. Adams

Thomas R. Adams

/s/  Mary K. Bush

Mary K. Bush

/s/  John T. Chain, Jr.

John T. Chain, Jr.

/s/ A.D. Frazier, Jr.

A.D. Frazier, Jr.

/s/ Denise Ilitch

Denise Ilitch

/s/ John G. Medlin, Jr.

John G. Medlin, Jr.

/s/ Nana Mensah

Nana Mensah

/s/ _Joseph P. Viviano

Joseph P. Viviano

/s/  Thomas C. Wajnert

Thomas C. Wajnert

Title

Chairman of the Board, President,
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(principal executive officer)

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

(principal financial officer)-

Senior Vice President and Controller
(principal accounting officer)

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
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February 28, 2002

February 28, 2002

February 28, 2002

February 28, 2002

February 28, 2002

February 28, 2002

February 28, 2002

February 28, 2002

February 28, 2002

February 28, 2002

February 28, 2002



R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO HOLDINGS, INC.

EXHIBIT 12.1

COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES/DEFICIENCY IN THE
COVERAGE OF FIXED CHARGES BY EARNINGS BEFORE FIXED CHARGES

(Dollars in Millions)
(Unaudited)

Earnings before fixed charges:
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes
Interest and debt expense ........... .. .. .. .. . ...
Interest portion of rental expense ............. ... . ... . ...,

Earnings (loss) before fixed charges............................

Fixed charges:
Interest and debt expense ......... ...t
Interest portion of rental expense ......... ... ... ..

Total fixed charges ........ .. ... ... .o il
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges................ ... . ... . ...

Deficiency in the coverage of fixed charges by earnings before fixed
CRArgES . .t e

For the Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1995 1998 1997
$ 892 $748 $510 $(679) $204
150 168 268 426 433
14 15 15 16 16
$1,056 $931 $793 $(237) $653
$ 150 $168 $268 §$ 426 $433
14 15 15 16 16
$ 164 $183 $283 § 442 $449
64 51 2.8 — 1.5

$(679) —
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